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Chairman’s Statement

EFEHRS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Neway Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | would like to present to
shareholders the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year”).

The Group has experienced many challenges under the undesired
economic and business environment during the Year. High level
of inventories accumulated by our customers and tightened anti-
pandemic precaution measures adopted by the Government of the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC") have seriously affected the
revenue and profit margin of business segments of the Group to
different extents, especially the manufacturing and sales business,
trading business and property development business.

Despite these challenges in the Year, the Group has taken decisive
actions to manage our operating costs and to improve our operational
efficiency of various business segments. These actions were gradually
reflected in our manufacturing and sales business and the overall
costs of this business was decreased during the Year. Furthermore, the
Group also reviewed our business strategies and explored business
opportunities in different directions to expand our market shares of
different business segments for the coming years.

For our property development business in the Qingyuan City, the PRC,
the Group has devoted more resources in promoting the image of
R E o EEE A, the first industrial park developed by the Group,
and delivering high-quality products and services to our potential
customers. As at the date of this report, approximately 32% of the
total gross floor area of the first phase of development of 12 ¢ &
B A was sold. It was really encouraging to be able to achieve such
results during this difficult year.

Looking ahead, in response to the requests from our customers
and to diversify the risks arising from the political and economics
tensions between the PRC and other countries, the Group is actively
exploring and developing its business potentials in other countries,
of which South East Asia and South America may be our target to
further develop. The Group will also devote more sales and marketing
resources to further expand our customers base in U.S., Europe and
the PRC by recruiting more salespersons or agents in overseas.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFEHRS

As most of the epidemic prevention measures and travel restrictions
among countries have been relaxed, the Group is looking for more
opportunities to organize or invest in shows and concerts in Hong
Kong and for co-operations with more talents and artistes to widen
the revenue stream of the music and entertainment business. For
the property development business, the Group will continue to put
more efforts in the sales and marketing of the industrial buildings and
may, if appropriate, consider commencing the construction plan of
the second phase of development of 12 « E/F%E 2. Furthermore,
the Group will continue to look for potential property development
projects in Hong Kong and the PRC.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my sincerest gratitude to all shareholders, investors,
business partners and all employees for their continuous support
and dedication to the Group throughout the Year notwithstanding
the unprecedented challenges and difficulties we encountered. We
will continue to strive for excellence in everything we do, while
maintaining our focus on developing value to our customers and
shareholders.

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEmRO

OVERVIEW

During the Year, although more and more countries have relaxed
the anti-pandemic precaution measures and the restrictions on
cross-border travel among countries, high level of inventories were
accumulated by our customers in different business segments due to
the rapid increase in the number of orders they placed in the Year
2021. Therefore, reducing their respective inventory levels became
a major target for most of our customers and less orders were
therefore placed during the Year. Furthermore, the tightening of the
anti-pandemic precaution measures adopted by the Government of
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") since the end of the first
quarter of the Year has further suppressed the economic activities in
the PRC and the export and domestic sales of the Manufacturing and
Sales Business, and the sales activities of the Property Development
Business have also been negatively affected in different extent.
Although the said precaution measures have been relaxed in the
fourth quarter of the Year, the business results of the Group for
the Year have already been seriously affected. Under the undesired
economic and business environment, the Group has put more efforts
to set its sales strategies and improve the overall efficiency of the
operations of different business segments and is prepared to take up
the opportunities and challenges in 2023.

The business and financial review of each business segment is detailed
below.

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Total Revenue and Gross Profit Margin

During the Year, total revenue of the Group was approximately
HK$449.4 million (2021: approximately HK$623.6 million) and the
gross profit margin was approximately 21.0% (2021: 17.4%). The
contribution of each business segment to the total revenue of the
Group is as follows:
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2022 to total revenue 2021 to total revenue
6 Erele
—EBCCF i =R E--F BAELT

HK$ HK$

BT BT
Lending Business BEEE 3,784,531 0.8% 1,920,242 0.3%
Manufacturing and Sales Business 243 R $ & %7 411,781,643 91.6% 579,682,944 93.0%
Music and Entertainment Business =24 R 44 2 3% 3,806,067 0.9% 4,387,349 0.7%
Property Development Business MEERRER = = = -
Property Investment Business MEREER 2,194,059 0.5% 4,477,272 0.7%
Trading Business BHER 27,837,042 6.2% 33,108,915 5.3%
Total revenue Al 449,403,342 100% 623,576,722 100.0%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEmRO

Lending Business

The Lending Business included the financial leasing business in
Shanghai, the PRC and the money lending business in Hong Kong.

For the financial leasing business in Shanghai, no transaction was
conducted during the Year, and the Group is still identifying deals with
promising potential.

Money lending business in Hong Kong is carried out by Grand
Prospects Finance International Limited GERBAFBEEEERAT),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability and a licensed money lender under the
Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
Customers of this segment included both individuals and corporate
entities and most of the loans were either secured by charge over
properties located in Hong Kong, pledges of shares or personal
guarantees.

The Group has adopted a set of internal guidelines for its money
lending business. The guidelines provide references or specific
requirements for the setting of interest rates of the loan, the tenure
of the loan and the credit assessment and approval process of each
loan. The guidelines also set out the procedures to be observed by
the Group for its money lending business. Monitoring procedures are
in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts.

The total amount of new loans granted during the Year was
approximately HK$41.3 million and the average loan interest rate of
the Group'’s loan portfolio was approximately 13%. During the Year,
the interest income from loans increased by approximately 97.1%
to approximately HK$3.8 million (2021: HK$1.9 million) and the
segment gain was approximately HK$864,000 (2021: HK$47,000).
The increase in revenue and the improvement in the segment results
were mainly due to the increase in the number of new loans granted
during the Year.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 61% (2021: 80%)
of the total loans receivable was due from three (2021: three)
independent third parties totalling of approximately HK$29,917,000
(2021: HK$7,320,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEmRO

The estimated loss rates of loans receivable were based on historical
credit loss experience of the relevant debtors as well as the fair value
of the collateral they pledged to the loans receivable. For those loans
receivable secured by charge over properties located in Hong Kong
with an aggregate amount of HK$31,601,901 (2021: HK$9,115,671),
the Directors considered the loss given default is low, given that the
fair value of the collaterals are higher than the carrying amounts of
the respective loans receivable. The Group has not recognised a loss
allowance for the loans receivable as a result of these collaterals.
For the remaining loan receivables with an aggregate amount of
HK$17,750,984 (2021: HK$22,612), the Group has recognised net
impairment allowance of approximately HK$930,000 on these loans
receivable during the Year.

Manufacturing and Sales Business

This segment represented: (a) the manufacturing and sales of
printing products, such as packaging boxes, labels, paper products
and paper shopping bags, with a worldwide customer base; and (b)
the manufacturing and sales of surgical masks, with a Hong Kong
customer base. The segment revenue decreased by approximately
29.0% to HK$411.8 million (2021: approximately HK$579.7 million)
and the segment loss was approximately HK$6.6 million (2021:
approximately HK$16.5 million). The operations and financial
performance of each sub-segment are detailed below.

(a) Manufacturing and sales of printing products

The segment revenue of the business decreased significantly by
approximately 28.8% to HK$411.8 million for the Year (2021:
approximately HK$578.4 million), mainly attributable to the
decrease in sales orders of all types of printing products from
overseas and domestic clients. The decrease in sales orders
was mainly due to (i) the high level of inventories purchased
but accumulated by customers over previous years; and (ii) the
tightening of anti-pandemic precaution measures imposed by
the PRC Government since the first quarter of the Year which
further suppressed the economic activities of all industries and,
thus, our export and domestic customers have further deferred
their order placement to 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEmRO

Segment loss of approximately HK$6.6 million was recorded
for the Year (2021: approximately HK$10.6 million), mainly
attributable to the following factors:

(ii)

The revenue decreased significantly by 28.8% or
approximately HK$166.6 million as compared with that
of Year 2021.

The ratio of total staff costs and other related expenses
to sales increased for the Year by approximately 6.1%
as compared with that of Year 2021. Although the
total amounts of staff cost of this segment decreased
by approximately 3.6% as compared with that of Year
2021, the significant drop in revenue has pushed up
the ratio of total staff costs to sales for the Year as a
whole.

The negative impact arising from (i) and (ii) was partially offset
by the following factors:

(iii)

The increase in gross profit margin by 2.9 percentage
points to approximately 19.3% for the Year (2021:
approximately 16.4%), mainly due to (a) the change
in product mix of which the percentage of sales of
products with lower material consumption was higher
in the Year; and (b) the decrease in material prices
and average material consumption rate. Both factors
contributed to the overall decrease in average material
consumption to approximately 12.8% during the Year.

Since certain machineries were no longer suitable for
the production of our factories, a gain of approximately
HK$1.6 million arising from the disposal of the same
was recorded.

The exchange gain of approximately HK$12.8 million.
The average exchange rate of Renminbi (“RMB")
against Hong Kong dollars depreciated in the Year
by approximately 4.1% as compared with 2021.
The fluctuation brought about a positive impact on
the segment result as most of the production and
operating expenses were denominated in RMB while
approximately 54.6% of the sales of this segment was
dominated in Hong Kong dollars or currencies other
than RMB.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEmRO

(b) Manufacturing and sales of surgical masks

As mentioned in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the Year 2021, the Group ceased the manufacturing of
surgical masks in 2021 after a thorough review of the financial
performance of this sub-segment. Accordingly, the financial
results of the sales of surgical masks were recorded in the
Trading Business during the Year for better presentation as
stated below.

The revenue and loss of this sub-segment for the Year 2021
were approximately HK$1.3 million and HK$5.9 million
respectively, both of which were included in the Manufacturing
and Sales Business.

Music and Entertainment Business

Revenue from this segment mainly consisted of income from concerts
and shows, artist management fee income, album distribution
income, promotion income and musical work licensing income.

The revenue of the segment decreased by approximately 13.2%
to HK$3.8 million (2021: approximately HK$4.4 million) and the
segment loss for the Year was approximately HK$3.4 million (2021:
approximately HK$4.5 million). The decrease in revenue was mainly
attributable to the decrease in licensing income. Over 50% of the
segment revenue was derived from licensing income from online
music platforms. The decrease in segment loss was mainly attributable
to the decrease in the overall operating expenses of this segment.

Property Development Business

The Group had two property development projects as at 31 December
2022 (31 December 2021: two). During the Year, one project involved
BamhERMERZEAR AT (unoffical English name: Qingyuan
Zhongqing Property Development Company Limited) (“Zhongging”), a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and the other involved
K ENR CBi®) BPFRAE (unofficial English name: Zhongda Printing
(Qingyuan) Company Limited) (“Zhongda Qingyuan”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERE R

Zhongqing

Zhongging held the land use right of two commercial land parcels
in Qingyuan, the PRC (“Qingyuan Land”). On 18 June 2014, #3Il
mHhERBREEEREARAT (unofficial English name: Shenzhen
Zhongxing Guosheng Investment Development Company Limited)
("Zhongxing Guosheng”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
initiated civil proceedings against Zhongging in the People’s Court of
Baoan District (the “"Court”) for, among other matters, the repayment
of the shareholder’s loan contributed by Zhongxing Guosheng
in an amount of RMB23,479,330 (the “Litigation”). On 19 June
2014, pursuant to an application made by Zhongxing Guosheng for
freezing and preserving the assets of Zhongging with a total value of
RMB23,400,000, an order was granted by the Court to freeze and
preserve the Qingyuan Land from 24 June 2014 to 23 June 2016
(the “Freeze Order”), aiming to ensure that Zhongging would have
sufficient assets for the repayment of the shareholder’s loan to the
Group.

Two hearing sessions of the Litigation were held on 18 August 2014
and 25 September 2014, respectively. On 15 October 2014, the
Group received a civil mediation document dated 30 September 2014
(the “Document”) from the Court, acknowledging that: (i) the Group
and Zhongging confirmed that Zhongging was indebted to Zhongxing
Guosheng in a sum of RMB23,479,330; (ii) Zhongging agreed to
repay Zhongxing Guosheng a sum of RMB23,479,330, together
with interests accrued from 18 June 2014 to the date of repayment
which was supposed to be within 15 days of the effective date of
the Document; and (iii) where Zhongging failed to repay the agreed
amount, Zhongxing Guosheng was entitled to request Zhongqging to
pay default interests calculated at two times of the lending rate of the
People’s Bank of China over the same period.

As advised by the Group's legal advisers in the PRC, the effective
date of the Document was 15 October 2014 and the deadline for
repayment by Zhongqing was 30 October 2014 accordingly. As at 30
October 2014, Zhongging did not repay the outstanding shareholder’s
loan and accrued interests to Zhongxing Guosheng.
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On 27 May 2016, Zhongxing Guosheng submitted an application to
the Court for the extension of the term of the Freeze Order and the
application was accepted. The extended term of the Freeze Order
started on 13 June 2016 and ended on 12 June 2019. The period
covered by the Freeze Order was further extended to 12 May 2022 by
the Court on 15 May 2019 and was further extended to 12 May 2025
on 14 April 2022.

During the Year, after assessing the market condition of Qingyuan
City, the government policies and recent development projects, as
well as the professional experts and financial resources of the Group,
the Board considered that it was time to commence the compulsory
enforcement proceedings against Zhongqing to put the Qingyuan
Land for sales in the auction (the “Compulsory Enforcement”).
Further details of the Compulsory Enforcement were disclosed in the
circular of the Company dated 24 June 2022. The shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) passed the resolution to approve
the Compulsory Enforcement at the special general meeting of
the Company held on 15 July 2022 and the Group submitted the
application to the Court to commence the Compulsory Enforcement
in July 2022. As at the date of this report, the Court is still verifying
the land information with the relevant departments in Qingyuan and
the progress is not yet completed. The Company will provide further
update to the Shareholders as and when appropriate.

Zhongda Qingyuan

The Group, through Zhongda Qingyuan, owns a land parcel in
Qingyuan City, the PRC, with a total area of approximately 208,000
square metres (“sgq. m.”) and has been building an industrial park
named £ ¢ EFEA (the “Zhongxing Industrial Park”) with an
array of industrial buildings, commercial buildings, apartments and
dormitories. The buildings thereon are intended for lease or sales. The
plan was approved by the Guangdong Qingyuan High-Tech Industrial
Development Zone Management Office in March 2020 and has been
highly supported by the Qingyuan Government.
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Construction status:

The whole first phase of development of the Zhongxing Industrial
Park comprises 19 industrial buildings, with a total gross floor
area of approximately 133,000 sgq. m.. As at 31 December 2022,
approximately 65% of the aforementioned construction work was
completed according to the supervision reports prepared by the
independent construction company engaged by Zhongda Qingyuan.
Up to the date of this report, the construction work of 14 industrial
buildings is completed and subject to the final inspection by the
independent supervisory company, which will be commenced in
the first half of 2023. The Group will closely monitor the sales of
the industrial buildings and adjust the construction progress of the
remaining buildings as needed.

Sales status.

As at 31 December 2022, Zhongda Qingyuan has signed one sale
and purchase agreement and four provisional sale and purchase
agreements with several customers in respect of approximately 15%
of the total gross floor area of the first phase of development of
the Zhongxing Industrial Park (i.e. 19,948.60 sq. m.). The Group
expects to deliver the relevant industrial buildings to these customers
gradually in 2023 and the revenue therefrom will be recognized
accordingly.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, Zhongda Qingyuan
has signed several cooperation agreements with several banks in the
PRC, pursuant to which Zhongda Qingyuan has agreed to provide
transitional guarantees for the mortgage loans to be granted by these
banks to the purchasers for the acquisition of the industrial buildings
in the Zhongxing Industrial Park and the transitional guarantees
shall be released upon the completion of the relevant mortgage
registrations over the properties. It is the usual commercial practice
in the real estate industry in the PRC that property developers shall
provide a transitional guarantee in favor of the mortgage banks for
the purchasers of properties which are still under development if the
purchasers will settle the purchase price of the property partly by
mortgage loans. Further details were disclosed in the announcements
of the Company dated 31 October 2022, 1 November 2022, 25
November 2022, 2 December 2022, 9 December 2022, 5 January
2023, 6 January 2023, 24 February 2023 and 20 March 2023 and the
circular of the Company dated 28 February 2023.
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As at 31 December 2022, no mortgage loan was granted to any
purchaser and no contingent liabilities in respect of the provision of
the transitional guarantees by the Group were noted.

Property Investment Business

During the Year, the Property Investment Business included the leasing
of several commercial units in Hong Kong and the PRC.

This business involved two properties of the Group as at 31 December
2022 (31 December 2021: three). The first one was a commercial
property in Yuen Long, Hong Kong (the “Yuen Long Property”) which
was leased to an independent third party as at 31 December 2022.
During the Year, due to the adverse economic impact arising from the
persistent spread of COVID-19, the Group provided the tenant with
a rental concession totaling HK$2.1 million. Approximately 82.2% of
the revenue of the Property Investment Business was derived from the
Yuen Long Property.

The second one was a commercial property in Beijing, the PRC (the
“Beijing Property”) which was leased to an independent third party
during the Year, and the annual rental income was approximately
HK$390,000.

According to the Group’s accounting standards, the Yuen Long
Property and the Beijing Property were classified as investment
properties of the Group and were carried at market value. A fair
value loss of approximately HK$14.5 million was recorded in “other
gains and losses” of the Group during the Year (2021: fair value gain
of HK$46.8 million). The fair value loss of the Yuen Long Property
and the Beijing Property were approximately HK$14.4 million and
HK$116,000 respectively. The decrease in fair value of the Yuen Long
Property and the Beijing Property was mainly due to the lower market
value and rental value of adjacent locations.

As at 31 December 2021, this business also included a mini storage
business operated in a self-owned industrial building in Fanling, Hong
Kong (the “Fanling Property”), which was disposed of in January
2022. The revenue of the mini storage business for the Year 2021
was approximately HK$1.6 million, which represented approximately
35.4% of revenue of the Property Investment Business.
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On 21 October 2021, Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited (“Chung
Tai Printing”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, SP (BVI) 1
Limited (the "Purchaser”) and Supreme Cycle Inc. (the “Guarantor”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a provisional
sale and purchase agreement (the “Provisional Agreement”), pursuant
to which Chung Tai Printing conditionally agreed to sell, and the
Purchaser conditionally agreed to purchase, the entire issued share
capital of Profit Link Investment Limited (“Profit Link”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, at the initial purchase price of
HK$231.0 million, subject to adjustments (the “Disposal”). The
principal asset of Profit Link was the Fanling Property. Further details
of the Disposal were disclosed in the announcements of the Company
dated 21 October 2021 and 28 January 2022 and the circular of
the Company dated 17 December 2021. The resolution was passed
at the special general meeting of the Company held on 7 January
2022 and the Disposal was completed on 28 January 2022. The final
consideration was approximately HK$231.0 million and the gain on
the Disposal was approximately HK$76.4 million which was recorded
in “other gains and losses” of the Group during the Year.

Trading Business

Revenue from the Trading Business decreased to approximately
HK$27.8 million (2021: approximately HK$33.1 million) while a
segment loss of approximately HK$4.9 million was recorded during
the Year (2021: approximately HK$3.1 million). The segment loss was
mainly attributable to the increase in operating costs as more sales
agents and employees were employed to develop the Trading Business
both overseas and in Hong Kong which was partially offset by the
increase in gross profit margin by approximately 4.6%.

As mentioned above, the revenue of the sales of surgical masks of
approximately HK$560,000 (2021: approximately HK$1.3 million
which was included in the Manufacturing and Sales Business) was
included in the Trading Business for the Year.
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Securities Trading Business

The Group’s equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) and financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss (“FVTPL") as at 31 December 2022 amounted
to approximately HK$39.7 million (31 December 2021: approximately
HK$47.3 million). During the Year, the Group recorded a fair value
loss in investments of securities listed in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$7.8 million (2021: approximately HK$2.7 million), a realized gain
of approximately HK$442,000 (2021: realized loss of approximately
HK$27,000) and a dividend income of approximately HK$1,115,000
(2021: approximately HK$1,215,000).

The Group’s investments as at 31 December 2022 included securities
of 10 listed companies on the Main Board or GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and
investment in an offshore investment fund, two Hong Kong private
companies and a PRC private company. The carrying amount of
each of the Group’s investments accounted for less than 5% of the
Group's audited total assets as at 31 December 2022. The top five
largest investments amounted to approximately HK$36.0 million,
representing approximately 3.1% of the Group’s audited total assets
as at 31 December 2022.

The largest investment was the investment in an offshore investment
fund named Zhong Wei Capital L.P. (“Zhong Wei"), which
represented 1.33% of the total share capital of Zhong Wei. Zhong
Wei has invested in more than 30 entities including public and private
entities incorporated in Hong Kong and overseas. These entities
principally engaged in, including but not limited to, educational
sector, entertainment and recreational sector, financial technological
sector, healthcare sector and telecommunication sector. Its fair value
as at 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately HK$17.5
million, representing approximately 1.5% of the Group’s audited total
assets as at 31 December 2022.
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The second to fifth largest investments were the investment in Wang
On Group Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange with stock code 01222), Wang On Properties Limited (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange with stock
code 01243), China Agri-Products Exchange Limited (a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange with stock code 00149)
and a private company incorporated in the PRC principally engaged in
entertainment business in the PRC.

The Group will carefully study the market and the information related
to prospective investees before purchasing any securities, and will
closely monitor the performance of investments after the acquisition
as well as revise the investment strategy in a cautious manner when
necessary to minimize the impact of market volatility.
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OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Other gains and losses for the Year mainly comprised the following

H i i B2 5 18
AEEHMKERBBEIEOEUT

items: IE8
2022 2021
- I —F
HKS HKS$
AT BT
Change in fair value of financial assets EBE@EATEYRZ
at FVTPL (Note a) TRMEEZANTELED
(Hi&ta) (7,820,160) (2,722,561)
Change in fair value of investment REME AT EED
properties (Note b) (HizEb) (14,498,870) 46,763,317
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) SNEU R (B548) JF 8 12,968,171 (4,697,543)
Net gain (loss) on disposal of property, plant and HEYZE . BEREHEZ
equipment Wi (B518) B 58 1,625,999 (2,183,026)
Impairment loss on property, plant and MEE . RRBE N E 2 RIE
equipment (Note ¢) &18 (Batc) - (1,934,349)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note d) HE—ZXWBREZ
Wk (fratd) 76,441,616 -

Total HEt 68,716,756 35,225,838

Notes: B

(a) The change in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL consisted of (a) ERBEGmBEATEINERZEHEEZA
the fair value loss of securities traded in the Stock Exchange of TEEHEOERBIMEEZHSFZA
approximately HK$7.8 million (2021: approximately HK$2.7 million). E{EE5E 497,800,000/ T (B - —4F

#92,700,000%7T) ©

(b) The fair value loss of investment properties was mainly related to the (b) SEMEANTEEREFTEHTAYES
Yuen Long Property. For the reason of such loss, please refer to the - BRAZEGENRR F20H EXWE
business and financial review of the Property Investment Business B XN =B O -
above.

() The impairment loss on property, plant and equipment was made for (0) ME-BERKEZREGEBLMEER
the manufacturing and sales of the surgical mask business which was HESNMIOSEBIFL  ZEBER S
ceased during the Year 2021. Z—FE#KIE-

(d) The gain on disposal of a subsidiary was related to the Disposal of (d) HE—FXWBABZWHEPRAHES

Profit Link. For details of such gain, please refer to the business and
financial review of the Property Investment Business above.
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LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The following table sets out the Group’s current ratio, quick ratio and
gearing ratio as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021:

RBEE - BEFERRERR

B

TEBIFEER -FE-_F+=F
=+—BR-FE-—F+-A=+—
AHRBLE EBLEREES AL

=
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Notes jE .- =
HraE +=—B=+—H +—-A=+—H
Current ratio RENLEE (a) 3.0 timesf& 2.3 timesf&
Quick ratio RIEEE (b) 1.6 timesf3 1.5 timesfZ
Gearing ratio BEEBMBIEE (c) 24.9% 17.1%
Notes: Kzt
(a) Current ratio is calculated by dividing total current assets by total (a) nE ttiﬂ*ﬁf%?gﬁé‘% BRERY 42 Eh
current liabilities as at the end of respective year. BERMUEREAEE
(b) Quick ratio is calculated by dividing total current assets less inventories (b) RN t@%ﬂ*ﬁf%fﬁ ERERFNERE
and properties under development for sale by total current liabilities as BENGT 8RG8 E R YRR
at the end of respective year. E=REER=
() Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings by total equity () 'éli’éfitt_’:)_ﬁﬁﬁﬂilg@% FE9 5

as at the end of respective year and then multiplying it by 100%. Total
borrowings as at 31 December 2022 include: (i) the amount due to a
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary; (ii) bank borrowings; and
(iii) lease liabilities.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had short-term bank
deposits, pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$200.9 million (31 December 2021: approximately
HK$149.0 million) and total borrowings of approximately HK$195.9
million (31 December 2021: approximately HK$142.2 million).

The current ratio and quick ratio indicated an ample cash flow and a
stable liquidity position as at 31 December 2022. The gearing ratio of
the Group increased from 17.1% to 24.9% as at 31 December 2022,
mainly due to the increase in total borrowings of the Group and the
reasons for which are stated below.

MABBRPR LI m AR EE B R LL100% 5t B o
EA_E::E-I—_)%_-F HBIE A8
BREE ()EN—ENB AR —%IFER
IRERRIE S (DIR1T R K(iEEARE-

A CE T EFE+ A=+ —H ' &E
BWERRTER BERIRTER
MURKIREKRIBEEEL%200,900,000
Bt (CE_—F+_A=+—H:'H
149,000,000 7T) > MERARZTELA A
195,900,0008 75 (&2 -_—F+_H
=+—H : £142,200,0005 7T) o

R_EBE__F+_RB=+—H n#tt
ERRH LB REENEBEEREK
BEMNRHEESR R - R _E_—

+-_B=+—H ' AEEELAEEL
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—Fo

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE&EZKARAT | Annual Report 2022 F iR

19



20

Management Discussion and Analysis

BERE R

The Group's total borrowings as at 31 December 2022 included: (i) an
amount of approximately HK$17.0 million due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary (31 December 2021: approximately
HK$18.4 million); (ii) secured bank borrowings of approximately
HK$111.2 million (31 December 2021: approximately HK$62.6
million); and (iii) lease liabilities of approximately HK$67.7 million (31
December 2021: approximately HK$61.0 million).

Secured bank borrowings included (i) an amount of approximately
HK$18.1 million (31 December 2021: approximately HK$19.1 million)
payable within seven years and carried interests at the Hong Kong
Inter-bank Offered Rate plus 1.85% per annum; (i) an amount of
approximately HK$50.1 million (31 December 2021: approximately
HK$43.5 million) payable within one year and carried interest at the
Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate plus 1.25% to 2.25% (2021:
1.25% to 2.5%) per annum; and (iii) an amount of approximately
HK$43.0 million (31 December 2021: Nil) was payable within three
years and carried interest at 5.98%. The amount due to the non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary was unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. The weighted average lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate applied in lease liabilities was 4.59%.

All borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and RMB and
the majority of cash and cash equivalents were denominated in RMB,
Hong Kong dollars and U.S. dollars.

The Group generally finances its operation with cash flows generated
internally and bank facilities obtained in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Taking into account the amount of funds expected to be generated
internally and the available banking facilities, the Group will have
adequate resources to meet its future capital expenditure and working
capital requirements. The Group will continue to implement a prudent
policy in managing cash balances, thereby maintaining a strong and
healthy liquidity level to capitalize any potential business opportunity.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERE R

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Looking forward to 2023, it is expected that the Group will be
challenged by all sorts of adversities as the global market continues
to be shadowed by economic and political uncertainties, including
the prolonged political and economic tensions between the PRC and
other countries and the war between Russia and Ukraine may further
intensify the uncertainty of global economy. However, as nearly all
epidemic prevention measures and restrictions among countries
have been relaxed during the Year, the faster recovery of global
economy is reasonably expected. Furthermore, as more policies are
expected to be introduced by the PRC Government to stimulate the
local consumption and economic activities, it is reasonably expected
that more opportunities may be seen for the domestic sales of the
Manufacturing and Sales Business and the Property Development
Business of the Group. In order to cope with the complicated and
ever-changing situations, the Group will carefully revise the strategy
for all its business segments, as well as diversify and expand its
businesses in a cautious way.

Lending Business

Due to the keen market competition, the Group will take calculated
risks when expanding the loan portfolio of the Lending Business.
The Group will continue to cooperate with other money lending
companies and use online money lending platforms to attract more
new customers and allocate more financial resources to expand the
business scale by enlarging the loan portfolio in a prudent way.

Manufacturing and Sales Business and Trading Business

In 2023, the business of the Company will see all sorts of challenges
and opportunities, especially the manufacturing and sales business
of printing products. As nearly all epidemic prevention measures and
restrictions among countries have been relaxed, the restrictions on
international travel among countries were also eased during the Year.
However, the intensified political and economic tensions between the
PRC and other countries may further shift the production of China-
made products to other countries. These impacts may negatively
affect the export sales of the printing products. On the other hand,
more policies are expected to be introduced by the PRC Government
to stimulate the economic activities in the PRC, resulting in more
business opportunities for the domestic sales of the printing products.
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BERE R

All the above factors will affect both the export and domestic sales of
the business to varying extents. As a result, the Group will carefully
revise its sales strategy for the expansion of these market segments
and spare sufficient cash flows to cope with any sudden or prolonged
adverse situation beyond its expectation. As the restrictions on
international travel were eased, the Group will engage more overseas
sales agents and participate in more overseas and domestic trade
fairs so as to reach more new customers in 2023. Furthermore, the
Group will actively participate in the new products development of
the existing and new customers and provide more professional advice
to enhance the products design and decrease the overall production
costs during the new product development. On the other hand,
the Group will also continue to acquire new printing machines and
ancillary equipment for the expanded production line to enhance
production efficiency and lower the defect rate and manpower costs
in production activities.

Quality management and enhancement and credit control on
receivables will remain the top priority of the Manufacturing and Sales
Business in 2023. Meanwhile, the Group will keep sparing dedicated
resources to expand the luxury packaging and paper product segment
which enjoys a higher profit margin. Although the uncertainty of
the global economy is expected to persist in 2023, the Group will
take this opportunity to diversify into the target market sectors with
tightened control on operating costs.

In addition, to cope with the challenges experienced by the printing
industry and to improve the profitability of the business, the Group
will continue to step up its efforts on the following aspects: (i)
efficiency and effectiveness enhancement by streamlining the
production process of its factories to reduce operation and production
wastage; (i) talent recruitment, provision of value-added services and
continuous upgrade of its technology infrastructure; (iii) procurement
of alternative materials, verification of their quality and negotiation
with suppliers for more favourable terms; (iv) market expansion to
cover high-value products and identification of long-term cooperation
or joint venture opportunities with other industry players to expand
the production capacity of factories; and (v) allocation of more
resources to upgrade of facilities and recruitment of skilled labours
to meet varied requirements of clients. All the strategies adopted by
the Group will further equip it with strength and core competence to
tackle unknown challenges in the coming years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEmRO

For the Trading Business, the Group will continue to allocate more
resources to expand and develop the sales team in Hong Kong,
overseas and the PRC, so as to broaden the clientele, optimize the
product mix and provide more value-added services to the existing
and target customers.

Music and Entertainment Business

As stated above, as nearly all the epidemic prevention measures and
restrictions among countries have been relaxed during the Year, all
outdoor activities have been gradually resumed. As mentioned in the
annual reports of the Company in previous years, the overseas talent
show invested by the Group has been postponed due to the tightened
epidemic prevention measures. The Group and its partners expect to
launch the first talent show in Hong Kong in 2023 after all restrictions
have been relaxed. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to explore
more show investments in Hong Kong and overseas and expand the
music licensing business by acquisition or via licensing of existing
catalogues from other song master owners to expand the revenue
streams of the Music and Entertainment Business.

Property Development Business

For Zhongging, as mentioned in the business and financial review
section of the Property Development Business above, the Group
is waiting for the completion of internal procedures of the Court
and will provide further update to the Shareholders as and when
appropriate.

Zhongda Qingyuan has signed one more provisional sale and purchase
agreement since the end of the Year, involving a gross floor area
of approximately 22,000 sq. m.. As at the date of this report, the
total gross floor areas sold were approximately 42,000 sq. m. which
represented approximately 32% of the total gross floor area of the
first phase of development of the Zhongxing Industrial Park. The
Group will deliver the relevant industrial buildings to the purchasers
gradually in 2023.

For 2023, the Group will continue to devote more resources in the
sales and marketing activities of the Zhongxing Industrial Park, such
as engaging more property agents to reach more potential customers
and organizing more group and individual tours for potential
customers to visit the Zhongxing Industrial Park. Furthermore, the
Group will continue to work with more local banks to offer different
mortgage plans to the potential customers. Subject to the current
sales progress of the first phase of development of the Zhongxing
Industrial Park, the Group may commence the construction plan of its
second phase of development in 2023, if appropriate.
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Property Investment Business

No material fluctuation is expected for the Property Investment
Business and the Group will continue to monitor the rental market
condition in Hong Kong and the PRC and adjust the strategies, if
necessary.

Securities Trading Business

The Group expects that the fair value of equity securities listed in
Hong Kong may keep fluctuating in the foreseeable future due to the
volatile global economy. In light of this, the Group will closely monitor
the general market and market data related to prospective investees
before committing to any securities investment, and will pay attention
to the performance of the investments after purchasing as well as
make necessary adjustment to the investment strategy in a cautious
manner so as to alleviate the impact of extreme market swings.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group’s sales and purchases were mainly denominated in
Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and U.S. dollars. Except for RMB,
there was no significant fluctuation in the exchange rate of Hong
Kong dollars and U.S. dollars during the Year. The management will
closely monitor the foreign exchange rate risk of RMB and identify
the significant adverse impact (if any) on the Group’s operations in
the PRC. The Group did not use any financial instrument for hedging
purpose during the Year and it did not have any outstanding hedging
instrument as at 31 December 2022. The Group will consider using
appropriate hedging solutions when necessary.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the Year, capital expenditure of the Group for property,
plant and equipment, investment properties and properties under
development for sales amounted to approximately HK$15.6 million
(Year 2021: approximately HK$24.7 million), approximately HK$5.1
million (Year 2021: Nil) and approximately HK$146.9 million (Year
2021: HK$68.5 million) respectively. The capital expenditure for the
Year was mainly attributable to the acquisition of machineries for
production in the PRC, the addition of right of use assets from the
leased offices and warehouses and the construction work conducted
on the Zhongxing Industrial Park.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately HK$177.2 million (31 December 2021: approximately
HK$269.1 million) which had been contracted for but had not
been provided for in the financial statements for the acquisition
of property, plant and equipment and construction work on the
Zhongxing Industrial Park. The Group did not have any capital
commitment for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
that had been authorised but not contracted for in both reporting
periods. The Group expects to finance the capital commitments by
internal resources and bank borrowings.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had pledged bank deposits,
investment properties and properties under development for sales
with an aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$442.3 million
(31 December 2021: approximately HK$252.1 million) to secure the
construction loan of the Zhongxing Industrial Park, the mortgage loan
of certain investment properties and general banking facilities granted
to the Group. Save as aforesaid, no other assets were pledged by the
Group as at 31 December 2022.

SHARE CAPITAL AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There was no change in the share capital and capital structure of the
Company during the Year.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had approximately 1,190 full-
time employees (31 December 2021: approximately 1,320). Total
staff costs (including Directors’ remuneration) for the Year were
approximately HK$176.8 million (Year 2021: approximately HK$176.4
million).
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The remuneration schemes of the Group are generally structured
with reference to market conditions and the qualifications of the
employees, and the reward packages including discretionary bonus for
staff members are generally reviewed on an annual basis according
to the performance of the Group and respective staff members.
Apart from salary payments and contributions to retirement benefit
schemes, other staff benefits include participation in share option
scheme and medical insurance for eligible employees. In-house and
external training programmes are also provided as and when required.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES OR ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
DURING THE YEAR

Save as disclosed below, the Group had no material acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the Year.

Disposal of Profit Link

On 21 October 2021, Chung Tai Printing, the Purchaser and the
Guarantor entered into the Provisional Agreement, pursuant to which
Chung Tai Printing conditionally agreed to sell, and the Purchaser
conditionally agreed to purchase, the entire issued share capital of
Profit Link at the initial purchase price of HK$231.0 million, subject
to adjustments. The principal asset of Profit Link was the Fanling
Property.

As at 31 December 2021, the Disposal was not completed, pending
the fulfilment of the conditions precedent set out in the Provisional
Agreement.

At a special general meeting of the Company held on 7 January
2022, the Shareholders approved the Disposal and completion of the
Disposal took place in accordance with the terms of the Provisional
Agreement on 28 January 2022. Upon completion, the Company has
ceased to have any interest in Profit Link and Profit Link has ceased to
be a subsidiary of the Company.
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The Disposal constituted a very substantial disposal of the Company
under Chapter 14 of the Rules (the "Listing Rules”) Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange. Please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 21 October 2021 and 28
January 2022 and the circular of the Company dated 17 December
2021 for further details of the Disposal.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed below, there have been no significant events since
the end of the Year and up to the date of this report.

Provision of transitional guarantee(s)

On 9 December 2022, Zhongda Qingyuan entered into two
cooperation agreements (the “Cooperation Agreements”) with the
Dongcheng Branch of Guangdong Qingyuan Rural Commercial Bank
Company Limited ("Qingyuan Bank”) and the Guangzhou Dongshan
Branch of Bank of China Limited (“Bank of China”, together with the
Qingyuan Bank, the “Lending Banks”), pursuant to which Zhongda
Qingyuan agreed to provide transitional guarantee(s) in respect of
the repayment obligations of the purchaser(s) who/which will apply
for mortgage loan(s) from one of the Lending Banks to fund the
acquisition of the industrial buildings in the Zhongxing Industrial Park.

The provision of the transitional guarantee(s) under each of the
Cooperation Agreements constitutes a major transaction for the
Company. At a special general meeting of the Company held on 17
March 2023, the Cooperation Agreements were approved by the
Shareholders. Please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 9 December 2022 and 17 March 2023 and the circular of
the Company dated 28 February 2023 for further details of the
Cooperation Agreements.
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Corporate Governance Report

EEERERS

The Board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Neway
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is pleased to present this Corporate
Governance Report in the annual report of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year").

The Company acknowledges the important roles of the Board in
providing effective leadership and direction to the Company’s business
and ensuring transparency and accountability of the Company
operations. The Board recognises that good corporate governance
practices are vital to maintain and promote shareholder value and
investor confidence and has adopted the code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Part
2 of Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate
governance. The Company is committed to enhancing and reviewing
its corporate governance practices from time to time to ensure that
they align with the latest development of the Group.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has applied the principles
of and complied with the code provisions set out in the CG Code
throughout the Year.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors take
decisions objectively in the interests of the Company and in the
attainment of the objective of creating value to the shareholders
of the Company. Every Director carries out his duty in good faith in
compliance with the standards of applicable laws and regulations and
acts in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole
at all times.

Board Composition

The Board comprises eight members during the Year and as at
the date of this Corporate Governance Report, which include
two executive Directors, three non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The composition of the Board
has a balance of expertise, skills and experience necessary for
independent decision-making.
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Corporate Governance Report
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The Board comprises the following Directors during the Year and up
to the date of this Corporate Governance Report:

Executive Directors:
Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman)
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors:

Dr. NG Wai Kwan

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren
Mr. WONG Sun Fat

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. LEE Kwok Wan

Mr. LAI Sai Wo, Ricky

Mr. CHU Gun Pui

Alternate Director:
Mr. LAU Kam Cheong (alternate Director to Dr. NG Wai Kwan)
(resigned on 31 January 2022)

The audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”) comprises
the following members during the Year and up to the date of this
Corporate Governance Report:

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (Chairman)
Mr. WONG Sun Fat
Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky
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EERERRS

THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The remuneration committee of the Board (the “Remuneration
Committee”) comprises the following members during the Year and
up to the date of this Corporate Governance Report:

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (Chairman)
Mr. WONG Sun Fat
Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky

The nomination committee of the Board (the “Nomination
Committee”) comprises the following members during the Year and
up to the date of this Corporate Governance Report:

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman)
Mr. LEE Kwok Wan
Mr. CHU Gun Pui

The names of the Directors on the relevant dates are disclosed in all
corporate communications issued by the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, the chief executive officer of the Company
(the “Chief Executive Officer”), is the uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun,
Ernie, the chairman of the Company (the “Chairman”). The detailed
relationships among members of the Board are disclosed under the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” on pages 50 to 54.

During the Year, the Board has at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to (i) the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise; and (ii) the appointment of independent non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board.
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EERERRS

THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The Company has adopted an independent views policy (the
“Independent Views Policy”) in accordance with the CG Code,
pursuant to which the independent non-executive Directors are
required to, among others: (i) keep up-to-date with the Company’s
business affairs and be involved in scrutinising the Company’s
performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and objectives,
and monitor performance reporting; (ii) bring independent judgment
to bear on issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and standards of conduct, and help
review some of the Board's major decisions and the Company’s
performance in relation to corporate goals, and monitor performance
reporting; (iii) take the lead where potential conflicts of interest arise;
and (iv) serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee and other governance committees of the
Board, if invited.

According to the Independent Views Policy, the independent non-
executive Directors shall allocate sufficient time to discharge their
responsibilities and should not accept an invitation to serve as an
independent non-executive Director on the Board unless they can
devote adequate time and effort to the work involved. Independent
non-executive Directors sitting on multiple boards of directors of listed
companies will need to ensure that they devote sufficient time and
dedicate adequate attention to each board and board committee.
In addition, the independent non-executive Directors shall at least
annually attend meeting with the Chairman of the Board without the
presence of other Directors. The Independent Views Policy and its
implementation and effectiveness are reviewed by the Board annually.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
existing independent non-executive Director of his independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all existing independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set out
in the Listing Rules.

The non-executive Directors bring a wide range of business
and financial expertise and experiences to the Board. Through
participation in Board meetings and serving on Board committees, all
non-executive Directors make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company.
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EERERRS

THE BOARD (Continued)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by
different persons in order to preserve independence and a balanced
judgement of views. The Chairman, Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, is
primarily responsible for ensuring that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are established.

The Chairman has encouraged all Directors to make a full and active
contribution to the Board's affairs and take the lead to ensure that
it acts in the best interests of the Company. Directors with different
views are encouraged to voice their concerns and they are allowed
sufficient time to discuss issues in meetings to ensure that Board
decisions fairly reflect Board consensus.

During the Year, the Chairman has held meetings with the
independent non-executive Directors without the executive Directors
present. The Chairman has ensured that appropriate steps are
taken to provide effective communication with shareholders of the
Company and that their views are communicated to the Board as a
whole.

The Chairman has promoted a culture of openness and debate by
facilitating the effective contribution of non-executive Directors in
particular and ensuring constructive relations between the executive
and non-executive Directors.

The Chief Executive Officer, Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, is responsible for
running the Company’s businesses and developing and implementing
the Group's strategic plans and business goals.

Despite that the Chief Executive Officer and the Chairman are uncle
and nephew, they consider issues and make decisions independently.
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EERERRS

THE BOARD (Continued)
Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the existing non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company. Mr. LEE Kwok Wan was appointed for a term of three
years from 5 April 2022 to 4 April 2025, Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky was
appointed for a term of three years from 19 April 2023 to 18 April
2026, and Mr. CHU Gun Pui was appointed for a term of three years
from 23 June 2020 to 22 June 2023. Save for the above, all other
non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term of three years
from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2025. The term of appointment of
each Director is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Company’s bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”) and the
Listing Rules and the terms and conditions of their respective letters of
appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are laid down in the Bye-laws and the nomination policy
adopted by the Company. Please refer to the paragraph headed
“Nomination Committee” below for further details of the nomination
policy of the Company.

Induction and Continuing Development for Directors

The Directors are encouraged to attend external seminars and training
programmes at the Company’s expense to update themselves with
the legal and regulatory developments and the business and market
changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Briefings
and professional development trainings will be arranged for the
Directors whenever necessary.

Professional Training for Directors

Each of the Directors, namely Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, Mr. SUEK
Chai Hong, Dr. NG Wai Kwan, Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren, Mr.
WONG Sun Fat, Mr. LEE Kwok Wan, Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky and Mr.
CHU Gun Pui confirmed to the Company that they had complied
with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code during the Year by reading
all materials provided by the company secretary of the Company
(the “"Company Secretary”) and/or attending trainings on the topics
relating to the updates on the new requirements under the Listing
Rules launched by professional parties.
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EERERRS

THE BOARD (Continued)
Company Secretary

Ms. CHEUNG Yuk Shan joined the Group as the Company Secretary
since 23 August 2010. Acting as the Company Secretary, Ms.
CHEUNG Yuk Shan reports to the Board and is responsible for advising
the Board on corporate governance matters. She has taken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the Year in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General
Meetings

Board practices and conduct of meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings were served to all Directors at least
14 days before the meetings during the Year. For other Board and
committee meetings, reasonable notices were given. All Directors
were given an opportunity to included matters in the agenda for
discussion.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information were sent to all Directors at least three days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting during the Year to keep the
Directors apprised of the latest development and financial position of
the Company and to enable them to make informed decisions. The
Board and each Director also had separate and independent access to
the senior management whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking and keeping minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. During the Year,
draft minutes containing significant details for any decision and
recommendation made during the meetings were normally circulated
to the Directors for comment within a reasonable time after each
meeting and the final version was open for the Directors’ inspection.

The Bye-laws contain provisions, with certain permitted exemptions,
requiring Director(s) to abstain from voting and not to be counted
in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which
such Director(s) or any of their respective associates have a material
interest.
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TEER/RS

THE BOARD (Continued) EEE (H

Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General EFETER - EFEETTERE
Meetings (Continued) RAE (B

Directors’ attendance records EFEHFELR

During the Year, the Board held four meetings, two of which were NAREE - S8R TOAIH &
regular Board meetings for reviewing and approving the financial PR AEESTMER AL ERER
and operating performance of the Group. The Company did not RSB BT R T 2 ERE&H oK
announce its quarterly results and hence did not consider the holding NEmEABEEES  AIEAATR
of quarterly meetings necessary. R ENBRITETE R

The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of MUTFFESARESENEAEELEREEAN

the Board, the Board committees and at the general meetings of the TEETTE EESET e NRE
Company for the Year is set out below: KRG ZECHE !

Attendance/Number of meetings
held during the Year
REEEHRRE ERETRY

Two Special Annual Special

General General General

Meetings Meeting Meeting

held on held on held on

Audit Remuneration Nomination 7 January 27 May 15 July

Name of Directors Board Committee  Committee = Committee 2022 2022 2022
RIEZZF WZZZZF RIZT-Z

—AtH RAZ+tH +tA+ER
BIZAR 232 232

EEiL EX® ERZEY FWZEET RAZET REEIAT BRRBEAY BRRRFIAE
Executive Directors HITES
- Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie —BEBLE 4/4 N/A N/A il 212 il il
(Chairman) (/) TEH TER
~Mr. SUEK Chai Hong -BEELE 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 212 11 11
(Chief Executive Officer) (1TH4E%) TER TEA TER
Non-executive Directors FHITES
~ Dr. NG Wai Kwan —SEEEL 414 N/A N/A N/A 22 17 17N
~ER ~ER ~ER
- Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren — —BRYE# 4 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 212 7 "
A A A
- Mr. WONG Sun Fat =tk v 4/4 22 171 N/A 21 171 171
~ER
Independent Non-executive B FHTESR
Directors
— Mr. LEE Kwok Wan -FHERE 4/4 212 1”1 1”1 212 17 17
- Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky —BALE 4/4 212 1”1 N/A 212 1”1 1”1
AEA
- Mr. CHU Gun Pui —REMEE 4/4 N/A N/A 17 22 17 17
~ER ~ER
Note: Mr. LAU Kam Cheong resigned as alternate Director of Dr. NG Wai sk : BWEXEENR S ZF—H=+—
Kwan on 31 January 2022. No meeting of the Board has been held HETRBHE T 2 BEES - HEHER]
before his resignation. BERTERNEETEH
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the Year.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”)
for securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
was noted by the Company during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance for
Directors and officers of the Group for indemnifying their liabilities
arising from corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
on an annual basis.

DELEGATION

In practice, the Board takes responsibility for decision making in all
major matters of the Company including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, the setting of objectives and overall strategies,
internal controls and risk management systems, material transactions
(in particular those may involve a conflict of interests), appointment
of Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.
The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the designated officers. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board before the designated officers enter into any
significant transactions and they have the Board’s full support in the
discharge of their responsibilities.
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DELEGATION (Continued)

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. Each Director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company's expense, upon making request to the Board.

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the investment management committee (the “Investment
Management Committee”) for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company'’s affairs. All Board committees are established with defined
written terms of reference.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this Corporate Governance Report, the
Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (chairman) and Mr. LAl Sai Wo,
Ricky, and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. WONG Sun Fat, the
majority of which was independent non-executive Directors.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on the remuneration policy and structure
and remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his
associates will participate in deciding such Director’s remuneration.
Remuneration of each Director is determined by reference to the
Group's operating results, the duties and responsibilities of the
Director within the Company, the performance of the Director
and the Company as well as market practice and conditions. The
Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the
Chief Executive Officer in relation to its proposals relating to the
remuneration of the executive Directors and shall have access to
professional advice at the Company's expense, if necessary. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for reviewing and
approving matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting
to review the remuneration of the existing Directors and made
recommendation to the Board in relation thereto.
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DELEGATION (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Company did not have other member of senior management
other than the Directors during the Year.

The written terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee are
published on the websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.
hk) and of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) respectively and
are available to shareholders upon request.

Investment Management Committee

For the purpose of effective and timely management of the
investment matters of the Company, and in order to cope with the
Company's business development in the future, a committee of
the Board known as the Investment Management Committee was
established in March 2014 for identifying, assessing and analysing all
investment opportunities for the Group and making recommendations
on acquisition and/or disposal of the Group to the Board from time to
time.

The Investment Management Committee comprises four members,
namely Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman), Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, Mr.
CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren, and Ms. CHEUNG Yuk Shan throughout
the Year and up to the date of this Corporate Governance Report,
all of whom possess experience and familiarity with financial and
investment analysis.

During the Year, the Investment Management Committee held two
meetings and all members of the Investment Management Committee
attended such meetings.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises an executive Director, namely
Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman), and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. LEE Kwok Wan and Mr. CHU Gun
Pui. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board and the appointment
of new Directors from time to time, so as to ensure that it has a
balanced composition of candidates appropriate for the requirements
of the businesses of the Company. The Nomination Committee is
also responsible for assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and reviewing the succession plan for the
Directors, in particular the chairman of the Board.
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DELEGATION (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

The written terms of reference for the Nomination Committee are
published on the websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.hk)
and of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) respectively and are
available to shareholders upon request.

Since December 2018, the Company has adopted a nomination policy
(the “Nomination Policy”) for the nomination of directors so as to
ensure the Board has the appropriate balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives that are required to support the execution
of the Company’s business strategy and in order for the Board to be
effective.

The Nomination Committee has primary responsibility for identifying
suitably qualified candidates to become members of the Board
and making recommendations to shareholders of the Company for
election as Directors at general meetings or appoint Directors to
fill casual vacancies, and in carrying out this responsibility, will give
adequate consideration to the Nomination Policy.

According to the Nomination Policy, Board appointments will
be made on merit and candidates will be considered against an
objective criteria. In assessing the suitability of a proposed Director,
the Nomination Committee will consider the candidate’s academic
background and qualifications; experience in the industry; character
and integrity; willingness and capacity to devote adequate time in
the discharge of a director’s duties; and will also consider whether
the candidate can contribute to the Board a diversity of perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service.

The Nomination Committee may nominate or invite a candidate
for appointment as a Director for consideration. The Nomination
Committee shall evaluate the personal profile of each of the
candidates based on the criteria as set out in the Nomination Policy.
The Nomination Committee shall also undertake adequate due
diligence in respect of each candidate and make recommendation for
the Board'’s consideration and approval.
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Corporate Governance Report
EERERRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board has not established a corporate governance committee.
Instead, the full Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance function such as developing and reviewing the policies
and practices of the Company on corporate governance, reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional development
of the Directors and senior management, reviewing the policies and
practices of the Company on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements and developing and reviewing and monitoring the codes
of conduct applicable to employees and Directors. During the Year,
the Board reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
the disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”). In assessing the Board's composition, the Board would
consider a range of measurable objectives set out in the Board
Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender, age, race, cultural
and educational background, knowledge, professional experience
and skills. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and the
contribution that the selected candidates may bring to the Board.
As at the date of this Corporate Governance Report, the Board does
not have any female member. In order to achieve gender diversity on
the Board, the Company is committed to appoint at least one female
Director by 31 December 2024.

As at 31 December 2022, the gender ratio of the Group’s workforce
(including senior management) was 54:46 male to female.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the Year.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.
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Corporate Governance Report
EERERRS

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of Financial
Statements (Continued)

The management has provided all Directors with monthly updates
containing such explanation and information to the Board so as to
enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
information put to the Board for approval and the financial position of
the Company.

Further explanation as to how the Company generates or preserves
value over the longer term and the strategy for delivering the
Company’s objectives is set out under “Management Discussion and
Analysis” from pages 6 to 27 of this report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

During the Year, the Group complied with code provision D.2.1 of the
CG Code by maintaining appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems. The management of the Company is
responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring of such
systems while the Board oversees the management in performing its
duties on an ongoing basis. Main features of the risk management
and internal control systems are described below:

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the risk
associated with its business and operations, including environmental,
social and governance (“ESG") risks. The system comprises the
following phases:

o Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of objectives;

o Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly; and

o Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and monitor the residual risks on
an on-going basis.

Based on the risk assessments conducted during the Year, no
significant risk was identified.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
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Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (the “COSO”) 2013 framework. The
framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The
components of the framework are shown as follows:
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o Control environment: A set of standards, processes and °
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
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control across the Group;

Risk assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analysing risks to achieve the Group's
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks should be
managed;

Control activities: Actions established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks for the achievement of objectives are carried out;

Information and communication: Internal and external
communications to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls; and

Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each component of the internal control system is
present and functioning.

Neway Group Holdings Limited RE2&@EZERRAR/AS | Annual Report 2022 F iR

RIRIE

. JR\ B 5T G - — 18R e o0 A LB
WENRE R RBRE  UEREKE
ERER HEENMNEEERR
EERR

. BEAE BBBRMERGIE
TE URREEESBERER
MikBEBRBIECEZEENT;

. B RBE  NERINBRER
HEEERHEETHERZEME
BWER ; &

. BEE  FERBILRTEUEE
RNEREIER MRS EAB O ES
FHEREEIER-



Corporate Governance Report
EERERRS

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Internal Control System (Continued)

In order to enhance the Group's system of handling inside information
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness
of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and implements
an inside information policy and procedures. Certain reasonable
measures have been taken from time to time to ensure that proper
safeguards are in place to prevent a breach of disclosure requirement
in relation to the Group, which include:

o the access to information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality;

o confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group enters
into significant negotiations; and

o the executive Directors are designated persons who speak on
behalf of the Company when communicating with external
parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted during the Year, no
significant control deficiency was identified.

Internal Audit Function

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA") function, which consists of
professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Certified Public
Accountant). The IA function is independent of the Group's daily
operation and carries out appraisal of the risk management and
internal control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and
tests of operating effectiveness.

An |IA plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal control
systems is conducted annually, covering a period of each financial year
and the results are reported to the Board via the Audit Committee
afterwards.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and ensuring that a review of the effectiveness
of these systems has been conducted annually. However, such
systems are designed to limit the risks to which the Group exposes
to an acceptable level but not eliminate them. Hence, such systems
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatements in financial information and record or loss.
Several areas have been considered during the Board’s review, which
include but are not limited to (i) changes in the nature and extent
of significant risks (including ESG risks) since the last annual review
and the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment; and (i) the scope and quality of management’s
on-going monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems.

Furthermore, to comply with code provision D.2.2 of the CG Code,
the Board also included a review of the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, internal audit as well as the
function relating to its ESG performance and reporting, their training
programmes and budget in its annual review during the Year.

The Board has engaged an external professional internal control
consultant firm, Roma Risk Advisory Limited (“Roma”) to conduct
a review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems and to give recommendations to make
any enhancement during the Year. Such review covered material
controls on corporate level control, financial reporting and disclosure
management, compliance management, sales and accounts receivable
management and cash and treasury management for all business
segments of the Group and did not reveal any significant defects.
Roma has reported major findings and areas for improvement to
the Audit Committee. Relevant recommendations made by Roma
have been properly followed up by the Group to further enhance
its internal control policies, procedures and practices. The Audit
Committee reviewed the internal control review report issued by
Roma on the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
for the Year and considered that such systems are effective and
adequate.
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EERERRS

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Audit Committee

During the Year and as at the date of this Corporate Governance
Report, the Audit Committee comprises two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (chairman) and Mr. LAI
Sai Wo, Ricky, and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. WONG Sun
Fat, the majority of which was independent non-executive Directors
(including at least one independent non-executive Director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise). None of the members of
the Audit Committee was a former partner of the Company’s existing
external auditors.

The written terms of reference for the Audit Committee are published
on the websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.hk) and of
the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) respectively and are available
to shareholders upon request.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

o to review the financial statements and reports of the Company
and consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
Company's staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function and external auditors before submission to
the Board;

o to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management systems via the IA function and their associated
procedures; and

o to review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement and make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings and
reviewed the Group’s final results and annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2022. The Audit Committee also reviewed with the
management the Group’s accounting policies, the risk management
and internal control systems via the IA function and the effectiveness
of the Company’s IA function. It also discussed auditing, internal
controls and financial reporting matters of the Group, reported to
the Board on material issues, if any, and made recommendations to
the Board. It reviewed the work performed and fees charged by the
external auditors and made recommendation to the Board on the re-
appointment of external auditors.

The Company's final results for the Year have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee. There are no material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection and appointment of external
auditors.

External Auditors and Auditor’s Remuneration

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 146 to 152.

For the Year, the remuneration paid/payable to the external auditors
of the Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services
amounted to HK$1,915,000 and HK$606,000 respectively. The non-
audit services charged by the external auditors of the Company for
the Year included (i) interim review of the financial statements of
the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2022; (ii) filling of
tax return of the Company and its subsidiaries; and (iii) professional
services rendered on notifiable transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules conducted during the Year.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communications with the
shareholders are essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The Group also recognises the importance of transparency
and timely disclosure of corporate information to enable shareholders
and investors to make the best investment decision.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. The Company has adopted
a shareholders communication policy (the “Shareholders
Communication Policy”) in accordance with the CG Code which
provides for different communication channels between the Company
and the shareholders. According to the Shareholders Communication
Policy, the Board is committed to providing clear and full information
of the Group to the shareholders in a timely and effective manner
through sending the shareholders the Company’s interim and annual
reports, notices of general meeting, circulars, notices, proxy forms
and other documents as and when appropriate and providing
additional information to the shareholders on the Company’s website
from time to time. Designated officers maintain regular dialogue
with institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of
the Company's developments. Investors may write directly to the
Company at the principal place of business in Hong Kong for any
enquiries. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative
and timely manner.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Company encourages its shareholders to attend general meetings
to ensure a high level of accountability to the shareholders and
for the shareholders to stay informed of the Group's strategy and
goals. External auditors, the Chairman as well as the chairmen of
the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee or, in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, normally
attend the annual general meeting and other relevant general
meetings of the Company to answer questions from the shareholders.

During the Year, the Company had arranged for the notice of its
annual general meeting held on 27 May 2022 (the “2022 AGM") to
be sent to its shareholders at least 20 clear business days beforehand
and at least 10 clear business days for all other general meetings.
All members of the Board and the external auditors attended the
2022 AGM. In light of the above, the Board was satisfied with the
implementation and effectiveness of the Shareholders Communication
Policy.
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EEERERS

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS (Continued)

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, shareholders of the Company
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may
do so in accordance with Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, as amended from time to time. The written requisition
must state the objects of the meeting, and must be signed by the
relevant shareholder(s) and deposited to the Company Secretary at
the Company'’s principal place of business.

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, (i) shareholders
representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights
of all shareholders having a right to vote at the general meeting;
or (ii) not less than one hundred shareholders, can submit a written
requisition stating the resolution which is intended to be moved
at a general meeting, or to submit a statement of not more than
one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

Shareholders who wish to put forward any enquiry to the Board
may send such written enquiry to the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong, to the attention of the Company Secretary.

The Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited, deals with shareholders’ questions on
their shareholdings and related share registration matters.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed at general meetings on each substantially
separate issue, including the election of individual Director.

All resolutions put forward at a general meeting will be taken by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results will be uploaded on
the websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.hk) and of the
Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) respectively after the general
meeting.
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EEERERS

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, the Company has amended the Bye-laws to give
effect to, among others, the following: (i) to bring the Bye-laws to
conform to the core shareholder protection standards that apply
to all issuers to provide the same level of protection to all investors
as set out in Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules; (ii) to allow general
meetings of the Company to be held as a physical meeting in any
part of the world and at one or more locations, or as an electronic
meeting or as a hybrid meeting; (iii) to allow the Directors to postpone
or make changes to a general meeting when they in their absolute
discretion consider it is inappropriate, impracticable, unreasonable
or undesirable to hold the general meeting on or at the scheduled
date or time or place or in the scheduled form, for example, in case
of bad weather conditions or other similar events; (iv) to provide for
more physical and electronic channels for the giving or issue of any
notice or document by or on behalf of the Company; (v) to modify
the definition of “associates” into that of “close associate”, and
making corresponding changes to the relevant provisions (including
the provision providing that a Director shall not vote on (nor be
counted in the quorum) in relation to any Board resolution approving
any contract or arrangement or any other proposal in which he or
any of his close associates is materially interested and the provision
in relation to prohibition of loan to Directors); and (vi) to make
other housekeeping amendments, including making consequential
amendments in line with the above amendments to the then Bye-laws
and bringing the Bye-laws to be aligned with the latest Companies
Act of Bermuda. These amendments became effective on 27 May
2022.

The adoption of the amended and restated Bye-laws was duly
approved by the shareholders as a special resolution of the Company
at the 2022 AGM, further details of which are set out in the circular
of the Company dated 28 April 2022, the notice of 2022 AGM dated
28 April 2022, and the poll results announcement of the Company
dated 27 May 2022.

The amended and restated Bye-laws could be found on the websites
of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EFZEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, aged 44, was appointed as the Chairman
since August 2009. He has been an executive Director since July 2004
and the chief executive officer of the Company from November 2007
to 31 August 2009. He is currently the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. He is also a director of a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie obtained an EMBA degree and
a Master degree in marketing from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong in 2008 and 2003 respectively. He had two years of experience
in investment banking and subsequently moved to commercial sector
and acted as a director of a private company for two years. Mr. SUEK
Ka Lun, Ernie possesses sophisticated and professional management
experience and is familiar with investment analysis. He is responsible
for monitoring the Group’s business development and to search
for business opportunities in the PRC market and overseas. Mr.
SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie has not entered into any service contract with
the Company and there is no designated length of service but his
appointment is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and
other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules. As at the date of this report, Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie is entitled
to receive a remuneration of HK$2,310,000 per annum.

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie is the nephew of Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, an
executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer, and Dr. NG Wai
Kwan, a non-executive Director.

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, is a director of CNA Company Limited and
Longoing Limited, which has an interest in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and Divisions 3 of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, aged 61, was appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer since August 2009 and has been appointed as an executive
Director since 1992. He is also a director of a number of subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. SUEK Chai Hong obtained a Bachelor degree
of Business Administration in Finance from the York University,
Canada. He has more than 30 years of experience in marketing and
is responsible for running the Company’s businesses and developing
and implementing the Group's strategic plans and business goals.
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong has not entered into any service contract with
the Company and there is no designated length of service but his
appointment is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and
other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules. As at the date of this report, Mr. SUEK Chai Hong is entitled to
receive a remuneration of HK$1,386,000 per annum.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong is the uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, an
executive Director and the Chairman.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EFZEE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. NG Wai Kwan, aged 73, was appointed as an non-executive
Director in March 2007. Dr. NG Wai Kwan holds an engineering
doctorate degree from the University of Warwick in the United
Kingdom. Dr. NG Wai Kwan has over 40 years' experience in global
supply chain management, logistics planning, innovation and
executive and leadership development.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Dr. NG
Wai Kwan and the Group, Dr. NG Wai Kwan has been appointed
for a term of three years commenced from 1 April 2022 until 31
March 2025 subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and
other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules and the terms and conditions of his letter of appointment. As
at the date of this report, Dr. NG Wai Kwan is entitled to receive a
remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum.

Dr. NG Wai Kwan is the uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, an executive
Director and the Chairman.

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren, aged 71, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in February 2002 and was re-
designated as a non-executive Director in November 2007. Mr.
CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants (UK) and a fellow member of the
Institute of the Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and the Chartered Global
Management Accountant.

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren has over 40 years of experience
in financial management, corporate administration and corporate
finance in several multinational corporations and listed public
companies.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Mr.
CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren and the Group, Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi,
Warren has been appointed for a term of three years commenced
from 1 April 2022 until 31 March 2025 subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election and other related provisions as stipulated
in the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules and the terms and conditions
of his letter of appointment. As at the date of this report,
Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren is entitled to receive a remuneration of
HK$169,992 per annum.
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EFZEE

Mr. WONG Sun Fat, aged 67, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director from December 1994 to August 2009 and
re-designated as a non-executive Director in August 2009. He is
currently a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. WONG Sun Fat holds a Bachelor degree of Arts from
The University of Hong Kong and has over 35 years of experience in
electronic products business and vast experience in manufacturing
operations.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Mr.
WONG Sun Fat and the Group, Mr. WONG Sun Fat has been
appointed for a term of three years commenced from 1 April 2022
until 31 March 2025 subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election and other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws
and the Listing Rules and the terms and conditions of his letter of
appointment. As at the date of this report, Mr. WONG Sun Fat is
entitled to receive a remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan, aged 55, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in April 2013. He is currently a member
of the Nomination Committee, and the chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. LEE Kwok Wan
holds a MBA degree in Business Administration and a Bachelor
degree in Commerce and Accountancy and is an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the CPA
Australia. Mr. LEE Kwok Wan has more than 25 years of accounting
and management experience. He is the chief financial officer of a
sizable company in Hong Kong engaging in the manufacturing of
watches. He was once appointed as the company secretary of the
Company from March 2007 to May 2008.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Mr. LEE
Kwok Wan and the Group, Mr. LEE Kwok Wan has been appointed
for a term of three years commenced from 5 April 2022 until 4 April
2025 subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and other
related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules
and the terms and conditions of his letter of appointment. As at
the date of this report, Mr. LEE Kwok Wan is entitled to receive a
remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum.
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Mr. LAI Sai Wo, Ricky, aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in April 2017. He is currently a member of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. He holds
a Master degree of Corporate Governance from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and a Bachelor degree of Arts (Honours) in
Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong. Mr. LAl Sai
Wo, Ricky is a practising accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountant and an associate member of the Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute.

Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky has more than 20 years of accounting and
management experience. He is currently the financial controller and
the company secretary of Jolimark Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
2028), whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky was once appointed as the company
secretary of the Company from August 2006 to March 2007.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Mr.
LAl Sai Wo, Ricky and the Group, Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky has been
appointed for a term of three years commenced from 19 April 2023
to 18 April 2026 subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and
other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules and the terms and conditions of his letter of appointment. As
at the date of this report, Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky is entitled to receive a
remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum.

Mr. CHU Gun Pui, aged 43, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in June 2017. He is currently a member of the
Nomination Committee. Mr. CHU Gun Pui holds a Bachelor degree of
Commerce majoring in marketing and a Bachelor degree of Science
majoring in computer science from The University of Auckland. Mr.
CHU Gun Pui has over 15 years of experience in sales and marketing
field in entertainment industry.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Mr.
CHU Gun Pui and the Group, Mr. CHU Gun Pui has been appointed
for a term of three years commenced from 23 June 2020 until 22
June 2023 subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and
other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules and the terms and conditions of his letter of appointment. As
at the date of this report, Mr. CHU Gun Pui is entitled to receive a
remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum.
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As at the date of this report, each of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, Mr.
SUEK Chai Hong, Dr. NG Wai Kwan and Mr. WONG Sun Fat has an
interest in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and/
or its associated corporations which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.571, Laws of Hong
Kong). For further details, please refer to the paragraphs headed
"Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
of the Directors’ Report of this annual report. There is no change in
such Directors’ interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company and/or its associated corporations within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO from 31 December 2022 up to the date of this
report.

ALTERNATE DIRECTOR

Mr. LAU Kam Cheong, aged 60, was appointed as the alternate
Director to Dr. NG Wai Kwan, a non-executive Director, in July 2008.
He is a manager of Delight Source Limited. Mr. LAU Kam Cheong
joined the Group in 2001. He holds a Master degree in Business
Administration and a Master degree in Professional Accounting from
The Open University of Hong Kong (now known as Hong Kong
Metropolitan University). He is a member of the Chartered Institute of
Marketing in the United Kingdom and has over 30 years of experience
in management, sales and marketing.

On 31 January 2022, Mr. LAU Kam Cheong resigned as alternate
Director to Dr. NG Wai Kwan, a non-executive Director.
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Directors’ Report

EFTHRS

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Neway
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) present its annual report for the year ended
31 December 2022 (the “Year”). All cross-references mentioned in
this Directors’ Report form part of this Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. During the Year,
the principal activities of the Group include (i) money lending; (ii)
manufacturing and sales of printing and other products; (iii) artistes
management, production and distribution of music albums and
movies; (iv) property development; (v) property investment; (vi)
securities trading; and (vii) trading of printing and other products.
The principal activities and other details of the principal subsidiaries
of the Company are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages
153 to 154.

No dividend was paid or proposed during the Year.

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
Year (year ended 31 December 2021 (“Year 2021"): Nil).
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS (Continued)

In order to enhance transparency of the Company and facilitate
the shareholders of the Company and investors to make informed
investment decisions relating to the Company, the Board has adopted
a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”). According to the Dividend Policy,
when determining whether to declare any dividend in the future and
the amount of dividend to be declared, the Company shall consider a
number of factors, including but not limited to:

the Group's actual and expected financial results;

o the general economic conditions and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Company;

o the Company’s business operation strategy, including expected
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements
and future expansion plans;

o the Company’s liquidity position;

o retained earnings and distributable profit reserves of the
Company;

o the contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends

imposed by the Company’s lenders and other institutions; and

o any other factors that the Board considers to be applicable
from time to time.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend distribution
proportion or distribution ratio. The declaration, payment and amount
of dividends will be subject to the Board's discretion. The Board will
review the Dividend Policy on a regular basis.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group's businesses with analysis using key
performance indicators and the likely future development of the
Group are set out in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 6 to 27.
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Directors’ Report
ES5EHRS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group acquired property, plant and equipment at an aggregate
cost of approximately HK$15.6 million (Year 2021: approximately
HK$24.7 million) during the Year in order to increase its production
capacity. Details of such acquisitions and other movements in the
property, plant and equipment of the Group during the Year are set
out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no change in the share capital and capital structure of the
Company during the Year.

ISSUE OF SHARES OR DEBENTURES

During the Year, the Company did not issue any shares or debentures.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to its shareholders were approximately HK$628.4 million
(Year 2021: approximately HK$633.5 million), calculated in
accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on page 316.

ME- -BERRE

RAFE AEBEBEVE BEM
HEEHELH415,600,0008 T (ZF
——TFE  #924,700,00057T)  LAIE A0
EEN - ZEBEZHBERNEAEER
EEYVE -BEAREBEZEMEFE
NER B IRRMEE140

g
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BITRNHES
RAEE A A RETEERHR
&% o

Ao IR#E

AT EC _HE+"A=+—H>=x&
NEARDRKTERBEZEELOS
628,400,000 (ZCE_—FE . &
633,500,000 7T) > ILHRIEE RE
—HAN—FRBEFFE
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AERBELEFHRFEZFEZERE
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DIRECTORS

The Board comprises the following Directors during the Year and up
to the date of this Directors’ Report:

Executive Directors:

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman)
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors:

Dr. NG Wai Kwan
Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren
Mr. WONG Sun Fat

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan
Mr. LAI Sai Wo, Ricky
Mr. CHU Gun Pui

Alternate Director:

Mr. LAU Kam Cheong (alternate Director to Dr. NG Wai Kwan)
(resigned on 31 January 2022)

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s bye-laws (the
"Bye-laws”), Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren
and Mr. CHU Gun Pui will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (the “2023 AGM") of the Company. Being eligible, each of
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren and Mr. CHU
Gun Pui will offer himself for re-election at the 2023 AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director being proposed for re-election at the 2023 AGM has
a service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers were as follows:

(i) Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company (the “Shares”)

BEENKMN BN KRES
iz iR
RN _E - "+ _BA=+—H 'R T
ZPEERESITHRAEREKATRE
BB LB (EEREHRBEKRA (T35
HREREEML) EXVER) 2 B&h -~ 2R
RipRESD EARESESRPER
BIE352ME BEFFE 2 Z s MATEC 8 0
HIRE LHEITAESETESIS
WZEFRBINERAT R
@
(i) MELTEKREEIIBITZ
@ (Tigfn) 2F8

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

capital of
Number of the Company
Name of director Capacity Shares held  {EARF BT
By 19 FrfERRn 8B RRABIA B DL
Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie Founder of a discretionary trust who 39,872,000 15.72%
("Mr. Ernie Suek”) can influence how the trustee
exercises his discretion’
S AR EBRFEANTHERE#EN
(TEEm= Mt ) REFENRIMAT

Interest of controlled corporation?

PG AR 2 2

Beneficial owner

BEm#EAA
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong Beneficial owner
EEEESLSE Em#EAA
Dr. NG Wai Kwan Beneficial owner
SEEEL Em#EAA
Mr. WONG Sun Fat Beneficial owner
=LA Em#EA A

16,730,000 6.60%
1,580,000 0.62%
58,182,000 22.94%
700,000 0.28%
8,000 0.01%

(rounded up to 2
decimal places)
(WERAAE
INELRE B R L)

100,000 0.04%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

()

(i)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company (the “Shares”) (Continued)

Notes:

1. These Shares are beneficially owned by CNA which is in
turn beneficially owned by the Preserve Capital Trust, a
discretionary trust set up by Mr. Ernie Suek, the beneficiaries
of which include a family member of Mr. Ernie Suek and a
charitable institution set up in Hong Kong.

2. These Shares are beneficially owned by Longoing Limited,
which is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Ernie Suek. Mr. Ernie
Suek is the director of Longoing Limited.

Long positions in the shares of associated
corporations

As at 31 December 2022, CNA beneficially owned deferred
non-voting shares in the following subsidiaries of the
Company:

Name of subsidiary

MEABLE

EFENKG - HEARGRES
iz igs ()

(i) F¢@jﬁkﬁ@0m%mz
B (ThfR1) 298 (8)

Mt -

1. ZERMHACNAZ TS > TCNA
FHPreserve Capital Trust (—IB/H &
EBSERI 2REL HES
mANOEEEBEY —BRE
MEBR—EREBRILIZESHE
%) BaES -

2. ZE 1A HLongoing Limited & &
P > Mlongoing Limited% FAES
EBAXE L ERB I RE o BER
B e 4 Alongoing LimitedRYE
=Ho

(i) MHEBZEERGZEE

W_E__F#+_A=+—H"
CNABmBEBEERAE NI ER
B 2 R ERIRIERS

Number of deferred
non-voting shares held

RAERRERERHE

New Box Mini Storage Limited

PREKIREBRAR

Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited
ARENR (RE) BIRAF

Chung Tai Printing Company Limited
RRENBIBERAE

The Greatime Offset Printing Company Limited
HARMKENRIB RAE]

The rights and restrictions of such deferred non-voting shares
are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

(i)

Long positions in the shares of associated
corporations (Continued)

CNA is beneficially owned by the Preserve Capital Trust,
a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Ernie Suek and the
beneficiaries of which include a family member of Mr. Ernie
Suek and a charitable institution set up in Hong Kong. Mr.
Ernie Suek is deemed to be interested in all the deferred non-
voting shares owned by CNA in the above subsidiaries of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no
other Directors or chief executive of the Company had any
interest or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (i) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including the interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (ii) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the Listing Rules to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

EENRM BARMNKRES
iz igs ()

(i)

ﬁA*E jH /i ] HXﬁJ\Zy?E (uﬁ)

CNAHPreserve Capital Trust (—
BEHEEBIERIZ2HEE
o EZm AR TE—
LRBEHRER—BREBMRILH
REWE BEalER BElBIE
WAR A ICCNAFT#ER By LI AR

FIM B AT I E R EREIRIERS
hEER R o
PR EXPIIREEN R -

F+"_B=+—H #iEEME
EYARBZERESTHABRA
NEHEAEEEIE (EERE
HRHEKHEXVER) Z &M%
MERMHESFPEE()VRESE
H R EREIEBIEXVERE 7R B8N
ER BB AN B R B X P 2 A A
@A e (BIEREE S A
EROBRAEXHEEWEFRER
ABEAZHERRKRE) ; TR
BHEMEAEKRABISEIS2EBEEH A
ZAEBIFrat 2 B2 M 2 Al
mIKE ; )R E L iRAIFR
HIEHETAEFETESRKS
M ZEFRIZBB A AN B K32
P2 AR AR R A ©
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2022, so far as was known to the Directors,
the following persons, other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company, had interests or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of

Part XV of SFO:

Long Positions

FERRER

N R _F+_RA=1+—H '#EF
FIR U TAL (BEEREARBTDZESDS
TN BFRIN 5B R 18 BA AR A7 &
BERBESRBERAEXVEFE2RE
3R BAR R R RFAINE
RERIURBUT -

5=}

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

capital of
the Company
Number of EZAT
Name of shareholder Capacity Shares held BETREZ
LB 515 FrisR& (7 8B B E S
CNA' Beneficial owner 39,872,000 15.72%
BmEAA
Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited’ Trustee 39,872,0007 15.72%
ZEEA
Alpadis Group Holding AG’ Interest of controlled corporation 39,872,000° 15.72%
RIEGEE 2 @
Alain Esseiva’ Interest of controlled corporation 39,872,0007 15.72%
RIEREE Z
Wei Lee Teo’ Interest of spouse 39,872,000° 15.72%
ACfB i
Dominik Philipp Heer! Interest of controlled corporation 39,872,0007 15.72%
RIEGEE Z
Krinya Heer* Interest of spouse 39,872,000° 15.72%
ACfB i
Longoing Limited® Beneficial owner 16,730,0007 6.60%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Long Positions(Continued)

Notes:

CNA is beneficially owned by the Preserve Capital Trust, a discretionary
trust set up by Mr. Ernie Suek, the beneficiaries of which include a
family member of Mr. Ernie Suek and a charitable institution set up
in Hong Kong. Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited, which is wholly-owned by
Alpadis Group Holding AG, is the trustee of Preserve Capital Trust.
Alpadis Group Holding AG is owned as to 53.34% by Alain Esseiva
and 40.60% by Dominik Philipp Heer.

These 39,872,000 Shares duplicate with those held by CNA.

Spouse of Alain Esseiva.
Spouse of Dominik Philipp Heer.
Longoing Limited is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Ernie Suek. These

16,730,000 Shares duplicate with 16,730,000 Shares which Mr. Ernie
Suek is interested in.

Save as disclosed above, so far as was known to the Directors, as
at 31 December 2022, there was no other person, other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, who had an interest or
short position in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO.

FERR (@)

e (&)
Byat
1. CNAFPreserve Capital Trust (—IBHEEE

BECEMILZ 2RED ES B A BEE
EBAEEZ 2RERER—HEREB
AL 2 ZENE) B ER © Alpadis Trust
(HK) Limited (F3Alpadis Group Holding AG
2BHA) APreserve Capital Trustz=
5E A o Alpadis Group Holding AGHiAlain
Esseiva’&Dominik Philipp Heern Bl A
53.34% 5240.60% 1 75 ©

2. %%£39,872,000/% Iz 10 FEFRCNART A Z[F]
— AR5 o

3. Alain Esseiva 2 Bc {8 o

4. Dominik Philipp HeerZ B2 {8 o

5. Longoing LimitedZHEERBTE2EE

B2 AT #%%16,730,0008% 151588 =
B E A 5 216,730,000 BERE(H o

Br EXFRIEEEN R_BE__F+—
B=+—B MEZEmMA BEAEMA
T (EERAARIARSITHRAERKIN
RO EERRDTEERESS M
HAEEAIEXVEE 2R EINEX A
MAANBREZ ERRE o
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= H
EEEHRE
PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE EBE -HESERELAT LTH
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES BH
During the Year, with a view to enhancing the net asset value NAREE BIEASKREEFE &~
per share, the Company had repurchased 280,000 shares of the B HR B ZZ P LA AR 8 100,55078 7t #8 (o]
Company on the Stock Exchange at a total price of HK$100,550. All 280,000 A~ B 17 o Fi B BE B 15
of which were subsequently cancelled in January 2023. Details of the MR _—_E _=F—HFiH Bhlr*
repurchase were as follows: BT
Aggregate
Number of shares consideration
Date of repurchase repurchased Price per share (before expenses)
wHE
FE[E A &R EERHD & E BRER (NPREAZ AN
Highest Lowest
mafE RIEE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BIT
14 October 2022 100,000 0.365 0.325 35,750
—EF+A+MH
17 October 2022 180,000 0.360 0.360 64,800
2 _F+HB+tH
280,000 100,550
Other than the shares repurchased by the Company as disclosed b EAFRIN SR 2 AN A T BE IR0 2 9
above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, KNS KREFAWEB AT R AEER
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the BN s HE S EL{F AT s
Year. #o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 13 February 2014, a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was approved by shareholders of the Company and
adopted by the Company. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
the Share Option Scheme will remain in force until 16 February 2024,
being 10 years after the date of its adoption.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit
and retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources that
are valuable to the Group and any entity in which the Group holds an
equity interest (the “Invested Entity”).

The Directors may, subject to the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme and the Listing Rules, invite any person belonging to any of
the following classes of participants to take up the options:

(@) any employee (whether full time or part time, including any
executive Director but excluding any non-executive Director) of
the Company, any of its subsidiary or any Invested Entity;

(b) any non-executive Director (including independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
any Invested Entity;

(0) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity;

(f) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity;

(9) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and

- Hﬁ st &

A_E-—UE_B+=H ARER
BHLE B AR RN — BB R ST E
(THERR ST E ) o FRIEBITEHIHLE
o RRIEREERBEE S _UE
“B+/"H (BNEEEHEMNEI10F) I}
BEXM-

BRESESEEKETSATDANNGE
2HEERLBERE BUEBNOE®RE
ERSEERFEBRFLZER K
NEMAEBBERNGEEFES I
HENAEERAEERFAEEDE
mEE((RKREER)BEBEZANE
R e

ESTEBRESEZMBEX KR LR
AIZRRT  BF BRI U TERLER 2
BERANTIRMNERE

(@) ZAREEEFMEREIER
WREBEERNEIAEE (TRE
BEERE BREEARNTESE
NEFEEFEIFRITES) ;

(b)) AR HEWWEB QBN
AR EEBRNEMIIFNITES
(BEBIUFATES) ;

(0 FEBREAMEABREMEIKR
EERNBRARB 2 EMEHE
[

d FEBEAMEQBREMEIKR
BERNENTRR

() MAEBEMMAEATREMK
REBERREHME FEIEM
B EZENERALTRESS ;

(f) ZIK%@ETTEJZE“T‘JZEH%&&
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ﬁﬁé@ﬁﬁi&ﬁ%&&iﬁ%’?ﬁ%é&
THEAESHNERFEA ;

(9 AEBEMAKLERTTEFHREK
EERNTMERBBRNET L
BROEMEER (BRI HEAM) A
AN K
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(h) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangements to the
development and growth of the Group.

and, for the purposes of the Share Option Scheme, the offer may
be made to any company wholly owned by one or more persons
belonging to any of the above classes of eligible participants.

As at 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022, the total number of
Shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the aggregate number of
issued Shares at the day on which the Share Option Scheme was
adopted, which was 10,193,545 Shares (restated to reflect the share
consolidation effected on 5 April 2016), representing approximately
4.02% of the issued Shares as at the date of this Directors’ Report.
The maximum number of Shares which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of aggregate number of issued
Shares from time to time.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes to each participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the aggregate number of issued Shares from time to time.
Share options granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company or any of their respective associates must
be approved by the independent non-executive Directors (excluding
independent non-executive Director who is a grantee of the options).
Where any grant of options would result in the Shares issued or to
be issued upon exercise of all options already granted to a substantial
shareholder of the Company or an independent non-executive
Director or any of their respective associate in excess of 0.1% of the
aggregate number of issued Shares and having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the Shares at the date of grant, in excess
of HK$5 million in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant, such further grant of options must be approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Scheme shall
be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the offer date, which must be a
business day; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share. A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance
of the grant of an option.

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21 days from the
date of the offer for grant of the option.

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the offer
for the grant of options to grantees, there is no performance target
and no minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised under the Share Option Scheme.

An option may be exercised during such period as the Directors may
determine, save that such period shall not be more than 10 years from
the date of grant.

In view of the new requirements under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules
which became effective on 1 January 2023 (“New Share Scheme
Rules”), share options shall only be granted in accordance with and
as permitted by the New Share Scheme Rules. No dividend will be
payable and no voting rights will be exercisable in relation to an
option that has not been exercised.

During the Year, no share option was granted, vested, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme. There was no
outstanding share option under the Share Option Scheme as at 1
January 2022 and 31 December 2022.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into by the Group during the Year or subsisted at the end of
the Year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the Year, none of the Directors had any interest in any business
which competed or was likely to compete, either any directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.

RERg St 8 (48)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the Year was
the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Save as disclosed in notes 28 and 37 to the consolidated financial
statements, none of the Directors or an entity connected with a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and which was subsisting as at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Directors confirmed that the related party transactions as
disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements fall
under the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” (as the case may be) under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Directors confirmed that the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of such transactions.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the existing independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all of the existing independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the general staff of the Group is determined
by the management of the Group with reference to the market
conditions and qualifications of the employees. The reward packages
for the staff are generally reviewed on an annual basis, depending on
the staff's and the Group'’s performance.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board having
regard to the Company's operating results, individual duties and
responsibilities and performance and market practice and conditions.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY (Continued)

The Share Option Scheme as set out on pages 65 to 67 above was
also adopted by the Company as a long-term incentive or rewards for
the staff's contribution.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Throughout the Year, the Company applied the principles of and
complied with all the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Part 2 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Details of the
corporate governance practices of the Group during the Year are set
out in Corporate Governance Report on pages 28 to 49.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Year and as at the date of this Directors’ Report, an
indemnity provision was in force such that the Directors should be
indemnified by Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses they may incur or sustain in the execution of
their duty.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance for the
directors and officers of the Group for indemnifying their liabilities
arising out of corporate activities of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the shares
of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date
prior to the date of this Directors’ Report, at least 25% of the issued
Shares were held by the public throughout the Year.

DONATIONS

The Group made donations for charitable or other purposes of
approximately HK$260,000 for the Year (Year 2021: approximately
HK$132,000) and has donated a total of 3,400 boxes, each
containing 50 surgical masks to the charitable organisations in Hong
Kong.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND ENVIRONMENTAL
POLICIES

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it engages. Acting in an
environmentally responsible manner, the Group endeavours to identify
and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of resources,
energy saving and waste reduction. Please refer to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report on pages 73 to 145 for further
information on the work done and efforts made by the Company on
environmental protection and other aspects for sustainable growth
and development of the business of the Group.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial performance, operating results, business operation
and prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties.
The key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group are set out
below. However, there may be other risks and uncertainties in addition
to those shown below, which are not known to the Group or which
may not be material now but could become material in the future.
The management of the Company meets periodically to discuss these
risks, and where appropriate, will monitor these risks closely and adopt
any necessary risk mitigation measures. In respect of the details of the
risk management system and internal audit function of the Company,
please refer to the paragraphs headed “Risk Management and Internal
Control” on pages 41 to 44.

Business Risk

The Group currently has seven operating segments in various
industries and each operating segment has its specific business risks.
For the Manufacturing and Sales Business and the Trading Business,
the Group is subject to intense competition in terms of product
prices and production costs, and is also affected by seasonal factors
prevailing in the countries of targeted and existing customers. For
the Lending Business, the collectability of outstanding loans and
the customer network of the Group are both affecting the financial
performance of the segment. The Music and Entertainment Business
may be affected by the economic environment of Hong Kong and
the PRC as it will have impact on the consumption behaviors of
both individual and corporate customers. Besides, for the Property
Development Business, the demand of the industrial buildings in and
adjacent to Qingyuan City and the economic environment of the
PRC may also affect the sales of industrial buildings of the Group. To
maintain the competitiveness of the Group, the management of the
Company will meet regularly with the head of the respective business
units to keep itself up-to-date with the business environment.
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EFTHRS

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(Continued)

Environmental Risk

The Group's Manufacturing and Sales Business is obliged to comply
with a variety of environment protection laws and regulations on the
discharge and disposal of waste materials, water and gas imposed by
relevant governmental bodies in the PRC. These law and regulations
govern the disposal of these wastes and impose fines and penalties
for serious violation of environmental requirements, and any non-
compliance may jeopardise the operating licences of the Group's
subsidiaries engaged in the Manufacturing and Sales Business.

Moreover, environmental laws and regulations applicable to the Group
are subject to change from time to time. It may be impracticable
for the Group to continuously quantify the costs of complying with
such laws and regulations, and any further change may also lead
to a substantial increase in the operating costs of the Group. In this
regard, the management of the Company regularly reviews adherence
to relevant environmental laws and regulations with the head of the
Manufacturing and Sales Business.

Market Price Risk

The Group’'s Securities Trading Business is exposed to the risk of
decreasing fair values of equity securities as a result of the volatile
market changes. The management of the Company together with
the Investment Management Committee of the Board monitor
the changes of respective securities’ prices and may change the
investment portfolio held and investment strategy whenever
necessary.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are carried out both in Hong Kong and the
PRC and are regulated by their laws and regulations accordingly. In
particular, the Group’s Manufacturing and Sales Business is obliged
to comply with a variety of environmental protection laws and
regulations on the discharge of waste, water and pollutants and the
labour law in the PRC. While any non-compliance may attract fines
and penalties and jeopardise the operating licenses of the Group,
the imposition of more stringent regulations may also increase the
operating costs of the business segment.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
(Continued)

During the Year and up to date of this Directors’ Report, the Group
has complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact in Hong Kong and the PRC. For details, please refer
to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 73 to
145.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the percentage of purchases attributable to the 5
largest suppliers combined was less than 30%. The percentage of
revenue from sales of goods or rendering of services attributable to
the 5 largest customers combined was also less than 30%.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group strives to maintain a strong relationship with its suppliers,
customers, employees and other stakeholders to meet its immediate
and long-term goals. Please refer to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on pages 73 to 145 for further information.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu who shall retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-appointment at the 2023 AGM. A resolution will be proposed
at the 2023 AGM to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
auditors of the Company.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three financial years.

On behalf of the Board

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2023
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Neway Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) has been disclosing its Environmental,
Social and Governance ("ESG") report since the 2016 fiscal year,
to convey to all its stakeholders the management, goals and
performance of sustainable development of the Group. This is the
seventh ESG report focusing the Group’s printing business in Hong
Kong and Mainland China, complying with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX")
and “comply or explain” provisions.

Reporting Principles

This ESG Report has been prepared in compliance with the reporting
principles stipulated in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide of HKEX:
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Materiality: The Group communicates with
stakeholders through various channels to identify
material issues that have an impact on the Group's
business from the perspectives of Environmental,
Social and Governance. This report comprehensively
discloses the Group'’s approach to and performance
in addressing the main environmental, social
and governance issues that the stakeholders are
concerned about.
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Consistency: The Group adheres to consistent
standards in the preparation of the report. The
way this report is prepared has not changed
significantly from previous years.
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Quantitative: The Group applies quantitative
s principles. The Performance Data Summary is
¢ presented in a manner conducive to comparison of
: year-on-year changes. The measures are described
adequately, including the method of calculation of
: indicators of emissions in the notes.
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Balance: The Group discloses in a fair and
transparent manner and presents its performance in
terms of Environmental, Social and Governance in
an impartial manner.

T REEBATERRAEEE > kIR AERA]
SHHRRRE -t B KREBHHEMNKRE

©00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000

CEH S INES - BIERERUTR D E

©0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000

R R R Y R R R R

* EHES

Neway Group Holdings Limited RE2&£MZARAER/AS | Annual Report 2022 F 3R



74

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

ABOUT THIS REPORT (Continued)
Reporting Boundary and Period

The boundary of this ESG Report has not changed from the previous
year. Three principal subsidiaries of the Group’s printing products
manufacturing and sales business which have an important impact on
the Group's operations are listed below:

e Chung Tai Printing (International) Company Limited;

o FERKEIR CRIIN BERAE (unofficial English translation
being Neway Chung Tai Printing (Shenzhen) Company Limited)
("Neway Chung Tai Printing”);

o SRENENRI GEII) BFEAT (unofficial English translation being
Kam Hon Printing (Shenzhen) Company Limited) (“Kam Hon
Printing”).

The reporting period is from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022,
which is the same as the financial year of the Group’s 2022 annual
report. The ESG report is published annually, and presents an overview
of the Group’s achievements in areas such as emissions reduction,
management of occupational health and safety, supply chain
management, business ethics, and community investment during the
reporting year.

BOARD STATEMENT

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the overall ESG
risks and opportunities, including but not limited to establishing
sustainable development strategies and goals, reviewing performance
and regular reporting, and managing the possible impact of ESG risks
on operations.

To effectively implement its sustainable development strategy, the
Group has in place a comprehensive governance structure and
mechanism for regular risk assessments and recommending measures
to management representatives for mitigating risks with specific
responsibilities. Under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer,
management representatives lead five major groups, responsible
for the management of ESG risks, which include labour risks,
occupational health and safety risks, environmental risks, business
ethics risks and compliance risks, and report to the Board of Directors
in a timely manner.
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BOARD STATEMENT (Continued) SEETEHGE

Management Representatives
BEERAR

Labour Executive

Comﬁmittee
HLHITEZE /A

¢ Remuneration and

Health and Safety
Executive Committee
BEZE2HITEE/)E

Occupational health

Ethics Executive
Comﬁmittee
BEHTEZE/NE

Environmental Executive
*Comimittee
RIBHITZE/AE

Management Systems
Executive Committee
BERRNTEE/NE

¢ Pollution preventlon o Busmess ethics . ge%gAco%npliance

benefits _ and safety R HES R EREN
il R A2 A H&%@@EZ?&%
e Resources conservation ¢ Information disclosure o Risk assessment and
e Discrimination Emergency HHER EERE management
revention preparedness R R EE
EEU:&@ =i o Waste and effluent ¢ Intellectual property
B RI57K hts protection ¢ Target management
o Child/forced labour Work-related injury ﬁux%ﬂ HERE 7%
revention I * Raw materials
Eﬁﬂ:ﬂﬁ%il/ Getil [R1EL * Privacy protection . Trammg management
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maintenance e Hazardous materials
o Freedom of association i aEcE BENE . Emglgee engagement
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Health and safety ¢ Air and GHG emission
communication control o Suppher management
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o Extreme weather
events
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BOARD STATEMENT (Continued)

The Group has set its goals under the guidance of the Board
of Directors to enhance social, environmental, and governance
performance and better fulfil the needs of stakeholders. These
goals are regularly reviewed and updated as necessary to promote
sustainable development within the Group.

The Board of Directors takes responsibility for the accuracy of this ESG
report and confirms that it includes all significant material issues and
accurately reflects the Group's ESG performance. The report has been
reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group attaches great importance to communication with
stakeholders. In order to better identify ESG risks and opportunities,
the Group actively communicates with different stakeholders through
different channels such as staff meetings, supplier meetings, annual
assessments and general meetings of shareholders. Based on the
materiality survey results, issues that have a significant impact on the
Group are identified by stakeholders, and actions that we have taken
on different material issues are as follows:
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Stakeholder Groups Issues of Concern Actions taken by the Group| Communication Channels
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Customers Customer satisfaction Conduct annual customer Company website
ZR BRAMBRRZE satisfaction survey i N/NSIF
ETFEERMEERES
Data privacy ETEEESREER Feedback by phone
HUIRFETA Communicate with BaERERR

customers regularly to get

Formal process for

St |or el handling complaints
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Set internal policy to
ensure data privacy
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Educate and train all staff
to protect data

BB KI5

67

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE2&£EZERBRAE | Annual Report 2022 F iR

e s TiRE



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIE - g hESKRS

BOARD STATEMENT (Continued)
Stakeholder Engagement (Continued)

Stakeholder Groups Issues of Concern
R & B 4H R EIE

Employees

B&

Suppliers
HFEE

Training and development

1R 3

Occupational health and
safety
HWERERED

Third-party risk
management
E=HEREE

EEEEHBG
FinE2 8 (8)

Actions taken by the Group

FEBRIAITED

Provide various kinds of
training to all staff
AEiEE TiRMHSEE

Received ISO 45001
certification for OHS
Management System
ESHERBERZEEE
BE 2150 4500112 #3035

Set up EHS committee to
address and monitor OHS
issues of the Group
RIURIF-REEZE S
B/NEEEREEAEER
HWERERLEEH

Set the Supplier
Management policy to
manage and provide the
supplier selection criteria
BEMESEBRREEN
R EEmERESE

Priority is given to
suppliers with good ESG
performances
BREZEABRFIRR
HEREARRENMHER

Conduct sample testing
and monthly/annual
assessments
ETHRARRBE,F
EEE

Use eco-friendly raw
materials such as FSC-
certified paper
ERIRRR N EFSC
058 BYAR 5

Communication Channels
BEESR

Staff meetings
BT EE
Annual appraisals

R

Website for prospective
suppliers

BT R A

Supplier assessment

G R

Supplier conference
HERE TR
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BOARD STATEMENT (Continued)
Stakeholder Engagement (Continued)

Stakeholder Groups Issues of Concern
R & B 4H R EIE

Investors

REE

Government

B F

Community

#HE

Corporate governance
TEER
Business operations

EFELF

Information disclosure
EERE

Legitimacy of service and
business ethics

RBEEERBEERS

Tax compliance

MBER

Environmental protection
IRIBRE

Contribution to the
community

HHEHERM

EEEEHBG
FinE2 8 (8)

Actions taken by the Group

FEBRIAITED

The Board of Directors
governs issues and takes
responsibility for reviewing
the report
EEGEREERAEES
RS

Various internal policies
are set such as Business
Conduct Guidelines to
ensure our business
operations comply with
the laws and regulations
BEfIE 2 BABEERNE
FITAZERIRERIFIB
EERERT AR ROER

Adhere to responsible
advertising and fair
competition
BEEEEINESRAT
I

Protect intellectual
property rights and data
privacy

R R 58 2 1 e B R PR AL

Pay taxes on time to
comply with laws and
regulations

BTRRERKREER

Take responsibility

for protecting the
environment and set
sustainability targets

AR REIRIE R HE A
BEEENEE

Actively engage with the
community in ways such
as donations and activities
participation
NEBAHABEBR2ET &
EE MR 2 HEE)
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Annual reports and interim
reports

FHRMPHERS

Corporate
communications and press
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EEERKRIEE
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applicable laws and
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Compliance with
applicable laws and
regulations
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institutions
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group remains committed to mitigating the environmental
impacts of its operations by strengthening its environmental
management approach and keeping its environmental targets on
track.

Environmental Management

The Group has an Environmental Executive Committee responsible for
identifying potential impacts of its operations through site inspections
and reviewing performance records such as documents and reports.
The management of the Group has the overall responsibility of
assuring the environmental management is effectively incorporated
into business processes, approving the environmental targets, and
ensuring efficient allocation of resources and compliance with
the related laws and regulations. To strengthen environmental
management, the Group has established the environmental
management system (“EMS”) that helps stringent control of
environmental factors. The EMS of the Group’s two subsidiaries:
Neway Chung Tai Printing and Kam Hon Printing have been certified
for ISO 14001:2015 standard.

The Group's subsidiaries have established an Environmental
Management Team led by the senior EHS senior management
representatives to ensure efficient management in factories. The team
handles environmental issues and takes the responsibility of planning
and implementing environmental practices including hazardous
chemicals control and monitoring of environmental indicators. The
team manages these issues according to a series of management
procedures ranging from management of waste to chemicals and
dangerous goods, energy and resources.

Environmental Performance Tracking

To better manage the material environmental issues and understand
the environmental performance of the Group, both subsidiaries,
Neway Chung Tai Printing and Kam Hon Printing have set targets
for eight environmental aspects including air emissions, effluent
discharge, hazardous waste management, resource consumption,
noise pollution and so on. The subsidiaries keep track of the data and
monitor the target progress, aiming to achieve the target in all facets.

IRIR(REE
AEEFERARBBMBEBHEEE
7R RRFEE RN E RS
BENEBENTEo

RIGERE

AEBRABRENTEZE/NE BEB
BREBERBEXHRRENERR
AR THEEN BT E AEEE
EHEE2EHESHERIEIESEA WM
AXEF IR HEBERE THRES
MO E R KB THEEEENER A
MARRIEEE AEBRCEEUIRIEERE
Br ((RETERZ))  UBOREER
IBREMBERIEG c REFEE THMEK
Bt /B A B o 2 A K ENRI R S8 S ENRIAY
RIS EIEREZ EISO 14001:201518 %

2] =32%
BREE ©

FEENBLAREERIAERE RBRHA
ZE2NBREEBEAXREENIRIEE
EEE UEERLIBRNEWNEE -ZH
FEERERIEHE TAERIINE
TR EE  SEERICRmES AEE
ARIBIHR - ZEERBE-RINEE
BEFEEILERE SEaEEY 1T
BRkfElka ERMERNERE

IR1E 2 HE HE

HEUHEEERIRIGEHABER T B
SENRIERT MAXWB LB PER
REDRI A 37 8 EN R 19 B HI 5] N KIRIE
B BEERFR - SKER-BE
BERYEE -BRHE BRESRSF-
WEBAR —HEBHBELERBIRE
B WREMESEBEBR
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)

Environmental Management (Continued)

Environmental Performance Tracking (Continued)

The table below shows the Group’s progress towards the

environmental targets set for the Year.

Environmental Aspects

IRIZEEE

Energy Consumption

) BRI

o Water Consumption

Neway Chung Tai Printing
2 K ENFY

85% achieved*
85% HEiZ*

94% achieved*

KERHFE 94%IEIZ*
2 Paper Consumption 83% achieved*
HLSRIHFE 83%EIF*
Stationary Source GHG Emissions Achieved
o EERAE RSB ER
e Mobile Source GHG Emissions Achieved
¥ BRRREREHK E1%
é Effluent Discharge Achieved
75 K EIR
» Hazardous Waste Management Achieved
BEEEEYEE EE
a Noise Emissions Achieved
1% = HE EIT
* Since August 2022, part of the machinery and equipment have

been relocated from Neway Chung Tai Printing to Kam Hon Printing,
resulting in a significant difference between the consumption of water,

electricity and paper in 2022 and previous established targets

IRIGRE ()
RIZEE (8
IRIEZRJIEH ()

TRETFERERAFEREAR
BVERIET

Kam Hon Printing Corresponding Section

ERENEN R IHFEEEN

Energy

AETR

Water
KE R

Paper Usage and Packaging

MRERARELE
100% achieved Air Emissions
100%3Z 12 R

Effluent and Waste

Management
BIKKREEYER

Noise Management

IREEE

* B-Z__FN\A BORBERREE
WHRERKENBIENZEZRWENR] > £
B2 —FK BRARIHFERESL
AIRENERELEEFEERER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Promoting Green Products

To promote healthier and more ecologically friendly products among
customers, the Group strives to reduce the environmental impacts
of its products. By following Forest Stewardship Council’s ("FSC")
standard of COC (Chain of Custody) certification, the Group has
established a set of policy to ensure long-term compliance with
FSC principles and standards and demonstrate traceability of wood-
based products (paper, mainly). We actively purchase FSC-certified
raw materials, and strictly monitor the use of wood products in the
manufacturing process, to ensure the minimisation of forest damage
and environmental impacts of products. We also commit that only
FSC-certified paper is used in our printing business.

The Group strictly complied with all applicable environmental laws
and regulations.! During the Year, the Group was not aware of
any non-compliance of relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to air and greenhouse gas
(GHG) emissions, discharges into water or land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

l Please refer to the Laws and Regulations section for Environment-
related laws and regulations

IRIGIRE (1)
BESEER

mABREEERR BERFENE
e AEESHRVEERHIRIEN
T E BBEEFSC AMEEEZET)
(TFSC1) BICOC (EmEBEEHR) RER
£ AEBBEHE R BERBRE
T B FSCIR B e 1R 2 Ko B] 48 7 B ) 78 K
B (E2EMAER - RAEGREBEES
FSCEBREMRME REREERES
BRPRAMMOER BREEAVHR
MBI IR e B T SR BV IR IR 52 & o TS
IRERATIEEN R 55 P E £ B EFSCEU5E
BYARSR

FEBEBRRETHEERRIEERER
ER O MAEE AEBE L AR
BREBRZREREZEFEERRER
BEREIN - RKREMIEsURE
EREEBRRYNEL UREHERE
EENERTENER

! BE2RERRER—H U T RARIRE
B EREIER
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Resources Conservation
Paper Usage and Packaging

Paper is the major material used in our printing production process.
The Group fully understands its responsibility to minimise its paper
usage during production. To ensure the paper used is produced from
certified forests, the Group procures only FSC-certified paper.

RIZRE (D)

HHE R

REAREE

MIRARMENR EEBRPERNE
TR A EERARN EEBRERR
&R MR E PR BV B A o A R (RFA (5 A
BOMRSRE AR ER BB > K EEER
BFSCER B MIARER -

Packaging Materials Consumption (Tonne)

BEMBEE ()

1.00

Paper #f5R
1,982.53

In addition to production, the Group also spares no effort to conserve
paper in its offices and implements green office practices. To utilise
paper efficiently, staff are advised to apply double-side printing and
photocopying. Paper consumption is tracked and managed monthly
to prevent wastage. For wastepaper, classification is required and the
“recyclable” wastepaper will be collected.

During the Year, the Group consumed 1,982.53 tonnes of paper,
575.98 tonnes of plastics and 1.00 tonnes of metals for packaging.
We encourage clients to return carton boxes for reuse, minimizing
packaging wastes.

Neway Group Holdings Limited RE2&@EZERRAR/AE | Annual Report 2022 F R

575.98

BREEIN  REB TR ERER D E
NEMYPMR LB KB RIS -
HERFBAR KRR ETREAE
EAIENREEN - 8 A HAREREETT
B REE LIRS - HEMRET
W E D ERE R BT BT B BYBEAR ©

MAFE > ZNEBHFE1,982.53MF 4%
5k~ 575.98ME Bl K7 1.00MF & B (E B 5
ZHR-BMEBEAROBEEUFE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Resources Conservation (Continued)

Paper Usage and Packaging (Continued)

Paper Consumption Targets

HIRHEBRR

IRIGRE ()
EHEIR ()
HIRERAREE ()

Neway Chung Tai Printing
A E R KEN R

Consume <4.2 pieces of paper per thousand
press pile boards of production units
FTERIEEBMUNFERASETEBEL 2R

83 % achieved

83% 1=

Kam Hon Printing

EREAENRI

Average monthly consumption of <44,000
pieces of paper
R FHFEMAE T HEIE44,0005R
100% achieved
100% g1z

Water

The Group consumed a total of 85,199 tonnes of water during the
Year, with water intensity of 0.19 tonnes per thousand Hong Kong
Dollars revenue. During the Year, the Group did not have any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for the purpose.

Water Consumption and Intensity

HKEREE
200,000 026 030
025
T 150,000 0.19
S 0.20
S 100,000 0.15
é 160,833.00 85,199.00
im 0.10
S M 50,000
52 005
=N 0 0.00
2021 2022

B B

e —

KE R

RARFEE > REBRLEFEKE 285,199
MEoFEKBENAE T A TIZEO.19
Mg o PNAFEE » AEBEERIEEB KR
5 ENEAE AR RE o

‘ Water consumption
FkE

O-O Intensity

B

B (W/TAmhE)

Intensity (tonnes/ ‘000 HKD revenue)
&i

th
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IR - ERERRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)

Resources Conservation (Continued)
Water (Continued)

The Group is dedicated to saving water through a number of practices
including regular monitoring of water consumption, site inspections
and maintenance of water facilities to identify any instances of
abnormal consumption of water and prevent leakage. The Group
also works on recycling wastewater and reducing water usage for
enhancing water consumption efficiency. Neway Chung Tai Printing
recycles wastewater by reusing the boiler water and treated waste
water for toilet flushing while Kam Hon Printing reuses treated
industrial wastewater in its operations.

Report

IRIGRE ()
EHEIR ()
KER (4E)

REBRNDRABIBEEHLIKE
R BREERENRKE - RERER
A ok s LGB R E BKIB R K
B3 bR 7K o A S B R 2 F7 54 [B] U g 7K e
D RKE LIRS AKME R ER
RENRIZEBEE A BIEKKREEB
B BE 7K R DA IR ) A BB UK > T R 5 )
RIRI I HE & PR R B Y T K
BAA-

Water Consumption Targets
BXxBER

Neway Chung Tai Printing
R E R KENR

Consuming <0.3 tonnes of water per thousand
press pile boards of production units

5T EIRI 4 E B URFEKETIBIE0.3ME

94 % achieved

94 %12

Kam Hon Printing

SRENENRI

Monthly water consumption < 700 m? (May —
September) or < 600 m? (October — April)

B HAKABB7001L 5 K (EBENA) HAF
#Bi86001 I 5K (tAEMA)

100% achieved
100% 1=
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Emissions Control
Air Emissions

The Group’s air emissions are from stationary sources of Volatile
Organic Compounds (VOCs) used in production and emissions from
company vehicles. During the Year, the Group’s vehicles emitted a
total of 0.39 kg of sulphur oxides (SOx), 61.30 kg of nitrogen oxides
(NOx) and 5.38 kg of particulate matter (PM). The total Volatile
Organic Compounds (VOCs) of the Group is 15.46 tonnes in 2022.

Vehicle Emissions (kg)

E@PER (2F)

100

6.85
5.38
50
77.81 61.30
o 0.48 0.39
2021 2022
B -F ZBZZHF

To mitigate air emissions, the Group engages in regular maintenance
of all related equipment and has installed exhaust air treatment
facilities. Neway Chung Tai Printing carried out a gas boiler upgrade
project to reduce NOx emissions. In addition, the Group’s production
involves the emission of VOCs from the use of printing ink. An
exhaust gas treatment unit removes the VOCs generated during
production. The Group regularly monitors and tests the exhaust
emissions to ensure compliance with the Printing Industry VOC
Emission Standard (DB44/815-2010) and the Guangdong Province
Standards for Air Pollution Emission Limit Value (DB44/27-2001).

IR (RaE (&)
HE R
ERHEY

AEBNTEREBYKBEEEBREF
FRANEZETEERLEEYIE TR
RABBEEHBEBE R c RAEE » K
ERMNEWMEES0IVAFHRELY
6130 FRAAY K538 AFTHFFE
MR ZE__F  AEENEENS
S4B S 415.460 o

‘ SOx
maty

NOx

AAtm

PM

FRZ R

AR TR N EBHTAERR
HBETEHR#E TETEBEREER
Fe o /R 2 H K EN R B A WA S 50 4E B R
BE > LURLCEa| YR BER o L 5h
76 B 9 A B R BE AR EN R JH 22 16 A
BREEENEBEEUEERESY - M
M—ERERREREELSREERE
RELENEZHEREEM AERTE
HENRASBEREER UERTSE
EIRITHEZE BB EESYHEREE
(DB44/815-2010) K EER & AR5 R85
PR ({E 12 #E(DB44/27-2001)
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IRIE - g hESKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued) IRIS(F:E (48)
Emissions Control (Continued) BERUIZ S (48)
Air Emissions (Continued) By (4

Gas Boiler Revamping Project

MR BIERIHIER

By installing low NOx burners in natural gas boilers, Neway Chung Tai Printing has lowered NOx emissions.
Less NOx is produced during combustion when the peak flame temperature in the boiler is reduced. The
Group has replaced the present gas boiler with steam generators, in addition to installing low NOx burners,
to improve steam generation efficiency and minimise NOx emissions.

BBNRARBELZEEARIESE > RERKREDRIFRE T RS CYRIBER - #8E AR NG B ERERE > RIRES
BRELENRACYRED FREEEBRIAGESRIN REBTEUFARRENARANNE  SERAXSESE
MR R A RER D RAA Y BIHEm

, Exhaust Gas Treatment Facility

ﬂ”_"[ BE RER IR

Ink is one of the most important materials of printing, and VOCs are unavoidably produced during our
manufacturing operations. The Group has established an exhaust gas treatment facility to remove VOCs
before the gas is discharged. VOCs are removed from the exhaust gas using a spray column and activated
carbon adsorption towers, allowing regulation and reduction of VOCs emissions. The restoration of the
facility can reduce VOCs emissions by approximately 48%.

HERMBIEREENMHZ — ERMANEECEBREP HRGELBELFRIESY cEEESKEI—E
BERERIZSR I > E MBS HHR AT SEMEE LB IRC Y - FIBEME ROE M RIRMERIEZE LB IRIEEMRBERTE
B > 7T BT LAGR B R D B B M B HAE S VI BEI o B 1B %5 1t BT LURB /L 4948 % B B M B I E S W HE IR ©

To mitigate air emissions of motor vehicles, the Group is switching AR DB BN TR R AEETE
to high energy-efficiency fuel in vehicles to enhance engine BRI S EE AR IR FHS | 2B BE o
performance. In addition, the Group performs annual maintenance 9N NEE S EHEREIERFET
of exhaust treatment systems and examines vehicles’ exhaust gas to MES WInTEMWER  UZEER
verify exhaust treatment efficiency. BRIBRE o
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Emissions Control (Continued)

Air Emissions (Continued)

Air Emission Targets

ERFBER

IRIG (R (&)
BT (8)
ERmIEHKY (8B)

Neway Chung Tai Printing and Kam Hon Printing

R E R K ENRI K $REEN R

ﬂ 1. Conduct annual test for vehicle exhaust gas
to ensure compliance with the Shenzhen
0|0 Motor Vehicle Emission Standard

SEETEWOERIEBUAE  LURETT
AR E B R R

Effluent and Waste Management

The Group's operations generate both industrial and domestic
wastewater. The Group discharged 5,274 tonnes of wastewater
during the Year, a decrease of approximately 36% compared to
the previous year. The significant decrease is due to the recycling
of industrial wastewater at Kam Hon Printing, where industrial
wastewater is now reused in the operation after treatment. The Group
strictly complies with the Guangdong Provincial Discharge Limits of
Water Pollutants for wastewater discharge. Domestic wastewater
is discharged into the municipal sewer system for treatment, while
industrial wastewater is treated and reused in the wastewater
recycling system. Regular third party testing of water quality indicators
such as pH, Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD), Biological Oxygen
Demand (BOD) and Suspended Solids (SS) is carried out to monitor
the quality of effluent discharged.

2. Monitor the VOCs level and other

parameters for stationary exhaust gas

to ensure compliance with the Printing
Industry VOCs Emission Standard
DB44/815-2010 and Guangdong Province
Standards for Air Pollution Emission Limit
Value DB44/27-2001
EEEEEARIESYIKT REERERB
HAh R 80 FERRF 5DB44/815-2010EN 1T
FIEZM BRI SV PIRIRE &DB44/27-
2001 ERERARSREFBRERE

BIKRERYER
FEENEEEE T EREEREKR
REE > REBBENS, 2740855 7K > FILE
NIEHI36% o KR T FET5 R E SR E R
BY T RREKTBIR(E A » TR KK EE
BREMANEE - AEBBBRET(E
REMKSRYFBIRE) BIEEHF K
BEK o SRR KT EMERIE > T L
ERKEREERE S KO AKTRE
RAB - EMRKERERETE=OR
Al B ERECR2FHE(COD) £
T E(BOD) KRBT FAKL(SS) » LABRERFR
PEIUS KBIKE o
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)

Effluent and Waste Management (Continued)

Effluent Emissions (tonnes)

JEREER (W)
10000
8000
6000
4000 8,179

5274
2000
0
2021 2022
—E--F ZZE-_F

In terms of waste management, the Group strictly observes and
complies with related laws and regulations which include but are
not limited to the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste. To categorise and handle
each type of waste created in the manufacturing process, the Group
has established a systematic waste management approach. The
approach standardise the waste management process, which includes
waste separation, collection, storage, and control. The responsibility
of monitoring lies with the quality management department.

During the Year, the Group generated a total of 73.58 tonnes of
hazardous waste and 220.00 tonnes of non-hazardous wastes.
All hazardous waste were transferred to an authorised third-party
collector for handling while the non-hazardous waste is handled or
recycled by the waste collector.

Hazardous Waste Generation (tonnes) and Intensity
(kg/000 HKD revenue)
EEBEZEVELE (M) RBE (AF/ FBkR)

100 0.20 250
80 0.16 200
0.15
@ 0.13 -
0.10
40 100
83.43 73.58 0.05
20 50
0 0.00 0
2021 2022
B ZT-HF
Hazardous waste O-O Hazardous waste intensity .
BEEEY BERERYEE
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RiEfReE (48)
BRRERMER (@)

Effluent
DEEIN

EREREYEETE AEEBRBRETIL
BITHRBERER 2B ENER (P
Bl E RSB S RIRIERAE) oA TH
TEBRTEENSEEREYETY
B AEECEIL-—ERHKH
BYEER A - Z T ARBTEYER
B2 HpEEEY B -WE - R#F
RyES e SR ETHE S EEEFIK
%O

RAEFE  ZEBGHELET358EE
EREEY 220.00M B EEEY) - PRE
EEREYERBEERENE =7
EmEE MESERYHEYINER
W EE AT R IR SR B o

Non-hazardous Waste Generation (tonnes) and Intensity

(kg/000 HKD revenue)

REBREYELE (W) REE (AF/ FEIKRER)

0.60

0.49 050
0.40
0.31 0.30
192.00 220.00 o020
0.10
0.00

2021 2022

—E-—F =Z—Zf¥=-C

Non-hazardous waste O-O Non-hazardous waste intensity
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RIE - HHEREGRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued) IRIS(F:E (48)
Effluent and Waste Management (Continued) BKREEYER (8)

Waste Emission Targets
EEHER B AR

Neway Chung Tai Printing and Kam Hon Printing

LA R AEIRR BB

_ 1. Monitor various parameters related to 2. 100% transfer of hazardous waste
E effluent to ensure compliance with the 100% BB EEEEY
Discharge Limits of Water Pollutants in
Guangdong Province DB44/26-2001
ERSKBEZ2EUBRETS
DB44/26-2001 (/&R & /K5 MR
IR1E)

100% achieved 100% achieved
100%:z4= 100%:zi=

3. Phase out the use of Banana oil -
reduce the purchase of Banana ail (i.e.
thinner) by more than 50% compared
to the previous year
ZEF =1L EASE H(Banana oil)—#%
BHEEK BIXEK) REF R
50% 4

100% achieved
100% =1z
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RIE - HHEREGRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued) IRIZ{RE (48)

Noise Management 1RSSR

The Group is fully aware of the noise generated by its operations. A NREBZRNEBEHEERESANIRESE -
noise level target is set to minimise the impact on the surroundings. REEZRE—ERZKEEE URSE
The target is set to be below the noise limits during the daytime A DEBBIBIENE E L EEWR T
and at night. In addition, the Group employs external professionals ATEBEBREETREHEERERZES It
to monitor and assess the noise level around its facilities to ensure N NEBFEEINESEE A SR KT
compliance with the Emission Standard for Industrial Enterprises Noise (HEEMERNIRE KT TRERS
at Boundary. (TELEBARBHERBREINE

K o

Noise Management Targets

REEEEE

Neway Chung Tai Printing Kam Hon Printing

R E R KENR SRENEN R
'S

Not exceeding 60 decibel (dB) during Not exceeding 65 decibel (dB) during

daytime and 50 dB at night daytime and 55 dB at night
HEEENSHBE0N BERBmERSE HEZENEEHESDBEAMENEE
#8507 B #B557 B

100% achieved 100% achieved

100%zE 100% 12
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Climate Change

The Group recognises operational risks emanating from climate
change, such as higher temperatures, changing rainfall patterns
and more frequent extreme weather events. As a result, the Group
continues to comply with the climate policy and commit to mitigating
the environmental impacts by strengthening its environmental
management approach and keeping its environmental targets
progress on track. To protect the environment, all the purchased
raw materials and sold goods at Neway Chung Tai Printing are FSC-
certified goods. Kam Hon Printing is certified by FSC International
Forest Management System. The Group will gradually increase the
proportion of FSC products in its sales by 5% in the next five years.

To better manage the potential risks posed by climate change to the
Group's operations, the Group aligned with the recommendations
of Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (“TCFD"),
identified physical risks and transition risks that have a potential
impact on the Group's operations, and actions taken by the Group are
listed in the table below.

IRIBRE (&)
RIREL

A EERFEIR B R & E RIS R
SONNEYBY =08 ~ B 4] 558 B9 P& Bl S 58 35
IR Im R R E o AL AEREEEE
SRIRECER » RAGHBEBINRIREEE
BAERRFIREERNERURER
RIGHF E - BIREFEIRR > PEHKE]
RIRBHOPIERMH RHERNREE
I GFSCEUEE o IREENRI 2 1SFSC
BEIFRAMEIRR RBDE - AEEREZ
FIRBFSCERNIFERRIMELL > IR
REFIENM5%

HEHERRGEECHAERZEES
RBVBE R AEBKBRIEERMY
HINE TF/NERNEZ HEERE
HEEFTBEERENERRRRE
BRE BXEEERITRAHAIBIT

Mitigation
Ak

@J o
Resilience
5]

implementing long-term carbon emission
reduction targets

BIBHIE & E R B B R ik B
Implement energy-saving measures and energy-
efficient equipment

Bt EI e AT s ER R (R AEAERR B

Implement sustainable procurement on paper
and water, and launch quota system
BEITHRRAICR B B RS R 1TECER
Establish management system for procurement
of FSC-certified raw materials and green
products

HIERBEFSCRBNREME RIRFRERNE
HHIE

Incorporate the sustainable development into
workspace

PRETFeBmAFESRE

e Reduce carbon footprint by setting and o

Communicate with stakeholders to spread
messages about the impact of climate change,
and offer training on resource management
BEMNEBREERGEE2CEERNEERRE
HERBIEE

Develop extreme weather act plans to deal with
unforeseen weather condition and protect the
corporate properties from the climate change
impact

F 2 ik i a1 1% V8 4R LA & 71 ] 78 N B9 128 6%
U RRENDMERTRIESCEE
Provide relevant information and resources to
strengthen resilience, and monitor the impact
of climate change on the Group's business and
its carbon management goals and objectives
IR M REREERARER  BEARES
EHAEBEFHNEEREREEBERE

i
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IRIE - g hESKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)

Climate Change (Continued)

RISKS/
OPPORTUNITIES

R HE

Frequent Extreme Weather
Events
Tk i K R B R 4R 22

IRIG (RoE

(&)

POTENTIAL
FINANCIAL IMPACTS
BEMBERE

Increased capital costs
because of damage to
facilities

(R 5% Fif $8 2% 0 2 0 AV B A A%
PiN

Increased material and
transport costs

A0 72 881 B 2 15 A0

Increased overhead costs due
to more idle time and higher
workforce costs
FEAERFEIL L KESHNE
AL A IR B R
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ACTIONS
7%

Implementation of EHS Global
Standard for Emergency
Preparation and Response at
all sites to ensure procedures
and resources are in place
to effectively respond to
emergency situations

KRB BB IIRE « 25
B REEFERERER
IREE > DIFE IR I B WEE
ZRBERNEFRER-

Maintain close collaboration
between our procurement
and supply chain teams and
suppliers as potential extreme
weather events arise

REBEMmmBmRKRSEGHEE
BF > BR R e R B 3/ AR B 4
BEREEBSE

Adjustment of shifts and
schedules at facilities
currently affected by extreme
heat and other extreme
weather events to reduce
staff exposure to worse
working environments

% B Al 52 4l = m A H Ak
Ih KRB 7 BRI B
RMBEFRER LUV ETSR
BEESS TFIRIEF
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IRIE - g hESKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)

Climate Change (Continued)

CHRONIC
=

RISKS/

OPPORTUNITIES

R e

Changes in weather patterns
RAREX AL

Rising mean temperatures

FHRBEFH

Rising sea levels

B E LA

IRIG (RoE

(&)

RiEE1E (B

POTENTIAL
FINANCIAL IMPACTS

BEUBRE

Early retirement of existing
facilities & assets

RARMNEERZAIRE

Increased operating and
capital costs due to additional
climate response facilities
(RT3 SR 15 P X 5% T 1T o 3
HNEEME AR

Reduced revenue from lower
sales/output

HERE EETHRERWRA
B

Increased insurance premiums
and potential for reduced
availability of insurance on
assets in "high-risk" locations
REBEIER SRR thE
& E R ETT ] A MREE

ACTIONS

178

Development of new low-
emission products, with a
focus on higher energy-
efficiency and lower emissions
FREE MV EHINE @ > 858
1R = AE IR R AN RHER

Implementation of EHS &
sustainable investments,
which aim to achieve a
sustainable financial return
in the long term to cover the
additional costs
BHEHSKE > EEERERH
A0 0] 5 48 7Y B 75 0] 3R LA 478
KA A

Continuation of case studies
on climate risk management,
scenario analysis, disclosure
and innovation

FEETHRAERRE
B -REE= TR
G ES I TES
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RIE - HHEREGRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)

Climate Change (Continued)

TYPE
kS

TRANSITION RISKS
8 LR

POLICY AND LEGAL
BUR AR

<D

TECHNOLOGY
et

OPPORTUNITIES
e

ENERGY

ak )
RE W

@D

DDD
DDD

||||-8)

o

PRODUCTS
Em

RISKS/
OPPORTUNITIES
Rk HE

More stringent government
policies for decarbonisation

BB B BT R ICEER

Intensified competition

caused by green technology

BRI RRHEF A

Higher energy efficiency in
response to government and
market requirements

[ & BT AN 75 35 B0 2SR 1
= BE R 2 AR

Increased market demand
for green and environmental-
friendly products

TS HGENIRERIFNE
STRIM

IRIGRE ()

mIEEE (8

POTENTIAL
FINANCIAL IMPACTS
BEMBERE

Increased cost of compliance
and operation

BRI E AN

Reduced revenue due to
competition
P E YA

Increased long-term cost of
applying green technology

P& FB ok B 35 1l B = HA X 2 18
il

Reduced operating costs due
to resource conservation

EIABEIRESAAE M A T %

Increased revenue
U 3 38 0
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ACTIONS
7%

Set a carbon reduction target
B a=R A=k

Prudent and well-planned
multi-year investment to
apply green technologies

FEMNGBF2NZFHE

Implement energy-saving
initiatives and promote
industry best practices
HITHREAERITEREE
B2

Prudent and well-planned
multi-year investment to
apply green technologies

BEMEE2NZFHHE



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Climate Change (Continued)
Energy

Energy used by the Group is made up of purchased electricity, diesel,
natural gas for boilers, and gasoline for mobile vehicles. Electricity
purchased is the primary consumption. The Group used 52,574.28 GJ
of energy in total throughout the year, with a corresponding energy
intensity of 0.12 GJ per thousand Hong Kong Dollars revenue.

Energy Composition (GJ)
BERAN (TREE)

80,000 0.11

389.56
847867 | 0.12
60,000 1,088.24 388.09

Sit B ™ 609691
< 835.66
S =2 40,000
a
B
2 0B
S 20000 58,908.04 45,253.63

AT
58

2021 2022

—E-—-F =Z8=ZC

=__

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The Group generates direct greenhouse gases (GHG) emissions (Scope
1) from the combustion of fuel oil used by its vehicles and indirect
emission (Scope 2) from purchased electricity. During the Year, the
Group's total GHG emissions were 9,765.06 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent (tCO2e), with a GHG emission intensity of 0.02 tCOze per
thousand Hong Kong Dollars revenue.

0.15

IE1E1% (n\ﬁ)

RIRE1E (B)

BETE

AEBMEREMNERSIEINBEE

/Hﬂ ?LHJ\E)EH%/ N SR %D*&@JE%/W/H& EE

m}éﬁ%%%ﬁ cHMEBEEE » K&
HIHFES2,574. 28 F K EEFWRER

$EE§E’JEE, BERARBTHAITRE0.12
TIHEF -

‘ Electnoty

N
77U/
Natural Gas
Diesel

W

O-O Intensity
i

R EmAEHE

AEBREEHEBOM RN IEFE
SEBRAEREEN (BEE) 1IN
BEORELEBEHEKR (BBE2) - RNA&

FEE - AEENEEREHREZEA
9,765.06Mf —HLEE  R=EREBE
WEEAEST BT zm0.0208 — F 0k

=
mE°
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Climate Change (Continued)

Greenhouse Gas Emissions (Continued)

GHG Emissions (tCO:ze) and Intensity
(tCO2¢/'000 HKD revenue)

IR (RaE (&)
RIzE1E (8)

A E AL I ()

BERBHER (M-S{REE) REEM_SBREE/ TETWRES)

14,000

12,000

o s )
E)

SR

13,031.72

A=)

10,000
9,332.16
0.02

8,000
0.02

6,000

4,000

2,000

=

GHG Emission (tCOze)
BEREEHER (B

®
/m 2R

686.13 432.90

0

2021
B

2022
—E-F

Purchased electricity is a major contributor to greenhouse gas
emissions. The Group has implemented several energy saving
measures to increase energy efficiency and reduce consumption.
Boilers using non-invasive electromagnetic scale control systems are
more energy efficient and use less natural gas. The Group continues
to improve indoor ventilation and indoor temperature control, and
to select energy-efficient equipment to reduce the amount of energy
used for air conditioning. The Group also regularly monitors and
analyses energy consumption data to identify any unusual energy use
in its operations.

The Group provides resource management training to authorised staff
in each department to raise awareness of the importance of energy
conservation. Employees who operate energy-intensive equipment are
required to complete the training before starting work.

0.04

o
o
@

Intensity (tCOze/ '000 HKD revenue)

0.02

o
=

o
o
S
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RIE - HHEREGRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued) IRIZ{RE (48)
Climate Change (Continued) RIZEME (&)

Phase out the
use of diesel

BIHAKHNER

Adopted non-invasive
electromagnetic scale
control system since 2017
BZZ—tFRRAEHRA
NEBHIRKIEBRRLR

Switch off electronic
appliances and lights when
leaving rooms

BFANRAEFREREE

Energy-saving
Initiatives

BN REfE T

Reduce operations
duration of energyintensive

Provide energy-saving

machinery training to staff
> S FERE Y | 8 TR ENsELEI

BT

Regular maintenance of
machinery to ensure
operational efficiency
TE HR AR S 1 A L
HEARETHE

Improve air ventilation
and regulate the indoor
temperature

HMEENBERRASER
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Climate Change (Continued)

Energy Consumption Targets

RERHFERR
Neway Chung Tai Printing
R ERKENR

Consume <36 kWh of electricity per thousand
press pile boards of production units

STHREEEBUNABENBETRE

85% achieved

85%z1Z

iaiFM% s (:%Eé)
RiEE1E (B

Kam Hon Printing

SRENENRI

. Electricity consumption <400 kWh/'0,000

RMB stock-in quantity
BARBB T AERNEEETBIB400
TRE
100% achieved
100% &1z

. Energy consumption for all offices:

<16,000 kWh (May to September) or
<10,000 kWh (October to April)
FiBE M AERERHEFE .
Ti83816,000FEE (EBENA) &
R #8iE10,000FEFF (+BEMA)

100% achieved

Environmental Emergency Management

The Group places a high priority on preventing environmental
emergencies and disasters, including fires, chemical spill and other
natural disasters that could have a significant negative impact on the
environment.

In the event of an emergency, an emergency response team is in place
to deal with the incident. In addition, fire and chemical spill drills are
conducted regularly to ensure that employees are prepared to deal
effectively and quickly with emergency situations. During the Year, the
Group carried out two fire drills and a chemical spill drill.
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)

Environmental Emergency Management (Continued)

In order to better manage the risks that may affect the Group's
business operations, we have conducted a business continuity risk
assessment. The Group has established a contingency plan and a
disaster recovery plan based on risks assessment result. The risks
identified and the measures taken by the Group are shown in the

table below:

Type of Risk

R R

Physical Risk
BiRERE

IT System Risk
ITH 4t & B

Potential Impact
BERCE

Fire, explosion and chemical spill
may influence our production and
cause injuries to employees, leading
to property damage and may delay
delivery to customers

WK BIFRIEEmBRRA e E
BRANEERTGREEBT - EMN
MEBKKRUEERLERRAZR
&8

The IT system risk may result in
the leakage of our data related to
customers, clients, suppliers, etc
ITRARBAIEEREERT T
P HEREEANEERRESE

IRIGRE ()
RIFESERE (B

HEFHMERERELAERXHEE
WEE  RPERBR ELERFELN
R EsTE e xEEEMEBRTEER
REZERTBMKRIMES S - AEH
B 5B BY &L B K B £ EXBY A5 B 17 B &K
JINE

Actions taken

REXITE

e Establish emergency plans and
conduct regular drills

REBRZFERFARERES

e Install a fire alarm system

ZENERESRZA

e Strictly manage and store chemical
materials in designated places only
BREREBERERIEEMBFRHL
=S

e Establish firewalls and intrusion
detection systems

RE P NE R AR R

Set data encryption, backup
and disaster recovery strategies
to ensure data security and
recoverability
FIEHBBEMEZ - BHRBEZMER
B DUR PR SR &2 2 K ol IR M

e Provide cybersecurity training

courses to employees

HEBETHEZ AR
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)

Environmental Emergency Management (Continued)

Type of Risk
E FEEEE

Utilities/Key Equipment Risk
AHRZHE O RERRE

Labour, Government, Civil Risk

BT BT R 8 AR

Natural Catastrophe Risk
B 2R B B

Potential Impact

3 =34
BERE

Utilities and key equipment risk
including power failure, water
supply failure and gas supply failure
may influence our production,
leading to loss of revenue

DR R %0 5% R Bl B4
Bk -HRWE JEETE

FHFIBVEE BRI AR D

A labour strike may lead to labour
shortage

E LR BEERATIEER

Improper discharge of waste water,
air pollutants and solid waste
may violate local laws and have a
negative impact on production and
reputation

BEK -~ ERS R ERED T
EHWAIEER EftAE  WHE
ENBEELTEaETE

The earthquake, flood and
hurricane may have an impact on
our building structure, supply chain,
employees, and delivery on time,
leading to loss of revenue

R~ KR B E T AE E B MIR
EREB - HEE EE KEX
ST 2 SRR
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RiEfReE (48)
RIEE=ER ()

Actions taken
EEITE

Prepare backup power and water
sources

FRHEERBRRKIR

Perform regular maintenance and
servicing of elevators

TERRMEE RAEE B

Develop emergency plans and
measures for addressing events
like power outages, water supply
failures, elevator failures, and gas
supply failures
RIUEHMMEE Kk BERM
REEHHNE RT3 BT

Set up communication channels for
employees and increase employee
welfare
REREBERREKIESEER
Gl

Set environment management
policies and mechanisms to ensure
compliance
FIEIRIEEERR R EGIERS
5

Use the latest technology to reduce
emissions

fE R IR e E BT R HE TR

Establish emergency plans
T E =T

Conduct regular drills, maintain and
update equipment and facilities
HETCHER HEREMRER
B3

Back up important data and

documents

D EEHIR M

Ensure the reserve of raw materials
and semi-finished products

FERR A I e + R an B (15
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)

Environmental Emergency Management (Continued)

Type of Risk
E FEEEE

Health and lliness Ris

B2 B R P L B

Supply Chain and
Transportation Risk

1H 8 88 5 32 93 L B

Potential Impact
BETE

Infectious diseases, industrial
injuries, poisoning, etc. may
affect our employees, production,
and supply chain, leading to loss
of reputation and decrease in
productivity
BRAUEFR - ITHE -PEFEE
FEBRMNEE - EERMRERE
BREETIBREEER

Shortages or interruptions in
the supply of materials and
interruptions in the shipment of
products may result in delayed

deliveries

PETNE EBURER Y

OUR PEOPLE

The Group is committed to cultivating a work environment where
its members have a sense of belonging and well-being, equality, and
value.

Talent Acquisition

To standardise the staff recruitment procedure, the Group has
established Recruitment Guidelines. To safeguard legitimate rights
and benefits of employees and to enable all members to fully exercise
their rights, the Group has established Procedures for Free Association
and Employee Representation. We completely respect and protect
the rights of our employees to form associations freely and to elect
employee representatives without restrictions, to negotiate with the
management on relevant issues, and to monitor the fairness of the
procedures, ensuring protection of legitimate rights and obligations
of all members. To monitor the behaviour of the executives and
alignment with rules and regulations in the course of work, and
strengthening the construction of democracy, the Group has
formulated the Employee Complaint Management Policy.

MM RS AT B R E REH

IRIGRE ()
RIFESERE (B

Actions taken
REITEN

Take effective measures to
prevent and control the spread of
infectious diseases, such as regular
disinfection and work from home
EREX B 2445 1 TR PR Az 12 16 02 2 14
ERNER NEREERERT
1F

e Establish an emergency plan to
address emergencies related to
health problems
FIERHBREZFHMERS

]

e Establish cooperative relationships
with multiple suppliers

HEERERRISFRE

e Develop a supply chain backup plan
EAVAEYS N AEES

EB&

AEBRNINREE—BEETERE
B =R FEREENIFRIE

AZ1BEE

HREETHERERYF c&EEGBET
(BEEES) RMEREEN S AR
m EEEETIRDITHER S HER
FEBEFIET (BEHELREERERRE
F) -ZfEEERFREREBRE
HEFRRAPVEREEAT HEE
ERAMZRETERREERRFA
FHERER > BRI B TR S A &R
REHFIRE BEBETHRASET
RBRERNTAKRETHRAIERENIE
woBRERR AEBEFIET (BE
KB EEHE) -
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Talent Acquisition (Continued)

As of 31 December 2022, the Group has a total of 1,187 full-time
employees, with 1,104 of employees based in Mainland China. In
terms of educational attainment, approximately 18% of employees
hold tertiary qualifications. Our team is made up of approximately
25% managerial staff and approximately 75% general staff.

Employment Type

B8 (48)
AFABEE (48)
HE_ T __&#+_-_BA=+—H &x&

EHEE1,187%2BES > EF1,104%
BEHNTREAE EHEREESE
HMPNI18%NEBEHEE RNEERFE -
FNBERBAN25%NEBEE T RN
75%B—Ag B T4RL -

Geographical Region

TmEEsHER HhE
Part-time Hong Kong &i#
37 36
3 1,187 1,104
Age Gender
T 431
Male
B
127 148 643

31to 50
315 ES505%

915

Educational Background

HEER

547
Professional Profile
HAE
General staff
—RET
895

Below tertiary
education
XEUTF

975
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Talent Acquisition (Continued)

During the Year, the overall turnover rate was 58%. The charts below
illustrate the employee turnover rate by age, gender and geographical
region.

Turnover by Gender

R ERRRR EE R
80
61%
0 56%
40
20
0
Male Female
B g3

150

120

B& (&)
A7 BEE ()

RAEFEE > BEMKER58% - TES
BRI & MR RHIEA B D RVES

MR o

Turnover by Age
REFE T ERYTREE R

0,
95% 105%

46%

Under 30 31 to 50 Over 50
30T 31ERES0BE S0BEMAE

Turnover by Geographical Region

BthE DR mRA LR

100

80
60%
60

38%

Mainland China  Hong Kong
FREIARE ]

Diversity and Equal Opportunity

We are firmly against all forms of discrimination, in all aspects of
employment. The Discrimination Management Procedures was
updated in 2022, and other policies including Social Responsibility
Management Handbook, Free Labor Policy and Opposition to the Use
of Prison Labor Policy are set to ensure diversity and equal opportunity
in our team.

Rt TSRS

BABRRRENERS HEN T
AR - (REKBEEERF)NR -
“TEBH WAIE T HMEBR 85
((HEEEEETM) (BRFHHER
RREERNTER) » UEFRKXFE
BNZTERFEEE -

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE&EZKARAT | Annual Report 2022 F iR

103



104

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Diversity and Equal Opportunity (Continued)

We encourage employees to report any form of discrimination to
the Human Resources Department. All cases are dealt with fairly,
anonymously, and in the strictest confidence in accordance with the
Group's anti-discrimination management procedures. An employee
representatives meeting is held by the Group every quarter. If
employees feel that there is discrimination, they can lodge a complaint
with the employee representative of the department, or directly
complain to the manager of the Human Resources Department.

Welfare and Care

We care about the well-being and development of each employee,
and strive to help them develop and achieve their career goals.
Competitive compensation and benefits packages are offered to
attract and retain talent. In addition, we compensate employees fully
for overtime hours worked and offer a variety of paid leave options,
including maternity, marriage, and bereavement.

To ensure that employees have a worry-free life, Kam Hon Printing
has developed the Procedures for Implementing Salary Compensation
and Benefits in accordance with requirements of labour laws. The
goal is to establish and maintain reasonable salary compensation,
benefits policies and procedures for our members. We are committed
to paying a minimum wage that meets the local minimum wage, with
other additional benefits.

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

The Group respects employees' freedom. We prohibit forced labour
and have established channels for employee complaints, for example,
through employee representatives and suggestion boxes, to allow
employees to express their opinions and feelings at work.
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Prevention of Child and Forced Labour (Continued)

The Group has established a Prohibition of Forced Labour
Management Procedures, which states that the Group prohibits
and does not support any servitude or forced labour and ensures
that its members work in a healthy, safe, peaceful, stable, enjoyable
and voluntary environment. Our subsidiaries, Kam Hon Printing and
Neway Chung Tai Printing have established a policy on child labour
and under-age employment that prohibits child labour and safeguards
legal rights of any child labour deployed.

The Human Resources and Administration Department strictly verifies
the identity card and other documents during the recruitment process,
and the age and other data are confirmed before filling in the
Employee Induction Information Registration Form for recruitment. If
any juvenile worker is found, the Group takes the following measures.

B& (&
PilEE T R 58%% T (8)

FEEGFET(RLLRBFHEER
) HBAEERTAEBRZEILEBEAR
REAMKRSRESEs THEFREST

ARRE-Z2 - MF -RBRE-WRKBER
BYIRIE B T1F - FAPIBI B B A Bl SR EN EN)
R R R E2 R ARENRIGIE T (E MK

FTABERR) RIEFEHRAETD IR
BEREING E#Em-

ANERKRAITHEFIR BB BRE P &
BIZBESMEREMES TRIER
(1@%7\?&%1:.% 5C 7 ) B 3L 1A BS B
RERREMBIE HERAERNFE
T ﬁ”jﬁﬁxﬂﬂu??eﬁmo

For Worker between 16 - 18 years old

For Worker under 16 years old @
H 16 E18 EINTA

Ht16 BUATHIA

A

Immediately stop the worker's work and settle all
his/her salary.
VEMFIEZ T ANTE Wi EHEETE
Check worker identity details and find out the
reasons for the fake entry into the factory. Report
to the local police department if found to be
forced.

BETANBMEE  MHREEREATHENER
A o 2R E#IE > Bl RS ERFmEke

Arrange for health checks at the local CDC and
notify the local Occupational Safety and Health
Administration.
REMEZEPOZERERSE
ZERERRBEIERF-

» WIBA E B S

Strictly comply with the Regulations on Special
Protection for Juvenile Workers.

BRI ST (RAVE TR RERTE)

Prohibit harmful and risky work arrangement.

BItZHAERARBI IE.

No overtime or night shift shall be arranged.

RIS R HENNBE S HE o

Physical examination as required.
BEEETRRE

Register with the labour administrative department.

A EEIFIETERL

Establish special files for juvenile workers and
regularly understands their work, physical and
living conditions to effectively protect the physical
and mental health of juvenile workers.
BURNFIARBIER ERTHAIFE 5
BREEER VERERMFIAZLEE
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Employee Communication

Employee feedback is highly valued by the Group. The Management
Systems Executive Committee has established multiple channels of
communication, including a public WeChat account, to effectively
collect employee feedback and grievances. In addition, employees
are encouraged to join unions in order to voice their concerns about
labour issues.

Employee Activities

To enrich the leisure time of our employees and help them to better
cultivate their physical and spiritual development, we organised
various activities in 2022. These included New Year's Day and Spring
Festival Gala, various sports events, monthly staff birthday parties and
New Employee Orientation.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance
of relevant laws and regulations? that have a significant impact on
the Group relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, other benefits and welfare, and preventing child
and forced labour.

2022 Targets and Indicators

—E__FNBERKRER

Eg (&)
BEEE
BRERRARBRIAEENSEE
R BERANTEZE/NEERIZE
BERE UEMELRKRT UAN
WEREHRERFRF LI HfE
BEEMATLS URERSHIHM
RERYREE ©

ESZE
HEERENERLEEINENEESR
FHEESOER RAE-_ZT -
EBTEENEH 2T EYEETE
hEHBRE BEESEH - BRAET
THBRGRMABESRIENE

RAEFE > AEBTANEBETAER
ERREERERE BB RS TIFE
BRI TEREZ0E REAR
Hth B KRB U B IEE T K&l
FIRERKRER B EAEBRER
BEARENFH

000 The Group
TEH
1. No employees aged 16 and under
eI UTHIER

100% achieved

100% 3z

. 100% coverage of employee social

insurance
100%BEZ EEHT ERIERE

100% achieved
100% =

Z Please refer to the Laws and Regulations section for Labour-related
laws and regulations
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Training and Development

Training of employees is required for ensuring sustainable
development of the Group as employees are the Group's greatest
wealth and a well-designed cultivation system is essential for
growth and sustainability. It is the cornerstone of the organization’s
future development and also an essential guarantee of personal
development of employees.

We organise various training programmes including pre-employment
training, on-the-job training and transferee training to develop
employees’ capabilities. While the Human Resources Department
oversees and monitors the overall training and development strategy,
each department is responsible for determining the actual training
needs of its members.

Pre-employment

Bt TERR RS

e Operational procedures and
standards
EERERREE

Company background, organisation
introduction
NEIH R HEENA

Industrial and fire safety
THERHBZR equipments

SR A R AR F
Environmental policies and targets
IRIBERRER .
A E R IR RIS
International standards
B AR AE .

J

Labour safety management
BT EIE

On-the-job training

Maintenance and operation of

Sustainable and green procurement

J

B& (&)
A R % R

BEZIERREAEENFELEREN
WEFES DEEERTEB R
2 BORTHEERANNIERKT
REYREMER - HAMEBRKERE
WEL TAREEAZERNEEZMR

f&o

HFIRMWZEEIIEE > BEBATE
Al ERE R BRIEI LERES
WEEN - EANEREBFIBEREEE
el R ERREHRER > SEFIEE
BREHMEBNEREIIFR

e Operations and responsibilities of
the new position

MR EFREE
—)
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OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Training and Development (Continued)

To ensure training quality, we assign individuals who possess relevant
teaching or professional qualifications such as ISO 9000, ISO
14000 and FSC to conduct training involving technical knowledge.
A training team regularly reviews the effectiveness of training by
conducting evaluation and investigation. In addition, employees are
assessed on their level of understanding through oral examination,
written examination and practical examination. Their attendance and
examination results are recorded for future use. Based on operational
needs, the Group also encourages and subsidises employees to take
part in external courses when deemed desirable. During the Year, the
Group conducted training amounting to 17,651 hours.

During the Year, the Group provided employees with management
skills improvement training and high-performance team training to
enable them to have better career development.
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Training and Development (Continued)

In addition to hard skills and technical knowledge related to daily
operations, the Group believes that EHS management is also
important to sustain long-term development. For instance, we
provide EHS Emergency Training Program to employees. Through
these comprehensive training programs, we aim to strengthen the
staff's mindsets in respect of sustainability and safety and health
development. These programmes also help enhance performance
when dealing with various situations. The EHS training rate was 100%
covering all employees of the Group in 2022.

During the Year, the overall employee training percentage was
approximately 94%. Details of training hours and percentage by
gender and professional profile are listed below.

Average
Training Hours

35983 51| BF R

2022
—E_C
By Gender b gyl
Male B 16
Female goglca 16

By Professional Profile  $%88 AE

Management Staff BEEEBET 15
General Staff —fgET 16
g In accordance with the HKEX How to prepare an ESG Report Appendix

3: Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs, the methodology of calculating
the percentage of employees trained = (Number of employees trained
in category / Trained employees) *100%. And the methodology of
calculating average training hours = Total training hours in category /
Total number of employees in the category.

B8 (48)
R R (B

REEH W E SRR R A R B MTA
N AEERB/IRR - REHEZEE
BEREFRASETAEZ -HIW - &

fREERMRE BERZE

%5l

HMEAEZBZE2EMEIIZEZEM
BRETERFEERATSEBEREE
BRAENES ZERFETENRES
EEEBBERAENRERE R_2_-_—
FORBE-EREAEAZE2EININEA100%

BErEE2RES

RAEFE EENEBEREILANSD

94% o 321t Bl Ko B BE B 73 BY 5 ¥ 4l

B BDLEIIRIT e

Percentage of
Employees Trained?

=53

ZRIEIREENE 7

2022
o=

—_——

16 54%
16 46%
15 24%
16 76%

2021

REBEEBRZZ PN AHRRIRR LB K

ERMEINER3 : L BRAREIUERER
15510 RIEEBDLENFE L E= &
fERZREANE ZIEE)*100%

% 3 B B 5t B 5 0% =
B8 2R R E AR
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Occupational Health and Safety

2022 Targets and Indicators

—E - _FHERIEE

B8 (&)
BERERZE

000 The Group

TER
1. Zero cases of occupational disease

TREEREZR

2. Zero incidents related to flammable substance explosion, fire
incidents induced by chemicals, smoking, open flame operation and

circuit

SREMZIMIRIENSHEURICENE - IRIE - BNEERE

51 REHY

3. 100% coverage in employee OHS check-up

100%BEERSBERERZERE

4. 100% coverage in employee EHS knowledge training
100% B EEZ B RIRE B HE 2 2/ IE

OHS Management System

Led by top management, our ISO-certified OHS management system
involves all employees in consultation, defines the organization’s OHS
principles, determines target indicators, procedural responsibilities and
practical activities, and then prepares the OHS Management Manual.
The Group has an Occupational Health, Safety and Environmental
Management Policy. When it comes to OHS issues, we follow the
following overarching safety principles.

Securing a work environment free from occupational health and
safety hazards entails collaboration. Representatives from various
departments work closely together in the Environmental, Health and
Safety (EHS) committee to take up their respective responsibilities for
addressing various safety-related concerns.
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R - EREGRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued) B8 (&)
Occupational Health and Safety (Continued) BERBEREZE (@)
OHS Management System (Continued) BEBERZEZEEZEZRF (B)

Safety Principles
Z2RA

Prevention-oriented

FABRE

Environmental Management
RIREE

EHS Senior Management Representatives

R -REAZEZNEEEAR

OHS Team Industrial & Fire Safety Team Environmental Management Team
B2 R R 2 2 M X T2 Rk B =2 2 E RIS S E P

The senior management representatives on the EHS committee RIE-EBRHEZ2ZE/JENEERA
oversee the overall execution of the OHS management system ERBERBEALE2EERANE
and communicates with relevant parties. Under its supervision, the BRI REEBATEE THER
occupational health team is responsible for preventive measures T REREEEXEEHELRRKRAR
against occupational diseases as well as various health hazards BEGE (OESRI - EERFEERE)
including noise, dust and virus infection. A safety officer assumes FERF IR o Z % T A IEE RIRIRH
the role of managing environmental hygiene and food safety issues. ERBYMZEEENAG LI FE
Moreover, a qualified first aider is stationed at each department to M EEHE —SLEBERENE UK
perform first-aid in case an injury occurs. SEFETER
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Occupational Health and Safety (Continued)
OHS Management System (Continued)

As a printing products manufacturer, OHS becomes a major concern
when using machines. We have therefore set up a designated
industrial and fire safety team within the EHS committee to ensure
that our machines and equipment are operated safely and properly
and are well-preserved to minimise the risk of accidents and injuries.
Within this team, a fire team head is also assigned for preventing fire
incidents.

To protect employees from safety hazards and occupational diseases,
all employees are equipped with personal protective equipment in
accordance with their respective work-related needs. For employees
who are engaged in operations that involve handling of toxic and
harmful substances, we arrange health check-ups before they report
to duty, during the employment on an annual basis and before they
leave the positions to identify occupation-related health issues in
advance. During the Year, the Group did not record any cases of
occupational diseases.

Combating Potential Safety Hazards

To combat potential occupational risks, we use a prevention-oriented
approach in accordance with our safety-related principles. During the
Year, we maintained a List of Hazard Identification Evaluation and
Control Measures that covers sources of risk, potential hazards and
risk assessment of different work activities in different work zones.
The list also provides control measures to guide the employees on
preventing safety hazards.

The Fire Safety Management Policy of the Group requires employees
to get authorization from appropriate departments before igniting
a flame inside business facilities, such as manufacturing sites and
offices, in order to eliminate fire hazards. Furthermore, the Group
conducts a monthly fire safety inspection to identify any deficiencies
in fire-fighting equipment and corrects them as soon as possible. We
also hold fire drills at least twice a year to improve our employees’
safety awareness as well as their capacity to respond to crises.
The drills are used to practice evacuation protocols that should be
followed in the event of an emergency. During the Year, the Group
conducted Spring and Autumn fire drills in May and November 2022
respectively. We also provide training for employees who handle
chemicals every year.
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Occupational Health and Safety (Continued)
Combating Potential Safety Hazards (Continued)

To avoid serious injuries and accidents including fire and explosion,
we have a hazardous chemical goods management policy in place to
regulate the purchase, storage and use of chemicals.

B8 (&)
HERERZZE (B)
Br Ik Z 2% ()

ABREBREZTHEBREN (BEAKRIE
VE) B HMIRB(EEL2REBIER
K) UEELtE2EMNBEE -BERE
o

e Use non-hazardous chemicals instead of hazardous chemicals as much as possible

BrOSEEAESCERMIFESEER

e Purchase hazardous chemicals requiring an MSDS (Material Safety Data Sheet)

BEREYHZ2BEBRNESEER

Storing
chemials

feEanARER AR ENBRNENIRE

e Each department should keep a Chemicals Inventory List to ensure proper management
EHFEBEBELERGEENRMBEREYSERE

e Dangerous goods must be stored in indoor environment with sufficient ventilation

e Chemicals should be labelled with MSDS and sealed properly to prevent leakage
E2RENBYHLZ2BBRRNEREH L ZESH M UMK ERE

ERIEERSBEE RE KRR
Handling J
chemicals

RE{E2m

e Spillage and leakage should only be disposed of in designated containers

Wear safety protection equipment including goggles, masks and gloves when handling chemicals

REECE2RKESZERERG AINEER DERFE

In the event of a fire or explosion, strict emergency procedures are
followed to control the situation and minimise injuries and fatalities.
The measures include notifying rescue department at once, initiating
evacuation when safe and try to put off the fire with fire extinguishers
under feasible conditions. When there is a leakage, employees should
cut off power and isolate the spreading of liquids, if any.

i 88 4 KK BURNE > NEE & BIE RS
WEZREFLIEFRERARREET A
R e RN ENRIESFI - N2 E
By 8 B B U R B R AT 1B 000 T DU A 23
ERBERAK - HHRERR EEREE
BRI RAZBIIER ANA)
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Occupational Health and Safety (Continued)
Combating Potential Safety Hazards (Continued)

The Procedures for the Treatment of Employees’ Work-related Injuries
and the Return to Work has been established by the Group to grasp
the situation when work-related accidents occur in a timely, accurate
and comprehensive manner, to investigate the causes and rules of
work-related accidents, and to summarise the lessons learned so that
effective preventive measures can be taken to prevent the recurrence
of accidents.

During the Year, there were 9 work-related incidents and the number
of lost days due to work injuries was 430. There were no work-related
fatalities reported in the past 3 years. The Group was not aware of
any non-compliance of relevant laws and regulations* that have a
significant impact on the Group regarding the provision of a safe
working environment and protection of employees from occupational
hazards.

Safety Training

It is critical to foster a safety culture in the workplace. The Group
formulated an annual training plan and conducted a total of 4,390
hours safety training. In each of the 14 departments of the Group,
including Human Resources, Administration, Order Management,
Purchasing, Quality Management, and Production Planning,
annual education programs have been developed to help new
employees better integrate with the organization, and to promote
communication among members and create a good atmosphere for
mutual learning and progress.

New employees and those who are transferred to new positions will
receive training specific to the safety requirements of the position.
Similarly, individuals participating in special operations or working in
positions with higher risks will receive specialised training to ensure
that they have the necessary knowledge and capability to satisfy
operational requirements safely.

~ Please refer to the Laws and Regulations section for Health and Safety-
related laws and regulations
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Occupational Health and Safety (Continued)
Safety Training (Continued)

In 2022 annual training plan, the content of the training included
safety, general knowledge, management, professional, and systemic.
The training covers various aspects such as management skills,
machine operation skills, safety escape, basic knowledge of hazardous
materials, handling of hazardous waste, procurement process, social
responsibility management system, communication skills, customer
information confidentiality system, etc. Our annual education plan
aims to help our members to improve their all-round capabilities. The
training of skills and knowledge is the basis for doing all the work
well, and is also the principal way of developing more business.

Combating COVID-19

In 2022, the Group has proactively taken measures to help its
employees guard against infections. We have established a taskforce
to plan and respond to the impacts of COVID-19. The Group has
developed preventative measures and published guidance documents
on workspaces for cleaning procedures, social distancing practices,
etc. The Group has also implemented temperature screening at
selected locations and provided gloves, masks, and hand sanitisers to
all employees continually.

B8 (&)
HEREEREZZ (B)
Z 215 (8)

A FEEIEEH BIRE
BEZE2 - BEH BE -EERARMK-
AR R B IR B~ IR (F I BE ~ &
ERE -CRAERANH CHREREY
RE-RBRE - HESEEERR
BRERID-BEREERERBRARETZES
HeHZMHNFEHEE S EEBIA
WEERSRENGEEIES KK
AV T EPR A TERNER TR
ERBPLZEHBHNIERKE

#iicoviD-19

M- " F > NEBBHRIREIEHE
MEMBIEEEERZ - HMMIL—E
BR/NAEDUFR B R FEH COVID-1989 &2
B AEBECEH ETEHET WEME
B TIEBFNERRER R ERER
5 IX o AREBITPNIECHN M ME
MR E  WiFEn2RESIRHEF
E-OENRHEFEF R

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE&EZKARAT | Annual Report 2022 F iR

115



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATION PRACTICES

Supplier Management

The Group places significant emphasis on managing its suppliers,
implementing a set of criteria for selecting them to guarantee product
quality and safety, and expects suppliers to focus on managing risks
related to the environment, social issues, and labour. During the
Year, the Group had a total of 1,007 approved suppliers and sub-
contractors, of which 50 are located in Hong Kong, 952 are in
Mainland China, and 5 are in the other regions.

=HEBR
HEBER

FEEERHEBREE BN —ERE
HEBHREUREEREERZ S
WHEHEBSE TN EERRMIRE &
TRERFINRAR -NAEFE > £&E
EHAE1,007RAAHEERDEE
HAS0RA IR E R 952K MUK P ER
#h U R SR AL E i [& o

Supplier Selection Criteria it FERFR S IZ #

suppliers for the Group

e Set Supplier Selection Criteria to better manage the risk of the supply chain and choose qualified and greener

FIEHEHRERE UEEFHERHEREAR KMAEEREEGERBRROHERER

FSC Certified Paper FSC 5235 4% 3R

e Only use FSC-certified paper and follow the FSC Chain of Custody Management Manual when managing

products

BAAVEREA FSC VEMAR > WEEEEREETFSC EEREEEFM

Regular Assessment and Monitoring & 57 82 85 &

e Monthly and annual assessments are conducted to continuously monitor the performance of our suppliers

ERETRAEREENMMEFEEEHEBINERR
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)
Supplier Management (Continued)

Supplier Selection Criteria

HEER @)
HEBER (@
HRIEBRERE

Green Procurement

BERE

European RoHS 2.0, REACH, Packaging
Directive
®28RoHS 2.0 + REACH - B##E%

* US ASTM Standard
EFASTMZ%E

Sony Standard
ReE%E
Panasonic Standard
NTRE

Waste/rubbish classification

&Y, B3R5 48

Supplier Selection
Criteria

HERIEERE

Emergency plan

Manage chemical safety using Material
Safety Data Sheet (MSDS)
ERNHZ2HBERERB(LBERZR

Hazardous chemical suppliers must obtain
corresponding licenses

BEZRAER S ENGEENF AT

= Q ‘

Security Management
ZhhEE

Security management system
ZIEBRL

Control of the process of storage and
transportation of goods

ERENNRERERREF

Control of the personnel in and out of factory
BERHEAIROAE

Quality Management
mEEE

Certification of ISO 9001 -Quality
Management System
1SO 9001 RFREER R

Quality management measures
mEERER

Recycling mechanism for non-conforming
products

TEEE B S

Prohibition of child labour, forced labour
and prison labour
HIEABET - RESEIRET

Safety management
ZEER

Community investment and engagement

HERERSHE
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)
Supplier Management (Continued)

The Group has developed a Supplier Management Policy. The Quality
Management Department, Purchasing Department and System
Group are jointly responsible for overseeing the quality management
of suppliers and evaluation and audit of suppliers. When selecting
suppliers, we review their business licenses and relevant quality,
safety and environmental certifications, etc., and conduct tests on
products. Priority is given to suppliers who have good environmental
management. We require all suppliers to provide samples with
compliant third-party environmental test reports. If the materials
provided by suppliers fail to meet the stipulated environmental
standards, the purchases are suspended and they must be replaced
and re-tested by our Group.

The Supplier Management Policy with detailed assessments and rating
criteria ensures the materials and services provided by our suppliers
meet the requisite quality standards:

Monthly Assessment B B 5T

EERER (@
HEEEE (8)

FEECHEHEHEERR-BEE
B REMPIRRGERFAESH
BENEEEEEE MEEEATHG
BRI F-THEMERR RMEE
ZEEXHNRMEBAES Z2MNIRE
s THHEMRETRAN-BAER
FIRIREEXRROHER T UELE
EeoRMERMAEREMREHESSR
A = H BRI E R S B G o fH A8
BIRENME AT SR ENRRRE
AgEERE TARERETERK
EHAIR -

HEREERREDHAFETG
T ARIREE > DIRE R IE S 1R ARV A KL
RBRBHAFEEERENRE

e Evaluation of suppliers of raw materials be divided into three levels: A, B, and C

W R EHHE FE B Y5715 20 A~ BRRC =B AR 5]

e For suppliers rated C, notices and corrective measures are issued to them, requiring them to make written
improvements and follow up on the implementation of improvement measures
M RCRNMHEEMS > FRREFZE LB REBENEN > EXRREFETSHECE L IREDCER TR

EEER

e Suppliers who have been C-rated for three consecutive months could encounter corresponding measures

such as reducing purchases and stopping new projects

BB =B RE ST ACRN RS E R KRB R LA B SRS

Annual Assessment & E (&

e Suppliers' monthly scores are reviewed, and the annual audit score is obtained through an on-site audit,

which is used to divide them into three levels: A, B, and C

EZHEENAERD ERRSEEEEVEERER D UBBBEORKE D BA BRC=1EH 5]

e For suppliers with an annual rating of C, a "Supplier Corrective Action Request" is issued, while reducing
the purchase and stopping the development of new projects. If the supplier does not make significant
improvement, and the monthly score is still C-rated for 2 consecutive months, the supplier is disqualified.
MEETRACRNEREMS > SRREFR D MHERMAETEIENR > RS REUN D RE R LIEHEZ
WIEE AN o e I MRS BB ERDEEWER KRAETRCHR Bz MEE SRR
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)
Supplier Management (Continued)

Suppliers are encouraged to be socially responsible. All suppliers are
required to sign the environmental protection commitment, quality
assurance agreement and meet the environmental requirements. We
closely monitor supplier performance to ensure compliance with the
commitment.

Green Procurement

The Group is committed to following green and sustainable practices
throughout its supply chain, aiming to reduce the environmental
impact of its products and services by choosing and procuring
materials and services with a high level of environmental performance.
The Group has developed a “Green Product Management Handbook”
to provide guidance for the selection and management of green
products.

The Group is dedicated to procuring products that are environmentally
friendly, using only paper that is FSC-certified and adhering to the
FSC Chain of Custody Management Manual when managing such
products.

FSC™ Chain of Custody

FSCVEmEEH#

SEENR (@)
HEEEIE (@)

RS ER RIELE R E A H
A RRBRIBRERE HERE
Wk WETIRMAE AT EIE
HERRRI  UHEFRREFETEE

KR EIRE

FEER NN EBEHBE DT R
BRAFELH SEEBRRERRER
B 5 IR R WAL BI A B} B2 B 755 3k R > H
EmRIRBHIREE RN E - AEH
FIET(EEREEFM)  SERBE
mAEE R EBIRMHIES -

AEBNNONIXEBEGRE R EFEH
FSCRRFBARR WHEEEZSERRHE
SFFSCEE BB EIEF Mo

o Establish the FSC-COC Management Manual which was updated in 2022 according to the FSC Chain of
Custody standard to ensure that raw materials for the purchased paper materials-wood are from FSC-

certified, controlled and protected forests.

R FSC EREBEERRE > B FSC-COC EEFM (WS- _FFH) > AFRBRMRM L B

A7) BRI EHE B FSC 5858 ~ RIEMZRER R o

o Appoint a management representative to manage and supervise the FSC-COC system implementation.

EREEABRKREEEEREEFSC-COCRMMEMIBIT

o Commit to maximise the use of renewable materials in the procurement process.

EeaERBRRE TR EER A BEM

o Promise to gradually increase the proportion of FSC products in the company's sales.

EHEBTRS FSC EmER AR HERPAYELA -

o Require all suppliers to provide environmental protection-related certificates and pass tests.

ERFA MR MR RIARMEE @B -

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE&EZKARAT | Annual Report 2022 F iR

119



120

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)
Green Procurement (Continued)

During the Year, we provided FSC training to employees to ensure
that the Group’s FSC system meets relevant requirements, and to
make our employees better understand the implementation of the
FSC system.

Certified Quality Management System

Our Quality Manual which is based on the international standard
ISO 9001:2015 was revised in 2022 to provide updated guidance
on our products and services. The Group has received the following
certificates:

e |SO 9001: 2015 Quality Management System

e |CTI Ethical Toy Program

e BRCGS Global Standard for Packaging Materials

e G7 Master Qualification

To improve the technology and management continuously and
provide the best service, we set annual quality goals and conduct
monthly analyses to measure progress and identify reasons if targets

are not achieved. The Group’s Quality Manual clearly stipulates
product and service requirements.
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)
Certified Quality Management System (Continued)

Our quality management system covers all kinds of products, such as
labels, gift bags, toys, plastics, and other products provided by the
Group. We have conducted multiple evaluations and tests on the
delivered materials to ensure good quality of raw materials and high-
quality production, including third-party environmental protection
test reports that meet the requirements, the MSDS of chemicals for
chemical suppliers, etc. In addition, we actively provide training to
employees so that all of them have a clear understanding of the
Group’s quality management system. The Group constantly reviews
the quality management system and makes improvements based on
the actual situation.

Customer Satisfaction

The Group treats feedbacks from its customers seriously and conducts
customer satisfaction surveys on an annual basis. In 2022, the Group
achieved a customer satisfaction rate of over 96.7% and exceeded
the target of 95% satisfaction in areas of products, business services,

SERMR (B)
EI?L;J‘ :ﬁ E E éiﬂ ?‘ nﬁ (H\E)

BPNEEEERMEELAEEFE
HOEBE - CRR - ME - BBEEE
E i o HFIE BRI BIMEHEIT S I8
BRI LEREMHNREFES
BELE QEFEERIE=FIRE
ARRS CREREEENESRYY
ZEHBERZ I RMHBELES
REEFI EREFBFRTHEEENE
EEERAR AEBFEH B Eﬁf%%ﬁ
R4 WIRIRE BRIB T T A&

ERREE
AEBBEHFTELRHEORE I
BFET—REPAREEHRE -

T ECAEENELRREERBA
96.7%  TE M EERH  XTIRE

delivery services, and production/quality. REE/"BE2FENREEBBIS%
ER-
-
Business Delivery Production Customer
Products . . . . .

P Services Services Quality Satisfaction

Q i IR 3213 AR EREE  ERAERE
During the Year, a total of 108 complaints were received. All customer RAFE > £HBEI108RKF A&

complaints received by the Group were resolved to the entire
satisfaction of the concerned customers. The Group has established
procedures such as the “Customer Satisfaction Management
Procedure” and “Customer Management Procedure” to ensure
customer satisfaction. The business department is responsible for
interacting with customers, understanding the details and needs
related to complaints, and gathering information on customer
satisfaction. Upon receipt of a complaint, the business department
promptly contacts the customer, actively tracks and addresses
the issue, and follows a specific process for handling customer
complaints.

BENMMBERRPKRFHEEHA FER
BERTomB AEEERI(ER®™
REE fi&f»&«@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%»%
B BEREP MR EBHFIEEN
HEREH THEHFEREFERER
WKHEEBEERREENER ZER
Fie ZEBHAFEREHERR Bk
BHEE wERARBRERERFK
DFFO
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OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)
Customer Satisfaction (Continued)

Complaints Handling Procedures

Conduct
tests and

Verify the issue
and liaise with
customers investigation
ZERER E1T R R
BL% P kAR HE

Receive

complaints

EERER (@)
ERWEE (8
RiFBEEEF

Rectify the
Recall or problem and
reproduce formulate
products } preventive
[=] U 2% = £ measures
YEER Al 1F R A e

%I 7 FE A FE Bt

When dealing with recall of unqualified products, we maintain close
communication with customers. The recall team analyses the cause
and the suitability and initiates the recall process within 48 hours.

The Group strictly abides by applicable laws and regulations in Hong
Kong and Mainland China regarding product and service liability.
During the Year, there were no products sold by the Group that had
to be recalled due to health and safety concerns.

Responsible Service Provider

To foster a healthy, fair, and sustainable business environment, the
Group is dedicated to conducting its operations in a responsible
manner. We comply with all laws and regulations, and respect
the rights of stakeholders. Our commitment is to ensure that all
advertising information we publish is truthful, accurate, and not
misleading, and that it does not harm social or public interests or
the environment. Additionally, we prohibit any advertising that might
damage the reputation of competitors or infringe on trade secrets,
thus protecting the reputation of our business partners.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any violations of
relevant laws and regulations® that have a substantial effect on the
Group regarding health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
issues concerning the products and services offered and means of
redress.

2 Please refer to the Laws and Regulations section for Product
Responsibility-related laws and regulations
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)
Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

The Group respects and safeguards intellectual property rights
of its own as well as those of others. To enhance the protection
of intellectual property rights and inspire employee creativity and
innovation, the main subsidiaries of the Group have established
procedures for evaluating and protecting intellectual property
and procedures for controlling the confidentiality of products.
The management department is responsible for overseeing the
management of intellectual property rights, as listed below.

EERER (@)

fREERN B E
FEBESEWREEB S Rt AIA
R 7 o 7% I 58 1R o AT 5B 7 AR DR 3 MR
ERNRISAMEIFBH ZEBNEE
b BB A B) B I i A 5 EE A ST A AR BE
B UKRERRZESRZRF - B8]
BEEENHERNEEBR AR
HIENT e

e Establish various management regulations on intellectual property rights and coordinate
management work, guide, supervise and inspect the intellectual property management work of

other departments

e FIERBEMBERERERLGRAEETIF 5L Rt & H M BB P BY R 58 22 7

EETE

management

e Review applications from business units, organise and establish intellectual property rights

s BEXEBEUNFF BRKFENREESE

e BEMNMEMEDS
Application
]

e Responsible for intellectual property rights applications

Handling o BEMMERMYDEIE KT

Litigation
BRIEFER

e Responsible for intellectual property rights dispute handling and litigation

Signing s ZHERBNHERBRAGONRITNES

Contracts
= BH

e Participate in the signing or review of various contracts related to intellectual property rights

Marketing & experience

Education RN EVESIE-7: 2=l ol b b2 G PR UNSEES 2o

e Organise marketing education activities related to intellectual property rights and exchange of

EHKRHE
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)
Protection of Intellectual Property Rights (Continued)

The Group has established Confidential Product Control Program
and a mechanism for reporting any potential violations of intellectual
property rights. During the Year, the Group obtained two patents
authorisations, and was not involved in any complaints, lawsuits or
any non-compliance with laws and regulations® related to intellectual
property rights.

Data Security and Information Protection

The Group is aware of the importance of data protection and is
committed to maintaining security of information of stakeholders. Our
subsidiaries have established a Privacy Protection Management Policy
to properly preserve confidential information which applies to protect
the confidential information of our suppliers, customers and employees.
During the Year, the Group was not aware of any cases related to data
leakage or inconsistencies with relevant laws and regulations®.

The Group prohibits unauthorised access and use. The Product
Confidentiality Control Policy also lists the effective protection
measures to protect the data of suppliers, clients, consumers, and
employees:

EERER (@
REMBERE (B

FEBCRBI(RBEREMNRER) KR
BEEMBERICMBAERIT AR
fle RAFEE > FERRSMEZRNE
R BARBETMRSF R ERA
s EE AR R VR A RCRY 1B 0 0

HELEREEFRE

AERBFRANBIERENEEZ M WK

MEERDENER L2 - HANME
ABEHIE(ARRETERR)  UZ
RHREREER ZBERERAN REMH
EE - BERMNEENHEEN A FE
B RERIUARFREMT RBIFRE
WA GHEBERER BB

AEBRIEREEENTBRER - E
dn TR B HI R 7R 5% 5 B R B B
B BERVHEEREEENRER

=

H

Suppliers and Clients {tEERE R

BRIEGETEE TR TEAKBEEED

MBS R ERRE R REREME

9 BEFIEE— L ABREERERELEERRF

e Entering confidential production areas without being accompanied by staff is prohibited
e A confidentiality agreement is signed with clients for every order received

e A designated person from each department is responsible for overseeing the entire production process

Employees €&

e The Employee Code of Ethics is strictly followed, which prohibits the disclosure or publishing of any

confidential documents of the Group

BAAETREREEERETR ER R HEEN B HAEB T ARE
e Training and audits on data protection and privacy are conducted on an annual basis

rEESFRHEAFIBERERLRENENIREZ

e New employees are required to sign a confidentiality agreement

MABEBE AR REZE

6 Please refer to the Laws and Regulations section for intellectual
property rights-related and data security-related laws and regulations
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)

SEER (@

Anti-corruption RE5
e Zero corruption cases in 2022 @
TR _FuEELESERE

anti corruption system

TERKE BEEERETER

The Group places great emphasis on building a culture of integrity
within the organization, fostering an anti-corruption corporate culture
and implementing a “zero tolerance” policy towards any unethical
behaviour, including bribery, corruption, unjust enrichment, and
fraud. To standardise employee conduct and prevent such situations
within the company, Neway Chung Tai Printing and Kam Hon
Printing have developed a range of anti-corruption policies, and the
Human Resources and Administration Department is responsible for
overseeing their implementation. During the Year, the Group was not
aware of any non-compliance of relevant laws and regulations’ that
have a significant impact on the Group relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering and there was no concluded legal case
regarding corrupt practices brought again at the Group or its staff.

Z Please refer to the Laws and Regulations section for Anti-corruption-
related laws and regulations

e Provide anti-corruption training for all employees
including management

HEREEBEANERESRMTREISHEI AR

e Establish governance mechanism and build an enterprise

FEBESESERETHABAZILMEX
EREBEEREFSHNEEXE LHE
AABRENTH (BEHBE -85 -F
ERNKREMEE) BT 2EBIHER &
REEETAKRBLEATREFHIEL
15 RER KRR K IR ER E
EZEREFHER LA ANEREF
RITHHPIEEEEHBHB R IR
FE AEBTANBEDERBREA
B~ BV SRARORERBVA R BRI E
SHAEBRENERTENFER KL
ERAEEREETINERTARED
AL B R R AR o
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TERARR AR
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)
Anti-corruption (Continued)

The Group actively takes the actions listed below to set up an effective
corporate anti-corruption system:

HEER @)

RES (8)

AEEFBIRR THTE BIT2A
HNEERESES

Establishing Whistleblowing Channels # 37 £ 3k E &

place to protect the safety of whistleblowers.

L BRERTIRFERRENZ 2 -

e We have established various reporting channels, such as email, text massage, and anonymous call. We
encourage our employees to report any potentially unethical behavior and a protection mechanism is also in

HFPBRIUZEERRE WEH EERELBIZF HAXBEERSEMNEBENTERTR TR

~

J

Education and Training & Kz

e We provide regular anti-corruption training for all staff including management with the requirement of

participation and completion on time.

HMRE2RET (BEFEEER) REEHNREFEI BEXRE TRES ML FE -

e The Group assesses and monitors regularly the implementation of relevant policies

A& B E AL BB AR EERN B RIS R

In addition, we provide training to our employees. During the Year,
the employees from Kam Hom Printing are required to study the
Employee Code of Ethics. The purpose of this code is to enable
employees to properly understand and recognise the Company’s
commitment to prohibit illegal behavior and promote honest and
ethical behavior. The Employee Code of Ethics contains several
major sections: supervision of employees, prohibition of corruption,
bribery and corrupt practices, protection and use of company assets,
intellectual property rights, financial reporting, fair trade, business
activities, personal and company interests, special relationships,
complaints and whistleblowing, and other ten major sections. After
receiving various internal training, our members are required to
complete the appropriate skills / knowledge assessments.

Neway Group Holdings Limited RE2&@EZERRAR/AS | Annual Report 2022 F iR

tESh > FfIm B B 1R Mg dl o IR A F
E>RAERBDEDRNEERE (B
EBEELTH) xTFAEESE
EIEETHBABIRAEHREIEIF
FET RN EHE REBITRRAE -
(BEEBERELTR)HAEE TEAS
oo HEEEE -RBiEE)S -HRNE
SR RERERAATDEE -MBE
B-MBRE -ATES BEIEH @
AR BF ot~ FIRRIE R BR
REME+KED - RIFRZREREE
& EEHRTRE SR H
s e



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)
Whistleblowing

The Group has well articulated reporting procedures in place and
takes all reports of unethical behaviour seriously. We have policies
and measures in place to protect whistleblowers. All employees can
report to the Human Resources and Administration Department
via anonymous reporting hotlines, emails, text messages, etc., and
identity of the reporting person is protected by relevant personnel.
The Unethical Conduct Investigation Policy has been set by the Group
to provide guidance for investigation.

Upon receiving a report, the Group’s investigation procedures are as
follows:

Investigation Procedures

EERER (@
2%

FERBRAPERNRERER  LEHRH
AN ERTANEBRES - RMARER
EBRENBR N 2 EST
BHEERRRAE B REZRE
BANERRITHEFIRER > BRKE
WEMNEXEEMASNRE - F~EE
EREMERTABERR)  H#HE
REMIES -

REESKE AEENAETEFN
B

AERF

Conducting the Investigation FIB:AE

WEEREMNER  RIAE/NMERGEREE

e Gathering information on the incident, assembling an investigation team, and creating an investigation plan

Gathering Evidence and Testimony Ug& 35 # F% 55 573

e Collecting information and obtaining statements from witnesses

W {5 B I RIS 58 A BYRR It

Analysis, Handling, and Prevention %3#f ~ &= 2 K F8 A

e |dentifying the cause of the incident, determining responsibility, and making recommendations for

preventing similar incidents in the future

BESHNRE BESE UnBEGNRRELUEHFBERERHES
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OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)

Community Engagement

¢

Q. '
|y

The Group has always placed significant emphasis on investing in
and engaging with the community. In 2022, the Group donated
HKD 259,644, and the team contributed 5,616 hours of volunteer
activities.

Being a responsible business operator, we prioritise protecting the
environment and contributing to the health and social projects within
the community. We actively participate in public health activities, and
promote community prosperity and development through charitable
donations and encouraging employee engagement in community
building, community events and projects. Kam Hon Printing also
contributed to support education on the street and was praised by
Pinghu Street Federation of Industry and Commerce (Chamber of
Commerce).

The Group attaches great importance to build our social responsibility
system. During the Year, the Union of Longgang District (38 & L&)
provided Social Responsibility Training to our management staff twice.
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5,616 Hours Voluntary Activities
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e HKD 259,644 Donation
$87259,6447 7T
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Environment

1B

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY RIFEBEEE
2022 2021

=== B
Total Energy Consumption GJ 52,574.28 68,864.50
RERUHFEEE TIKEE
Energy consumption intensity GJHKD ('000) 0.12 0.1
REREEE FIKEE B (P
Electricity kWh 12,570,453.00 16,363,344.00
B TEE
Natural gas m3 156,608.00 217,787.00
AR AR
Petrol litres 26,219.28 34,144.14
FUH NI
Diesel litres 10,832.00 10,880.00
Sl NI
Water Consumption tonnes 85,199.00 160,833.00
FEKE i
Water consumption intensity tonnes/HKD ('000) 0.19 0.26
BRkEE Mg, 7t (F)
Packaging Materials
BEME
Paper tonnes 1,982.53 15,684.81
ok M5
Plastic tonnes 575.98 784.02
2B} it
Metal tonnes 1.00 0
B Mg
Greenhouse Gases (GHG) Emissions
RERBEHER
Scope 1: Direct carbon emissions tCOze 432.90 686.13
FHE - EEEEK BE_EtRES
Scope 2: Indirect carbon emissions tCO2e 9,332.16 13,031.72
FE2 © BB ME_EtREE
Total GHG emissions tCO2e 9,765.06 13,717.85
RERBHHES M—EEREE
Total GHG emission intensity tCO2e/HKD ('000) 0.02 0.02
AERBHNEERSE mM-EiREE

A7t (F)

Air Pollutants
ERSEY
SOx kg 0.39 0.48
maEity NS
NOXx kg 61.30 77.81
K481 YNis
PM kg 5.38 6.85
BT FEm YN
VOCs tonnes 15.46 28.67*
BEEMERIEEY Mg

* The data of VOCs in 2021 has been updated.
“E T -FHRESEUEARICSYMEBEEER-
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PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY (Continued)

Environment
i

Workforce
Demographics
HEh
A8t

e The data of hazardous waste in 2021 has been updated.

Waste
EEEY

RRBEME (B

2022
==

—_—

Hazardous waste

BEEEEY

tonnes
i

73.58

83.43**

Hazardous waste intensity

BEEBRRMTE

kg/HKD ('000)
Af /B ()

0.16

0.10

Non-hazardous waste
mEREEY

tonnes
7

220.00

192.00

Non-hazardous waste intensity

kg/HKD ('000)
Afr /BT (T)

0.49

0.31

Effluent
75K

tonnes
7

5,274.00

8179.00

Effluent intensity
EKERE

tonnes/HKD (‘000)
Mg, B (F)

0.01

0.01

Total Headcount

EEHEE

1,190

1,327

By Geographical Region
&

Mainland China
[ A e

1,104

1,227

Hong Kong
BN

86

100

By Age
RER

30 or Below

308 E AR

148

140

31-50
315 E505%

915

1,072

Above 50
505% L =

127

115

By Gender
=R

Male
Bt

643

685

Female

go§ 3

547

642

R —FNEEERYHBBEEEMR-

Neway Group Holdings Limited RE2&@EZERRAR/AS | Annual Report 2022 F iR




Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HHEREGRS

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY (Continued) RIFEME (8)

2022 2021
—E—— —E-—fF

fg Educational Background

ic =

A=
College or above 215 225
RELE
Below College 975 1,102
RELTF
By Professional Profile

B AE

Management staff 295 330
BEREET
General staff 895 997
—RET
Employee Turnover Rate
BERKLLZE

Total 58% 65%
“BEL
By Age
AN
30 or Below 95% 220%
30RR BT
31-50 46% 46%
315 E508%
Above 50 105% 60%
50 A £
By Gender
Workforce 14 5
DETGLLTET I Male 56 % 68%
FHEh B
ANE st Female 61% 62%
7%
?g Geographical Region
&

Mainland China 60% 66%
B A

Hong Kong 38% 53%
BB

=

Employee New Hire Rate

(LA RS

Total 39% 58%
% Age
Fhe
30 or Below 107 % 175%
30RR U T
31-50 33% 49%
315 E505%
Above 50 1% 6%
505% A k&
By Gender
4B
Male 43% 62%
B
Female 35% 54%
7%
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PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY (Continued) RINBUHEHE (48)
2022 2021
g —E-—fF
Percentage of Employees Trained 94% 94%
ZiIEEB DL
By Gender
4 B
Male 54% 52%
B5
Female 46% 48%
e
By Professional Profile
R RE
Management staff 24% 25%
BEEET
General staff 76% 75%
Training and —mmeT
Development
-+ Dg-3-28 Average Training Hours per Person 16 16
FAFEN S
By Gender
R
Male hours 16 16
B N:=
Female hours 16 16
Z% N
By Professional Profile
Y AE
Management staff hours 15 15
EEEBT NEF
General staff hours 16 16
—mBT N
Work-related incident cases 9 19
TEHERAEN ¥
Lost days due to work-related injury days 430 348
TEBERTEAH X
HesaaI;l;t?,nd Work-related fatalities no. of staff 0 0
RERER TEMERASET A& BT A#
Number of employees participating in safety | person-times 2,493 2,571
training AR
S2HZ2EIEE AH
Total safety training hours hours 4,390 5,495
g b [FCLS INE
(ee] 11711147 Donations HK$ 259,644 132,131
Investment [EEEN BT
HERSE
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX MZHARE-HEERELEARS
25|

(G HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section

RARAEMISIR BRAIRIE - HERERREESIER E=4:0]

Governance Structure | A statement from the board containing the following elements: BOARD STATEMENT

ERLERE (i)  a disclosure of the board's oversight of ESG issues; ERTEHH

(i)  the board’s ESG management approach and strategy, including
the process used to evaluate, prioritise and manage material
ESG-related issues (including risks to the issuer’s businesses); and

(i) how the board reviews progress made against ESG-related goals
and targets with an explanation of how they relate to the issuer’s
businesses.

HESTELMNBR BERHE TIIAS !

() REEFEHRE HEARELFENERE

(il EFEMNRE - HERELEESH LRI SENE B
%F?‘J&Eﬁ%gﬁﬁi&iﬁ HEREREAEE (BEFEHEFETA
EBRER) B8R ;

(i) EEFFUWARIRE %iﬁ)iz B /uffﬁﬁﬁ BB ER > LHERE
P90 fe B2 8847 A\ EF5 A R &

Reporting Principles | A description of, an explanation on, the application of the following | ABOUT THIS REPORT

FE#RRAI Reporting Principles in the preparation of the ESG report: — Reporting Principles
(1) Materiality: The threshold at which ESG issues determined AR AR S
by the board are sufficiently important to investors and other —HRERA

stakeholders that they should be reported.

(2) Quantitative: KPIs in respect of historical data need to be
measurable. The issuer should set targets (which may be actual
numerical figures or directional, forward looking statements)
to reduce a particular impact. In this way the effectiveness of
ESG policies and management systems can be evaluated and
validated. Quantitative information should be accompanied
by a narrative, explaining its purpose, impacts, and giving
comparative data where appropriate.

(3) Balance: The ESG report should provide an unbiased picture
of the issuer’s performance. The report should avoid selections,
omissions, or presentation formats that may inappropriately
influence a decision or judgment by the report reader.

(4) Consistency: The issuer should use consistent methodologies to
allow for meaningful comparisons of ESG data over time.

HANBEARERE HEREARSKHIUAERA T ERRA :

(1) EEM EESeETAMRRE - HEREAEESHRES
REMFEHEELEECER > E1TAMBELHER

(2) B21b: FRAELBBENEARENISRAD T8 BT AT

TRAERFENE R AIUZERHEFH S B RSN
B B IRR - HERELAHEREERR R AT
B8 - BIEERENHRE MARBENRTE LEE
ERNER TRE LR EE

() T RBE - HEREARTEEFARIEM2RETANE
o BRr g aEtT BREBE RRNFENEE B
R 2RI

4) —HM:BTARGHABNEERSH L CRE-HERK
ERBBEHRAFAERNLLR-
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IR

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

KPIs

B RIS 1R

Reporting Boundary
R E

HERERERS

=3l ()

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
BRAARE - ERERBREESIEX

A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG report and
describing the process used to identify which entities or operations are
included in the ESG report. If there is a change in the scope, the issuer
should explain the difference and reason for the change.

RERE HEREARTNERIEE R IENLEEIBZE
BAARE - HEREARSNBRE EERBESPIE E1TA
FEfRIER R 2 R EEREA -

BRXFRIRIR - L ERE

B

Section

E=1-1]

ABOUT THIS REPORT
— Reporting Boundary
and Period

AR AR S
—REBR MR

A. Environmental
A. IRIE

Aspect A1:
Emissions
[EmEAT :
2135 Y]

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water

and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

—RRIKER

Environmental
Protection
E«E iﬁ,'f 7k Dx

BRRBARERBIN mKKRIMEES - BEREZEEYH

EEN:

(@ HR, K

(b) BFHETABBARXENEBERRROANER

KPI A1.1 Types of emissions and their respective emissions data. | Environmental
RASRAER | PEM RS R H AR B E Protection — Emissions
E1EAT Control

KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) IR IR — HR A )
RABRAER greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where

$548A1.2 | appropriate, intensity.

BE# (@E) kERBE EE2) RERBHFRE U
MRS E) RBE WEA) o

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where |Environmental

RASRAER appropriate, intensity. Protection —

IBIEA13  |FIEEEEEEYHRESES CUEFE) REE WHEA) o | Effluent and Waste

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Managemen\t_

RASE4EM | where appropriate, intensity. IR RaE — 57K &
s

I51BA14  |FIEEESHEEYAEE QRN E) REE (ER) - |BENEE

KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to | Environmental

RARAE R achieve them. Protection — Emissions

AT E] LB HENE B IR R B E B IE L B AR P SRENRY
TERe

F51EA1.5

Control; Environmental
Performance Tracking
IR R —HEBUES ;
IRIRRIFBHE
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IRIR - ERE

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

KPIs
R R AE 1R

RS

25| (@)

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements

B RXFRIRIR - HH B R ERREIESIEXR

KPI A1.6
RASRAER
}51EA1.6

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

i RIEAE R BmERBEEYN G % REMPTET N
REB R AEDELEEEMFEIRN T o

BRFIRIE - EREBRR

Section

=1-1]

Environmental
Protection —

Effluent and Waste
Management;
Environmental
Performance Tracking
IRIBIRE 5K
BEEWER ;

f51RA2.1

R DHNERER, S RHEEE UTE
TREE) REE-

RIF RN

Aspect A2: General Disclosure Environmental
Use of Resources Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and Protection
BEA2 : other raw materials. RIBIRE
BiRER —RRIKER

BRERER (BEER K REMEME) BIER

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in Environmental

RASE4ERL | total (kWh in '000s) and intensity. Protection — Energy

RIGRE-ER

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Environmental
RARREN |EFEKEREE- Protection — Water
F51EA2.2 RIBRE—KER
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and Environmental
RASR4ERL | steps taken to achieve them. Protection — Emissions

I512A2.3

PSR RERAN @ B R kA ERBLER R

BRENBY D BR o

Control; Greenhouse
Gas Emissions

RIBRE —FFUES]

0 = RBE HF

KPI A2.4
RARAER
}51EA2.4

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s)
set and steps taken to achieve them.

Hat SR EGE AR AOR LI BRI RE » LU FrET LAY A3
KW B R BETESLEBRMERIRN T ER -

Environmental
Protection — Water;
Environmental
Performance Tracking
RIBIRE—KER ;
IRIRRIFBHE

KPI A2.5
ik
151RA2.5

Total packaging materials used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

SR T A EEMEIREE (UWEH) k QER) &
FEBEESo

Environmental
Protection — Paper
Usage and Packaging
R IRE—RIREA
gk
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IRIR - ERE

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

RS

BZFIRIR - ERER
?gl (n‘ﬁ)

RE

(G HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section
RARAE ISR BRAIRIE - HERERREESIER E=3:0]
Aspect A3: General Disclosure Environmental
The Environment and | Policies on minimising the issuers’ significant impact on the Protection
Natural Resources environment and natural resources. IRIEIRE
[BEAS3 : — iR E
RIFRRAER RBEITAHRIERRAEREMERTENER-
KPI A3.1 Description of significant impacts of activities on the Environmental
R A environment and natural resources and the actions Protection —
f542A3.1  |taken to manage them. Promoting Green
RN HBRIE RN R ARAE RN EAFE R EIREE |Products; Noise
BRATZENITE - Management;
Environmental
Emergency
Management
R RE—
T’EF‘ BBE®m;
-v— E E EE )
RIFEZSEIE
Aspect A4: General Disclosure Environmental
Climate Change Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related | Protection —
[EEAA : issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer. |Climate Change
RIFL1E —RIRE RIRRE-—RIEZE

DE%E'J&}T%ETE%“ AREEHETAELERENEARGEBSEEN
BUR

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues
RASE4ES | which have impacted, and those which may impact, the
51EA4.1 issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

BB KR AIEEHETAEERENERRIZERM

=8 REHTH-
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IRIE - g hESKRS

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued) MZHARE-HEERELEARS
%5l (%)

KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section

RRIRAR ISR BRFRIRIE - E R ERREIESIEXR =i

B. Social

B. &

Aspect B1: General Disclosure Our People

Employment Information on: 8T

E®EB1 : (@) the policies; and

2% (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
—RIRE
ERREEREE -BEREA TEFECRH - TFHEZE-
[ I 45 LU B At 5 3B e i@ FI B -
(@ BER; &
(b) BFHETABEAREZNERBEIERROINEER
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group | Our People — Talent
RASEM | and geographical region. Acquisition
$51%B1.1 R~ BEER FEEN BB DHEERE . | ET— AT 1EE
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
RATRER geographical region.
f518B1.2  |[#ZMER FiRAER Rt E S DHEERALER -
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HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued) MFIRIE - HEREBARD
%5l (%)

KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section

RRIRAR ISR BRFRIRIE - E R ERREIEEIEXR =i

Aspect B2: Health General Disclosure Our People —

and Safety Information on: Occupational Health

JEmEB2 : (@) the policies; and and Safe

BEEZE (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a ET-BEREK
significant impact on the issuer Ze

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

— i E

BEREHZE2TERERRERERSHESEBEMN !

(@ HR;, &K

(b) BEBTFTHETABEAXENEREERRINER -

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in
RASE4ERL | each of the past three years including the reporting year.
¥51EB2.1 BE=F (BEERFE) SFRITHN AR KL

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injuries.
RAREN |RIEELAIEER-
151%B2.2
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures
RATRAERN adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.
{518B2.3  |HAZLPAERANAVER SR (2R A 22 2 T > MURAERAFIT K
R &
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HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

BRSPS H B REAAE
%3] ()

KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section
RRIRAR ISR BRFRIRIE - E R ERREIESIEXR =i
Aspect B3: General Disclosure Our People —
Development and Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging | Training and
Training duties at work. Description of training activities. Development
[EEB3 : — iR iR BT -EilRER
R REIN BRI EE BT LIFR BRI & R i SRR « i 5 3 E 8 o

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and

RABE4ER | employee category.

$51EB3.1 BRI REEENEDHNZIEREB DL

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by

BASEER | gender and employee category.

f51EB3.2 (MR KEEERE D > BREE TR TFIIEIIE

2o

Aspect B4: General Disclosure Our People —
Labour Standards Information on: Prevention of Child and
JZEB4 . (@) the policies; and Forced Labour
& T#H| (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a ET-PHUEET K

significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child or forced labour.

— iR iR

BRAMIEE T aisamss TaY -

(@ BER; &

(b) BTFHETABEAZENEREIERRFINER -

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices
RASE4ES | to avoid child and forced labour.

151%B4.1 HtissT B EE R EEMU B R E T RAH5 T o
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices
RASEM | when discovered.

151%B4.2 TR B IRERRIB R H IR B B AR P ERERBY 247 5% o

SRS T
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IRIR - ERE

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

KPIs

BB IR SR

Aspect B5:
Supply Chain
Management
fEEBS :
AR E IR

RS

25| (@)

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
BRI FRIRIR - E R ERHREIE5I1EX

General Disclosure
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply

chain

—RRINE

BIEMERNIRE R G REBBER

BRFIRIE - EREBRR

Section
=i
Operation Practices

EEER

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.
FRRER |(EHEIHSNEEmESE-

$51EB5.1

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
RABRAER number of suppliers where the practices are being

$51%B5.2

implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

AR A HERNIES > RERITERIBEMH
e B > U AR MIT R EEE 5%

Operation Practices —
Supplier Management

ERR-HEmE
EE

KPI B5.3
RASRAERY
E1ZB5.3

Description of practices used to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

BRI A HERSERMNNRERT S RRMNIE
B> U ABRARAT R B % o

KPI B5.4
A
151%B5.4

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and services when
selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
HMEREREEREESRRRERRRBNIE
Bl U ABRAB AT REER A

Operation Practices —
Supplier Management;
Green Procurement
EEBR—HER
BIR ; BB
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HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

KPIs

RRIRAR ISR
Aspect B6:
Product

Responsibility
fEEBG :
EmAE

25| (@)

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements

BRRFIRIE - G R ERREIESIEKR

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters

relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.

— i E

BRFMEHERNRBNEERAZE BEE - BERRLESEUR

FRFEN

BRSPS H B REAAE

Section

420

Operating Practices
EERER

(@) BR; &
(b) BEBTFHETABEAZENEREERRFINER -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to | Operation Practices —

BB AR R
$51%B6.1

recalls for safety and health reasons.
EEXNEEXERBHPEZ 2 EEERIERMARIK
B

Customer Satisfaction
EEERH-FARER
E

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints

RASEM | received and how they are dealt with.

151%B6.2 |IHEBRIAERMARFAVIRREE UREH G-

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and Operation Practices
RATRER protecting intellectual property rights. — Protection of

HiRB6.3 | HILEMEE R REN A E A FIVED -

Intellectual Property
Rights
EEBHR-REANH
E

KPI B6.4
RABEN
}51ZB6.4

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.
HnE S EBE KR EmEIWRER -

Operation Practices
— Certified Quality
Management System
EEEHE-SDREE
EEAR

KPI B6.5
151%B6.5

Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, how they are implemented and monitored.
HUH BB BRI R A RIS » U R ABR T R EE
B/ Ae

Operation Practices

— Data Security and
Information Protection
EERR-#EZL
KIE B iR
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IRIR - ERE

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

KPIs

BB IR SR

Aspect B7:
Anti-corruption
fEHEB7 :

R&EB

RS

25| (@)

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
BRI FRIRIR - E R ERHREIE5I1EX

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

— i E

BRI LEFERS ~ 81 3R ~ ERFF R R R 820 ¢

(@ HE; &

(b) BTFHETABEAXENERZERRFANER -

BRFRIRIE B RER

KPI B7.1
R S AR 5K
151%B7.1

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its staff during
the Year and outcomes of the cases.
EAZIKEEFETW%ﬁ’“‘)\ﬁﬂéiﬁﬁE‘IE%%B’\JE‘}%%&
REUMEE KA ER

KPI B7.2
RASR4E RN
}51EB7.2

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.

BB IE T R R R URBARTRERT %

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to
RASEAERL | directors and staff.

151887.3  |HAEERE TRENRASE-

RE

Section

=i

Operation Practices
— Anti-corruption;
Whistleblowing
EEBR-KRE5;
B

Aspect B8:
Community
Investment
[EEBS :
HERE

General Disclosure

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take
into consideration the communities’ interests.

— AR IR EE

BN EZ2ERTHRETAESEMENTRRENRER XSS

FEEBHEN R

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution.

RASRAER HrEREE-

}51ZB8.1

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area.
RASRAERN EEIHEBEMRHAE R

$51ZB8.2

Operation Practices

— Community
Engagement
SERR—1tez A
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LAWS AND REGULATIONS FEERREER
The Group devotes unremitting efforts to ensure that its business KEEFESENMMEERHEERESES
operations are in full compliance with all applicable laws and PETFAEHBIE - T EREANFFERE
regulations in respect of ESG. The list of applicable laws and BiEEEEREBAEE L ERYEFW
regulations is as follows: B
Applicable Laws and Regulations Section
BRERRER EEf
Emissions ° Environmental Protection Law of the PRC Environmental
BER D hEE A REFEIRIERES Protection — Emission
° Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC Control
EE AR EMBEIKSREEE IRIG(RE —HEBUES
° Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC
FEAREMBERRISEEAAE]
° Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environmental

Pollution by Solid Waste
REANRENEEREYSEIRER G E

° Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Environmental
Noise Pollution
FEARAEMBIRIRIEZE SRR E

o The National Hazardous Waste List
Bl 2R 15 B BE ) o
o Integrated Air Pollutant Discharge Standard
KR SEMER EHEMAEZE
o Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard
SRR B BEUR A
o Boiler Air Pollutants Emission Standard
HEIE K RS R BERUR 2
Use of Resources o Energy Conservation Law of the PRC Environmental
BIRFER e N R HEMEHEAIBETRE Protection — Resources
o Cleaner Production Promotion Law of the PRC Conservation
REARENEBEREEREE IRIBERE-SHNER
Environmental and o Forest Law of the PRC Environmental
Natural Resources FEE N RHEMBIZFME Protection — Noise
RIBERRARER . Regulations of Guangdong Province on Forest Protection|Management;
Management Environmental
EERE R MIREEIEESG Emergency
Management
RIBRE-IRSEE;
IRIBESEIE
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LAWS AND REGULATIONS (Continued) FERERER (&)
Applicable Laws and Regulations Section
BRERERER E=4:0]
Labour o Labour Law of the PRC Our People — Employee
%I REARENEEFHE Communication;
o Labour Contract Law of the PRC Employment Activities
FEARENMBES B SREE EE—EBEHESE
. Law of the PRC on the Protection of Disabled Persons B1F/EE
REE NRHEMBEIRE A REE
o Law of the PRC on the Protection of Minorities
FEARAENMBEDBREREE
o Trade Union Law of the PRC
FEARENBEIEE
o Women'’s Right Protection Law of the PRC
FREE \RHEME R 2 # 5w REE
o Special Rules on the Labour Protection of Female Employees
I HEBRERHRE
o The Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong
BB E R
o The Employee’s Compensation Ordinance in Hong Kong
BB EEMENRSG
o The Sex Discrimination Ordinance in Hong Kong
BAEM R AR IR B
° The Race Discrimination Ordinance in Hong Kong
EARBRIEAREG
o The Disability Discrimination Ordinance in Hong Kong
BBRBEIAR R
Health and Safety o Production Safety Law of the PRC Our People —
BEEAZE REARENEAZEEEE Occupational Health
o Special Equipment Safety Law of the PRC and Safety
FEARENMBERERBERZEE BE—BFEERER
. Fire Protection Law of the PRC zZe
REANRHEMBEDEM
o Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases
FEAREMBEIBERNGE
o The Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance in Hong Kong
BB 2 2 R 2B AR
Labour standards o Law of the PRC on the Protection of Minors Our People —Prevention
B ITAR FEANREMBIRBLE A REZE of Child and Forced
o Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour Labour
BIHBERAEIRE BE-FHLEETR
S8l g5 T
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LAWS AND REGULATIONS (Continued)

ERBGER (1)

Applicable Laws and Regulations Section

BRERRIER S

Product
Responsibility
EmAE

Product Quality Law of the PRC
REARENBEERE S

Production Safety Law of the PRC
REARENEAZ 2 EEZE

Intellectual Property Laws of the PRC

RE AR EMBEMHEEE
Cybersecurity Law of the PRC
REARENE@ELE L 2E

Patent Law of the PRC
REARENBEENE

Personal Information Protection Law of the PRC
REARENEEAEBREE

The Personal Data Ordinance in Hong Kong

B REAERHFEA

Operating Practices

— Certified Quality
Management System
Protection of
Intellectual Property
Rights;

Data Security and
Information Protection
EEBR-DEER

BERA
TREER A ETE

L2 RiEBFRE

Anti-corruption

R&s

Criminal Law of the PRC
REEAREMBEIFIE

Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC
FEARAEMBER A ESEHERE

The Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong

BB L BRRR R

Operating Practices —
Anticorruption
EEER-RES
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Independent Auditor’s Report
i RVR 22 ETE

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NEWAY GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Neway
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 153 to 313,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ETER S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation
of investment properties as
a key audit matter due to
the inherent level of complex
and subjective judgement
and estimates required in
determining the fair values.

The Group’s investment
properties portfolio comprises
commercial and industrial
properties located in Hong Kong
and the People Republic of
China (the “PRC") and is stated
at fair value of HK$111,151,556
as at 31 December 2022 with a
fair value loss of HK$14,498,870
recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for
the year then ended.

Our procedures in relation to
the valuation of investment
properties included:

e  Evaluating the competence,
capabilities and objectivity
of the valuers and obtaining
an understanding of the
valuers’ scope of work and
their terms of engagement;

e  FEvaluating the appropriateness
of the valuers’ valuation
approaches to assess if they
meet the requirements of the
HKFRSs and industry nomns;

e g

FREASFSEERBEESTHNEEHE
RmHBN ARG BREERE
ENRR-ZFFHREEESTEAER
HEMBBRRRLAERKETRE
W-EE A EHRFETREHBEBENE

Bo
BEENE MR

MREHEE REAZRETRE

REWENLGE

EERRRENENG BFERRENEN

EABMREANEE L HENEFEE:

DHEREEATERS

EEABRMIFHER

REBNHIE KM o FHEGEMNE
BN REE
o MR T G
BN TFEE

EEENRENEE REENERF

AREUREERS s

EARHEME (THED)
MEERTEYE T
I
B=+—HMATE
111,151,556 7041
B IREEERLEE
ENGGEEREMS
FRONTEL N
F{EE1814,498,8707%
Eo

o SHEMEERAR
FBREET AR
BEM LTS
RERENEE
BRBREER
HERITER
B
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B ETER S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

How our audit addressed

Key audit matter

the key audit matter

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

The Group's investment properties
are measured using the fair value
model based on a valuation
performed by independent
qualified professional valuers. As
disclosed in notes 4 and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements,
in determining the fair values
of the Group’s investment
properties, the valuers have
applied income capitalisation
approach for respective
properties, which involve, inter-
alia, certain estimates, including
appropriate capitalisation rates,
reversionary income potential
and market transactions of
comparable properties, as
appropriate.
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Challenging the reasonableness
and appropriateness of
valuation models applied
based on available market
information and our knowledge
of the property industry and
whether the methodologies are
consistent with the bases used
in prior year; and

Assessing the reasonableness
of key inputs used in the
valuation, on a sample
basis, by checking to the
publicly available information
on market transactions of
comparable properties,
comparing rental income,
terms of existing leases to
the existing lease summaries
of the Group and evaluating
whether capitalisation rates
adopted are comparable to
the market.

FAfRE T H 18 (4B)

BENEH AN
WREHEE REHEEETEE
BENLH1E ()
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BATEER REE HHREZHY
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RIISHRE 1 B> A B
T REERENLEY EEER AR
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ZEY RGN E R 55 R
b3 BHH R (B
B BT (@S o EBRYTER
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Independent Auditor’s Report
iRV 2 (IES =

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
iRV 2 (IES =

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
iRV 2 (IES =

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
iRV 2 (IES =

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Ms. YEUNG PIK FUNG.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
27 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

raRm M EHMEENARR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

2022 2021
—E_F ="
NOTES HK$ HK$
K&t BT BT

Total revenue Fllogers 449,403,342 623,576,722
Gross proceeds from sale of listed HE EFHEHFTEZ

equity instruments P18 IB4E 28 4,614,820 1,249,500

454,018,162 624,826,222

Revenue & 5

Revenue from goods and services 2 B & @M AR#E 2 W 443,424,752 617,179,208

Rental income e ON 2,194,059 4,477,272

Interest income from lending REWMEZEHZF] BN

business 3,784,531 1,920,242

Total revenue Rl g 449,403,342 623,576,722
Cost of sales and services tHE MRS AL A (355,117,682) (514,997,428)
Gross profit Evill 94,285,660 108,579,294
Other interest income HF SN 11 1,097,425 834,716
Other income HAUN 11 11,140,500 7,905,461
Selling and distribution expenses SHE NMAIHR X (33,677,921) (31,713,579)
Administrative and other expenses  1TE X HftifEx2 (142,000,770) (132,190,083)
Other gains and losses, net HibWem M E51E 358 7 68,716,756 35,225,838
(Impairment losses) reversal of THEENEGNEE 11

impairment losses under expected ~ FEHA(E E&518 (FEHA

credit loss ("ECL") model on EEBE) BT

financial assets and contract CRIERSTE) BBk

assets, net e EIpEEE (574,833) 3,189,253
Finance costs A& AL A 8 (4,034,427) (3,579,410)
Share of results of joint ventures i = VNI (3,750) (3,750)
Loss before taxation FRAGBIES 18 (5,051,360) (11,752,260)
Taxation credit RIS R 10 2,650,146 617,663
Loss for the year KRERE 11 (2,401,214) (11,134,597)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

raRm M EHMEENARR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

2022 2021
NOTES HKS HKS
=3 AT B
Other comprehensive (expense) Htt2&E (BI%) A :
income:
Item that may be reclassified HEENSEEEm
subsequently to profit or loss: EH
Exchange differences arising on MEBINEBREE Y
translation of foreign operations PE R ZERE (41,415,715) 13,265,330
Total comprehensive (expense) rE2HE FEX)
income for the year L ONEE (43,816,929) 2,130,733
Loss for the year attributable to: UF AL G AFRE
Owners of the Company KRBHEB A (1,942,228) (10,706,159)
Non-controlling interests TR ER (458,986) (428,438)
(2,401,214) (11,134,597)
Total comprehensive (expense) UTALTEERFELE
income for the year attributable to:  (BI%) UR N 4B %8 :
Owners of the Company FiN/NETEZZ= N (43,639,256) 2,512,214
Non-controlling interests el g (177,673) (381,481)
(43,816,929) 2,130,733
Loss per share FREE 13
Basic (HK cents) BaR GBA) (0.77) (4.22)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

m e A FEAIR AR
At 31 December 2022
A _E_"HF+"HB=+—H

2022 2021
—E_C B
NOTES HKS$ HK$
ok BT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E N EISE Y 14 206,577,809 234,914,722
Investment properties REW* 15 111,151,556 259,294,789
Equity instruments at fair value through  BBEMEERANEZLTFEY 16
other comprehensive income R (MBEEEMEEBRARA
("FVTOCI") TEYIR) ZRATA 22,285,289 22,550,619
Club membership BATEE 3,403,700 3,403,700
Prepayments and deposits BAIEN] & 21 5,969,564 4,156,576
Interests in joint ventures REBABIZER 18 392,982 396,732
Loans receivable WS 22 15,938,198 -
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, ~ BITEEME . BE &
plant and equipment B Pk 2,297,517 12,677,483
Deferred tax assets ELEREEE 30 13,971,096 10,764,811
381,987,711 548,159,432
Current assets nEEE
Inventories =& 19 37,117,846 20,533,613
Properties under development for sale FEEBTRYE 20 326,097,115 198,365,480
Financial assets at fair value through EREREATETIR 6
profit or loss ("FVTPL") (MBEBEREATET
R zemEE 17,375,128 24,716,500
Trade and other receivables, prepayments & 5 K E fth FEUT R IE | 21
and deposits BANTIELRTE 116,131,495 159,596,715
Contract assets BNEE 17 30,264,935 46,446,817
Loans receivable =6 22 33,414,687 9,137,831
Tax recoverable BJUR[EIFR1E 477,682 362,668
Pledged bank deposits BERRITER 23 60,000,000 -
Short-term bank deposits KRHRRITERN 23 15,597,000 3,304,774
Cash and cash equivalents REXBEEE 23 125,297,011 145,679,792
761,772,899 608,144,190
Current liabilities nEERE
Trade and other payables and accruals B 5 RAMENRIE 24
DK et IR 138,417,524 153,493,421
Lease liabilities HE&E 25 12,996,178 13,922,336
Contract liabilities BHEE 26 8,798,267 8,576,969
Tax liabilities MIBEE 5,268,629 10,060,668
Amount due to a non-controlling ERN—RWB LR —& 27
shareholder of a subsidiary FERBRETE 16,977,929 18,359,853
Amount due to a related company P& —HK B R B A 28 - 61,800
Bank borrowings RITER 29 72,730,973 62,609,035
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Ra MBI RR

At 31 December 2022

B TH+"R=+—H

2022 2021
—E_C “E—F
NOTES HKS$ HK$
ok BT BT
255,189,500 267,084,082
Net current assets REEERE 506,583,399 341,060,108
Total assets less current liabilities BEERNERE 888,571,110 889,219,540
Non-current liabilities o=
Lease liabilities HEAE 25 54,701,933 47,115,912
Amount due to a related company E—REELBTIE 28 - 178,945
Bank borrowings RITER 29 38,483,305
Deferred tax liabilities BRERESE 30 7,245,075 9,866,407
100,430,313 57,161,264
Net assets BERE 788,140,797 832,058,276
Capital and reserves BENGEE
Share capital e 317 2,533,595 2,536,395
Reserves i 789,440,652 833,177,658
Total attributable to owners of the KB B NEGLEE
Company 791,974,247 835,714,053
Non-controlling interests ERRER (3,833,450) (3,655,777)
Total equity TERAAEE 788,140,797 832,058,276
The consolidated financial statements on pages 153 to 313 were BENEI1538E 'W3 13EBZ2HEEaHH
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 RREHEEFGNRZZEZ=F=A
March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by: T+t HERIRERE  wHIUTE

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie &&= i
Chairman F /&

ENRERZ !

SUEK Chai Hong E¥i% E

Director &%
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AR

BEHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
F+A=+—HLFE

HE_Z_—

Attributable to the owners of the Company

KAEEBNES
Deemed
contribution Capital Properties  Investment Non-
Share Share from  redemption  Contributed valuation  revaluation  Translation Retained controlling
capital premium  a shareholder reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests Total
BfE—2 ERERE MEEE REEf
BE  BROEE BRRZ4E #E  REERS 1] #hE  EREE  REER et FERER @zt
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B o B o B B B B B B B B
At 1 January 2021 RZBZ-%-F-8 2,536,395 368,949,127 188,956,957 62,400 103,571,033 63,252,165 (22,985,932) 26,683,613 102,176,081 833,201,839  (3,274,296) 829,927,543
Loss for the year rEHR - - - - - - - (10,706,159 (10,706,159  (428438) (11,134,597)
Exchange differences arising on BEBNEBMEL L
translation of foreign operations EREE - - - - - - 13218373 - 13218373 46957 13,265,330
Other comprehensive income FEEMEERN
for the year - - - - - - - 13218373 - 13218373 46,957 13,265,330
Total comprehensive income FELARN (B B8
(expense) for the year - - - - - - - 13218373 (10,706,159) 2,512,214 (381,481) 2,130,733
At 31 December 2021 RIZZ-5+ZR
=1+-8 2,536,395 368,949,127 188,956,957 62,400 103,571,033 63,252,165 (22,985,932) 39,901,986 91,469,922 835714,053  (3,655,777) 832,058,276
Loss for the year KEEFR - - - - - - - - (1942228 (1,942,228) (458,986)  (2,401,214)
Exchange differences arisngon ~ REIEINERFIEL
translation of foreign operations ~ ERERE - - - - - - - (41,697,028 - (41,697,028 281313 (41,415,715)
Other comprehensive (expense) REEMEE %) B\
income for the year - - - - - - - (41,697,028) - (41,697,028) 281313 (41,415,715)
Total comprehensive expense for ~ AELERZBE
the year - - - - - - - (41,697,028 (1,942,228) (43,639,256) (177,673)  (43,816,929)
Shares repurchased (note 31) BB (17231) (2,800) (97,750) - - - - - - - (100,550) - (100550
At 31 December 2022 RIZZZ
+ZB=1+-H8 2,533595 368,851,377 188,956,957 62,400 103,571,033 63,252,165 (22,985,932)  (1,795,042) 89,527,694 791,974,247  (3,833,450) 788,140,797
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

maRERERR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

2022 2021
—E—F =%
HK$ HK$
BT BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ST
Loss before taxation FRIQ B IE (5,051,360) (11,752,260)
Adjustments for: BEfEL N HIFEE .
Write-down of inventories WREE 240,984 1,738,392
Depreciation on property, plant and ME.RENRBITE
equipment 36,199,616 38,247,603
Net (gain) loss on disposal of property, HEME. BERZEDN
plant and equipment (Wz) B985 %8 (1,625,999) 2,183,026
Impairment losses recognised on [S3iiEicky/ E NP0
property, plant and equipment REREEE = 1,934,349
Change in fair value of investment KREMELNTEEE
properties 14,498,870 (46,763,317)
Reversal of impairment losses under B REWHRIBTEEERIE
ECL model on trade receivables, net R T RYRE RS 1R E (O]
=t (85,753) (2,291,599)
Reversal of impairment losses under ENEERAEEBEBRER
ECL model on contract assets, net TR E R R R 0] F 58 (269,264) (714,591)
Impairment losses (reversal of R EFTEHREEERE
impairment losses) under ECL THRERE (REEIEE
model on loans receivable, net [B]) F%8 929,850 (183,063)
Share of results of joint ventures BEEERBZEE 3,750 3,750
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—XHB AR Z W (76,441,616) -
Dividend income B S W\ (1,115,144) (1,214,590)
Finance costs A E AL A 4,034,427 3,579,410
Interest income FEUWN (1,097,425) (834,716)
Operating cash flows before RETEEBEETEHRI 2
movements in working capital KEREME (29,779,064) (16,067,606)
(Increase) decrease in inventories =8 (8m &b (17,992,246) 13,759,615
Increase in properties under FEEERYZEIE N
development for sale (146,930,803) (68,490,278)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other B 5 M EMEWRIE., BT
receivables, prepayments and deposits AR ET &R (3800 34,683,548 (609,659)
Decrease (increase) in contract assets SHEERD (BN 13,259,504 (9,289,560)
Decrease (increase) in financial assets BREREANTFEIRZ
at FVTPL EREERD GG 7,341,372 (1,656,786)
(Increase) decrease in loans receivable EWE R (Em) B (41,144,904) 20,645,064
(Decrease) increase in trade and other B 5 NEMESRRIEL R
payables and accruals FESTERIE CRi/L) 180 (7,884,365) 25,384,292
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilites ~ &X&EE M GBl) 221,298 (1,887,734)
Cash used in operations REPTFEIRE (188,225,660) (38,212,652)
Dividend income S 3SEON 1,115,144 1,214,590
Net Hong Kong Profits Tax (paid) (BY) BRREFEFNERFEE
refunded (2,071,523) 85,671
Overseas tax paid BB RIE (3,654,281) (2,360,043)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING G TSP FEIR & R 5
ACTIVITIES (192,836,320) (39,272,434)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

maRERERR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

2022 2021
—E—F =%
HK$ HK$
BT BT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES KEEH
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, BATEEYIE. MEKEE
plant and equipment Z5]® (2,352,641) (12,601,528)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HE—ZXWBARESE
of a subsidiary ZIREMNFER 226,313,606 -
Placement of pledge bank deposits FHREEHIBITER (60,000,000) -
Placement of short-term bank deposits  TF S HASEITIE =X (15,597,000) (3,526,824)
Withdrawal of short-term bank deposits  $REXAZ EAER1TIE X 3,056,027 26,427,279
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B2 . K= K 58 & (3,234,842) (895,569)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant &Y . BE B E
and equipment ZFr8RIE 3,656,235 1,083,663
Addition of investment property NEKREY (5,082,968) -
Purchase of equity instruments at FVTOCI B NZBEMEEIA
BAFEYRZEATA - (4,695,691)
Interest received B WFE 993,992 754,500
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES B & EHFFEIR S35 147,752,409 6,545,830
FINANCING ACTIVITIES EE=PrE)l
Repayment of bank borrowings EEIRTER (65,830,573) (57,607,636)
New bank borrowings raised ML IRITER 115,467,716 40,430,000
Payments of lease liabilities HESEMR (14,933,367) (7,609,325)
Repayment to a related company B—XEABERNT ZEXR (240,745) (31,018)
Payment on repurchase of ordinary shares B&[0]& & A& {350 (100,550) -
Interest paid EFIE (4,034,427) (3,579,410)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) RMEEBFAE (FT#E) IREF5E
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 30,328,054 (28,397,389)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND BENIRESHERDFEE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (14,755,857) (61,123,993)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FYzRENBSEE
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 145,679,792 203,465,951
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXE 2
RATE CHANGES (5,626,924) 3,337,834
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END FRZIR&NIREEHE
OF THE YEAR 125,297,011 145,679,792
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH  IR&NIRESEELEGR 2O
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash RITERNIRE 125,297,011 145,679,792
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e MBHRRM

i 3

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

1.

TR THF+A=+—HLEEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Neway Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in Corporate Information to the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) and other details of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 41.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS"”) AND AGENDA DECISIONS OF THE
IFRS INTERPRETATIONS COMMITTEE (THE
"COMMITTEE")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on 1 January 2022 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment -
Proceeds before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2018-2020

Amendments to HKAS 37
Amendments to HKFRSs
In addition, the Group applied the agenda decisions of the

Committee of the International Accounting Standards Board,
which are relevant to the Group.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS”) AND AGENDA DECISIONS OF THE
IFRS INTERPRETATIONS COMMITTEE (THE
"COMMITTEE") (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs and the
Committee’s agenda decisions in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 17 (including Insurance Contracts’
the October 2020

and February 2022

Amendments to

HKFRS 17)

FEREEMBREEL
(TEBMBHwRSEDN)
ZIEFT R BRI B E %
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EERE (B)

B A 4 [ 3 4 R B B B
RS EB 25T (@)
RAEEIRAEBYBREER
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EERAEERBEEE B
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5]

7 8 [0 42 R4 LU T D HE
B4 M H ] B BT RS
8 R HE B > (55T

ERNBRSENEIE RRAN
(855=2=2 1A

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its

HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture?
Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale and
HKFRS 16 Leaseback?
Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as Current
HKAS 1 or Non-current and related

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2
Amendments to

amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)*
Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?
Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Definition of Accounting Estimates’

HKAS 8
Amendments to Deferred Tax related to Assets and
HKAS 12 Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

RIEZ"EZAVE

BYRREENE 175

b )

ERVBHRSES10% REEEERENTY
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R

2023.

z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or 1 January 2024.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS"”) AND AGENDA DECISIONS OF THE
IFRS INTERPRETATIONS COMMITTEE (THE
"COMMITTEE") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term
“significant accounting policies” with “material accounting
policy information”. Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other information included
in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if the
amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy
information relating to material transactions, other events or
conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose
immaterial accounting policy information, such information
must not obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
(the "Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an
entity applies the “four-step materiality process” to accounting
policy disclosures and to judge whether information about
an accounting policy is material to its financial statements.
Guidance and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group but may affect the disclosures of the Group’s
significant accounting policies. The impacts of application,
if any, will be disclosed in the Group's future consolidated
financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS”) AND AGENDA DECISIONS OF THE
IFRS INTERPRETATIONS COMMITTEE (THE
"COMMITTEE") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets in
paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” so that it
no longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition,
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

As disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements,
for leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to the relevant assets and liabilities as a whole.
Temporary differences relating to relevant assets and liabilities
are assessed on a net basis.

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group will
recognise a deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference can be utilised) and a deferred
tax liability for all deductible and taxable temporary differences
associated with the right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities.

The amendments are effective for the Group's annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with early
application permitted. As at 31 December 2022, the carrying
amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities which are
subject to the amendments amounted to HK$65,751,387 and
HK$67,698,111 respectively, in which the Group will recognise
the related deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
of HK$12,016,945 and HK$12,304,740 respectively. The
Group is still in the process of assessing the full impact of the
application of the amendments.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Neway Group Holdings Limited RE2&@EZERRAR/AS | Annual Report 2022 F iR

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary users.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The directors of the Company have, at the time of
approving the consolidated financial statements, a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of the
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets” ("HKAS 36").

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1
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Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs are to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition
the results of the valuation technique equals the
transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Neway Group Holdings Limited RE2&@EZERRAR/AS | Annual Report 2022 F iR

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of the subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Interests in joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of joint ventures used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the joint venture. When the
Group's share of losses of a joint venture exceeds the
Group's interest in that joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the joint venture),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
venture.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes a joint venture. On acquisition of
the investment in a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of investment (include goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as
a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

Except for granting of a licence that is distinct from
other promised goods or services, control is transferred
over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

For granting of a licence that is distinct from other
promised goods or services, the nature of the Group's
promise in granting a licence is a promise to provide a
right to access the Group’s intellectual property if all of
the following criteria are met:

° the contract requires, or the customer
reasonably expects, that the Group will
undertake activities that significantly affect the
intellectual property to which the customer has
rights;

o the rights granted by the licence directly expose
the customer to any positive or negative effects
of the Group's activities; and

. those activities do not result in the transfer of
a good or a service to the customer as those
activities occur.

If the criteria above are met, the Group accounts
for the promise to grant a licence as a performance
obligation satisfied over time. Otherwise, the Group
considers the grant of licence as providing the
customers the right to use the Group’s intellectual
property and the performance obligation is satisfied at
a point in time at which the licence is granted.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9
("HKFRS 9”). In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

“Financial Instruments”

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a
net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on input
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction
of a performance obligation relative to the total
expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group's performance in
transferring control of goods or services.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Contract costs

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are
those costs that the Group incurs to obtain a
contract with a customer that it would not have
incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales
commissions) as an asset if it expects to
recover these costs. The asset so recognised
is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on
a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services
to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of
expensing all incremental costs to obtain a
contract if these costs would otherwise have
been fully amortised to profit or loss within one
year.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
the date of initial application, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract
are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of office premises and office
equipment that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;
and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group

in dismantling and removing the underlying
assets, restoring the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the
lease.

3.

= A

SMBmRRARRERE

REEGTER (B

3.2

FEGBUR (8)

A5 (&)
KEFEZAEN (B)
CHMHERREEEEMN

1=

REBEFEHESRDEH
ZERAR B/ A HER
L e i DS =10 G
“*%¥&%@$§ﬁﬂ
EETrESREEZER-
HTEARBEEEEM
EnESS - EHEE LE
BEEEEHENHEENR
Tﬁ*%ﬁﬁﬁ%%?%
HEREBBF

/\:}L

EREEE
EREEEZRAEE

. HEEREZYD s
BT,

. FRRE BB Z A
fEHZ ERHEE
AR EWEE

BE;

. rEBEEZEW
ML EERAE ; K

O 7 & B i ) e % bR
HEE E - BIRAEREE
EEFMASMANE
REMEEERE
1% 7% K2 1% 14 P 38 €
ZIRMZBIRERFA
EEREET RS



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4= A
17 g =

M HwRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

3.

— i —

TE T THE+_B=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying
leased assets at the end of the lease term, upon
exercising purchase options, the cost of the relevant
right-of-use assets and the related accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss are transferred to
property, plant and equipment.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not
meet the definition of investment property or inventory
in “property, plant and equipment”, the same line
item within which the corresponding underlying assets
would be presented if they were owned. Right-of-
use assets that meet the definition of inventory are
presented within “properties under development for
sale”.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable and the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise the option.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes
a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-
use assets) whenever the lease term has changed, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to
the relevant right-of-use assets. When the modified
contract contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business (i.e. Property Investment
Business as defined in note 6) are presented as revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers” (“HKFRS 15") to
allocate consideration in a contract to lease and
non-lease components. Non-lease components are
separated from lease component on the basis of their
relative stand-alone selling prices.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that
were not part of the original terms and conditions are
accounted for as lease modifications, including lease
incentives provided through forgiveness or reduction of
rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the
lease payments for the new lease.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Lease modification (Continued)

For rent concession under which the Group legally
releases the lessee from its obligation to make
specifically identified lease payment, of which some
of these lease payments are contractually due but not
paid and some of them are not yet contractually due,
the Group accounts for the portions which have been
recognised as operating lease receivables (i.e. the lease
payments which are contractually due but not paid) by
applying the ECL and derecognition requirements under
HKFRS 9 and applies lease modification requirements
for the forgiven lease payments that the Group has
not recognised (i.e. the lease payments which are
not yet contractually due) as at the effective date of
modification.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values, adjusted to exclude
any prepaid or accrued operating lease income. All of
the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.

3.

= A

SMBmRRARRERE

REEGTER (B

3.2

FEGBUR (8)
A5 (&)
KEREZHEAN (B
HEER (@)

MAEBEMRERIRAEA
T AEBFENHEENR
RBHNEESE R E‘:F'ﬁlg
DEZEHRE ﬁ'TA}%Dn/}
HA{B i R K nEs
AIEREIER ﬁ%l@?}f
BB BRESERFRE
REHRESHRER& LE
RHATEHES D LHER
W SEREGRE Ble
MEBREBEARTRZEE
BA) M AEEKEN
E;&Eﬁ*ﬁﬁwu B9 % bR
%ﬁﬁ BI&MHAREEZ
=) FERAHEEESGR
/"j":_o

REYF
R EMERTVIEFEEAR

RN HIERERE
(EENEVESE

REVEN D A5
B OEEWEERRARX
o RA P DR REY)
ERNFESE KRFAE
LU R AE 2] TRAT 3 2R 51K
EHEWA - AEERR
Vil & 50 & 18 E AR 15
KEHOTEZE2HBYR
B BUIFSREME
NS

REMERNTFEEHESE
Y U & qEE?EE)D-I—AEJX
EHIER IR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A

i 3

M HwRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

3.

=

TR CHARA=THILEEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or
loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets
that are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes other
than properties construction in progress as described
below, are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management
including costs of testing whether the related assets
is functioning properly and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy. Such properties are classified
to the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at
initial recognition. To the extent the allocation of
the relevant payments can be made reliably, interest
in leasehold land is presented as “property, plant
and equipment” in the consolidated statement of
financial position except for those that are classified
and accounted for as investment properties under the
fair value model. When the consideration cannot be
allocated reliably between non-lease building element
and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land,
the entire properties are classified as property, plant
and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets, other than construction in progress less their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories are determined
on a first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make
the sale include incremental costs directly attributable
to the sale and non-incremental costs which the Group
must incur to make the sale.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale which are
intended to be sold upon completion of development
and properties for sale are classified as current
assets. Except for the leasehold land element which
is measured at cost model in accordance with the
accounting policies of right-of-use assets, properties
under development for sale are carried at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a
specific identification basis including allocation of the
related development expenditure incurred and where
appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for the
properties less estimated cost to completion and costs
necessary to make the sales. Cost necessary to make
the sale include incremental costs directly attributable
to the sale and non-incremental costs which the Group
must incur to make the sale.

Properties under development for sale are transferred
to properties for sale upon completion.

3.

= A

SMBmRRARRERE

REEGTER (B

3.2

FESHEBER (B)
75

7 & LB 2~ S p] B35 % (8
MERZBEEAKRF
B AR E S T R E
TE o Rl FEIEEEF
BEEBRPTE s TR
KNIEEFBEM A - HE
PR 58 BY 2 6148 B 12 FE 15 85
ENBEMANEERD
HEMUAEENIFEE
7S

FEZRPYE

B R T AR E R
EERPUMERTEDE
DEARNEE-KREES

THE O RIBERAEEE
2 Bt BRI AR 5
B FEEERYEU
AR A S#IR R EME 2
REEAKR REAEETE
WA EEETE > 2ENR
FREEZBREABZEREAR
(838 ) & &1 & 7
o] IR FEIRYEM
5T & BB ST A Z fth 5T AL AR
NRIFEHHEEZ B ERA -
HEFMBEMABEEERE
HIHEMBEN AR AE
ERHEMBBEEMNIE
BE R

TEZRTYENRTRE
BEETEYE-

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE&EZKARAT | Annual Report 2022 F iR

185



186

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Properties under development for sale
(Continued)

Transtfer from property, plant and equipment to
properties under development for sale

If property, plant and equipment becomes properties
under development for sale because its use has
changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, the
carrying amount at the date of transfer is recognised as
properties under development for sale.

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of assets other than financial
assets are estimated individually. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be established, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount
of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units,
with the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position include:

(a) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and
demand deposits, excluding bank balances
that are subject to regulatory restrictions that
result in such balances no longer meeting the
definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-
term (generally with original maturity of three
months or less), highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to a known amount of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents are
held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments rather than for investment or
other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
cash equivalents as defined above.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as and
included in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from loss before
taxation because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” requirements to the leasing
transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed
on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use
assets over the lease payments for the principal portion
of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

3.

= A

SMBmRRARRERE

REEGTER (B

3.2

FEGFER (B)
#HIE (&)
MERAAFERNGERN
REMEMES  EFFEE
IER AR BRI X Z R

HEDBRREEBHER
E2EURE] ) FRIERRWIE
B-ERENETIHE
RU—BBmEENFE
MmEMEANBENILIESE
8 2 BE B R AT A
ﬁﬁ&ié%%ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬂ’] GEPAN

MOEENm BIRRE

%&%ﬁaﬁ

PEEAEEERECAE
EENARAEESENA
EXGRIELERE $$
EE S EER BN RZ
E%’)%E@@%%ﬁéﬁ%ﬂ%
af&e

MREBNRERANEES
BzHEXRGME &%
B EBEERFE125%
TEr19 R #RE FE L@
HEXZ EHERAES
ENTTEGBERELE
BB RETT Lo N
BEENEBEEEaREE
EZHozHEE MERA
MERERFE

= Al OR 58 HI AT RV R
i BN HATR IR & A B 1R R
Ha BB REHEE > UKk
EHIRFE—RB AL
B —FEER 1R B R UK AY PR
SHRE EERBEEN
BEGRILH -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A

i 3

M HwRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

3.

=

TR CHARA=THILEEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. When a fair value gain or loss on
a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is also
recognised in profit or loss. When a fair value gain or
loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other
comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using
exchange rate prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of the
translation reserve (attributable to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to subsidy income from
government for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income”.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits
scheme, state-managed retirement benefit scheme and
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme")
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be
made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the
liabilities” carrying amounts resulting from service cost,
interest and remeasurements are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that another HKFRS requires or
permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial assets or financial
liabilities and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business (i.e. Lending Business as
defined in note 6) are presented as revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash flows;
and

the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in
a business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will
not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
equity investments, and will be transferred to retained
profits.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI
(Continued)

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment. Dividends are included in the “other
income” line item in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of the reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the “other gains and losses” line item.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model on financial assets (including trade and other
receivables and deposits, loans receivable, pledged
bank deposits, short-term bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents) and contract assets which are subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.
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BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets without significant
financing component.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases
in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor's ability to
meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when the instrument is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is

“credit-impaired” when one or

more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following

events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer of the
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

it is becoming probably that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when the
Group has no reasonable expectations of recovering
the relevant financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
The Group usually writes off when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
e.g. when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade receivables when the amounts
are over one year past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice when
appropriate. Any recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of
the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at
default. The assessment of the probability of default
and loss given default is based on historical data
and forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables and contract
assets are considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward looking macroeconomic
information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;
° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
and other receivables and deposits, contract assets,
pledged bank deposits, loans receivable, short-term
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

Derecognition of financial asset

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset'’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition
to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is
transferred to retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred tax arising from fair value changes in
investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group's investment property portfolios and concluded that the
Group’s investment properties are not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time. Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred tax
on investment properties, the directors of the Company have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts
of investment properties measured using the fair value model
are recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. The
Group has not recognised any deferred tax on changes in fair
value of investment properties in Hong Kong as the Group
is not subject to any income taxes on the fair value changes
on investment properties in Hong Kong on disposal. The
Group has recognised deferred tax on changes in fair value
of investment property in the PRC in note 30 as the Group
is subject to any income taxes on the fair value changes on
investment property in the PRC on disposal.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within
the next financial year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group's investment
properties are stated at fair value based on the valuation
performed by independent qualified professional valuers.
In determining the fair value, the valuers have based their
valuation on income capitalisation approach for respective
investment properties, which involves certain estimates,
including appropriate capitalisation rates, reversionary income
potential and market transactions of comparable properties,
as appropriate. In relying on the valuation, management of
the Group has exercised its judgement and is satisfied that the
methods of valuation adopted are appropriate for the relevant
property and reflective of current market conditions. As at
31 December 2022, the aggregate fair value of investment
properties is HK$111,151,556 (2021: HK$259,294,789).
Details of the valuation methodology are disclosed in note 15.

Net realisable value assessment of properties under
development for sale

The management uses their judgement and estimates in
determining the net realisable value of properties under
development for sale with reference to the comparable market
transactions in similar locations. Where there are any changes
to the market conditions in the PRC causing the net realisable
value of the properties under development for sale below
its cost, the properties under development for sale is written
down to its net realisable value. As at 31 December 2022, the
carrying amount of properties under development for sale is
HK$326,097,115 (2021: HK$198,365,480).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value measurement of equity instruments at
FvTOCI

As at 31 December 2022, equity instruments at FVTOCI
amounting to HK$22,285,289 (2021: HK$22,550,619) are
measured at fair value with fair value being determined based
on significant unobservable inputs using valuation techniques.
Judgement and estimation are required in establishing the
relevant valuation techniques and the relevant inputs thereof.
Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could result
in material adjustments to the fair value of these instruments.
See note 39 for further disclosures.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables, contract
assets and loans receivable

Trade receivables with outstanding significant balances
exceeding HK$2,500,000 and relevant contract assets, loans
receivable and credit-impaired financial assets are assessed for
ECL individually. The remaining trade receivables and contract
assets are assessed collectively. The expected loss rates are
based on internal credit ratings as groupings of various debtors
that have similar loss patterns.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables, contract
assets and loans receivable (Continued)

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
Due to eased financial uncertainty triggered by the Covid-19
pandemic, the Group has decreased the ECL rates in current
year as there is lower risk that a moderated pandemic could
led to decrease in credit default rates. The information about
the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables, contract assets and
loans receivable are disclosed in note 39. The carrying amounts
of trade receivables, contract assets and loans receivable are
HK$92,280,913 (2021: HK$120,349,927), HK$30,264,935
(2021: HK$46,446,817) and HK$49,352,885 (2021:
HK$9,137,831), respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

5.

TR T4+ RA=1t—HIEFE
REVENUE 5. W=
(i) Revenue from goods and services (i) *kRBEmRMERFZWE
Revenue represents the amounts received and WRiEREBERNFE Y
receivable for goods sold and services provided by the EnERIBRHEHRR W E
Group, less discounts and sales related taxes during the Wz I8 (Tl KR sHE AR
year. FATRIE) ©
An analysis of the Group's revenue from goods and REBXRFRBE RMR
services by segment for the year is as follows: BzWRmBDEIOT
2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Types of goods or services: BmaiARFBiE
Manufacturing and Sales Business* S M HE E B
— Income from manufacturing and —RBENRE RGN
sales of printing products THE Z WA 411,781,643 579,682,944
Music and Entertainment Business* EE I EE SN
— Artistes management fee income —B2ANEEERA 369,832 391,498
— Income from the licensing of the — S RERFETWA
musical works 1,647,448 2,391,187
— Promotion income =T ON 98,000 10,000
— Sales of albums —SHERF 1,690,787 1,594,664
3,806,067 4,387,349
Trading Business* =0ZES M
— Sales of printing products —EDRIEmiHE 27,837,042 33,108,915
443,424,752 617,179,208
* The segment names are defined in the section & STHELEEELEMNEE

“Segment information” in note 6.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

im e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

5. REVENUE (Continued)

Wa (%)

(i)  Revenue from goods and services (i) XBEMmMEFZKZ=

(Continued) (48)
2022 2021
—=E-= —E-—4
HK$ HK$
AT BT

Geographical markets: & M5

Hong Kong 58 123,178,628 227,620,994
The PRC FE 231,688,354 256,221,762
Europe BRM 18,678,521 35,472,242
United States eJE 57,628,959 73,495,815
Others Hith 12,250,290 24,368,395
443,424,752 617,179,208

BRAEERBEIIBER
Z Wz B B R P 1R

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the locations of the

shipments of goods or the services provided. ERyRBEcNENES
Bl o
2022 2021
—_E__F - —%F
HK$ HK$
AT BT

W m FERR B ]

Timing of revenue recognition:

Over time biE Br 5] 411,781,643 579,682,944
A point in time BB R Bh 31,643,109 37,496,264
443,424,752 617,179,208
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im e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

5. REVENUE (Continued)

(i) Revenue from goods and services

(Continued)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in

Wz (48)
(i) RBE&m
(&)

TXHEINEFR G m A
DEERFTRETRENS

R PR 5 2 U a8

the segment information iR
2022 2021
—E-C—H =
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Manufacturing and Sales Business HENHEFER 411,781,643 579,682,944
Music and Entertainment Business EE N4 3,806,067 4,387,349
Trading Business B5 %% 27,837,042 33,108,915
Revenue from contracts BFEHWE
with customers 443,424,752 617,179,208
Property Investment Business VIR EER 2,194,059 4,477,272
Lending Business WE X 3,784,531 1,920,242
Total revenue BN 449,403,342 623,576,722
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in e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

5. REVENUE (Continued)

()

Revenue from goods and services
(Continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Revenue from trading of printing products/sales of
albums

Revenue from trading of printing products/sales of
albums is recognised when control of the printing
products, which are not manufactured by the Group,
and albums has been transferred to the customers,
being at the point the goods are delivered to the
customer’s specific location. Transportation and other
related activities that occur before customers obtains
control of the related good are considered as fulfilment
activities. A receivable is recognised by the Group
when the goods are delivered to the customers as
this represents the point in time at which the right
to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the
passage of time is required before payment is due.
The normal credit term is 60 to 90 days upon delivery,
which is approximate the time of issuing the invoices to
the customers. The Group requires certain customers to
provide upfront deposits ranging from 10% to 30% of
total contract sum, when the Group receives a deposit
before the printing products delivery, this will give rise
to contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the
revenue recognised on the specific contract exceeds the
amount of the deposit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

5. REVENUE (Continued)

()

Revenue from goods and services
(Continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (Continued)

Revenue from manufacturing and sales of printing
products

The Group provides tailored-manufacturing of printing
products to the customers. Such revenue from
manufacturing and sales of printing products are
recognised as this performance obligation is satisfied
over time because the Group's performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

The progress towards completing satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on input
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of the Group’s efforts in terms of inputs (i.e. materials
costs, direct staff costs and other direct overhead
costs incurred) to the satisfaction of a performance
obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the
satisfaction of that performance obligation, that best
depicts the Group’s performance in transferring control
of products. Contract assets arise when the Group has
right to consideration for satisfaction of a performance
obligation under the relevant contracts, and the right
is conditioned on factors other than passage of time.
Contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables
when such right become unconditional other than
the passage of time. Invoices to the customers were
issued upon the delivery of manufactured printing
products to the customers. The normal credit term is
60 to 120 days upon the issuance of invoices to the
customers. The Group requires certain customers to
provide upfront deposits ranging from 10% to 50% of
total contract sum, when the Group receives a deposit
before manufacturing of printing products commences,
this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a
contract, until the revenue recognised on the specific
contract exceeds the amount of the deposit.

Wat (48)

()
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

5.

— i —

TE T THE+_B=+—HIEEE

REVENUE (Continued)

()

(i)
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Revenue from goods and services
(Continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (Continued)

Income from licensing of the musical works

Revenue is recognised at a point in time when licenses
of the Group’s musical works were granted to the
customers, being at the point the customer has the
rights to use the musical works at their own desires. A
receivable is recognised by the Group when the licenses
of the Group’s musical works are granted to the
customers as this represents the point in time at which
the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as
only the passage of time is required before payment is
due.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations

All the Group’s contracts with customers with
unsatisfied performance obligations have original
expected duration of one year or less. As permitted
under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to
the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied

5.

Wat (48)

0]

KEHEmMIRTEZ W

(48
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(&)

E L Faa tF5F A

WmE LR EFEME
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R R PESD o ZE BN
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BD 2 87 32 19 A1 R 2R 15 s

i

7B E TR B A B R
X518

AEBFERTHRBENE
ENEREAORmNERE
TR S —FHLU T o
RIBEEBMBREEDS
15SE PR HEE - AR B K

or satisfied) as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 is not TETTENE T —
disclosed. +ZA=+—HoREER
TRASE RETHER
T IR GE
Leases (i) fAE
2022 2021
—ECCF B
HK$ HK$
BT BT
For operating leases: MKESHEMS .
Lease payments that are fixed BEHEEMNR 2,194,059 4,477,272
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Ra M B ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

6.

TE T THE+_B=+—HIEEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Segment revenue and results

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker
("CODM"), for the purposes of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
goods or services delivered or provided.

To cope with the Group’s recent business development in
property development and investment, the information
reported to the CODM regarding to Property Business
(property development and investment including properties
development projects and properties leasing and investments
in the PRC, mini storage business and office leasing and
properties leasing and investment in Hong Kong) which is
previously reported as a single reportable segment in prior year
is further separated into Property Development Business (as
defined below) and Property Investment Business (as defined
below) during the year ended 31 December 2022. Accordingly,
each of these segments is considered as a separate operating
segment by the CODM, resulting in changes to the
presentation of the Group's operating and reportable segments
on the Group’s segment results and the Group's segment
assets and liabilities. Figures in the segment information for
and as at 31 December 2021 have been re-presented for
comparative purposes.

DEEH
DEWRERER

LB RSB KR D BRIR A6
ERBRTESE BIETEEER
RE TEEERRE) WEZ
B TERAARNEmaFTE
HARFSBEE 7 o

ABEMNANEBFPEYDEERER
KREFENEREE  RNEEE
ABE—AREDERNTELE
ARRERETERVMEEFT Z2EN
WMEEREEKESERFH
ZEBREBERMERERE
BEoUERREBZHRIIMBER
MAEHE WEMHERKE) 1P
BHE_Z__#+-B=+—H
IFEE—FTRDAYEZEZE
B UTXER MEREE
BUTXER) "It Z%E
DHEZERFIELCSREERS
BIURKRENHE SAEERLSE
KAl EDEE D AEE D HE
XERAKERNDEEERBEZ
2L EFH - BE_T _—F
+ B =+—HzZzDEENEE
BASE | LUH L 0
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im e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

SHEER (&)
ﬁ*ﬁﬁ”& &%ng (H‘E)
Ht > KERZ I RE REED

The Group's reportable and operating segments are therefore

222

as follows: fBUIE
(@  Money lending (“Lending Business"); (a) 8 (MTmEXE%) ;
(b)  Manufacturing and sales of printing and other products (b)  ENRI R H fh 2= G B S K i

("Manufacturing and Sales Business”);

& (RERHEER) ;

(0 Artistes management, production and distribution 0 Z2ABE - ®EKRETE
of music albums and shows investment (“Music and WMERERERES (4
Entertainment Business”); FIRSEEETE ) |

(d) Property development (“Property Development (d) R (YEREEFE)
Business”), including properties development projects (BHERNTEREEREZY
in the PRC and Hong Kong; ¥(ERIER)

(e) Property investment (“Property Investment Business”), (e) WPEGE (YL EBEETE)
including properties leasing and investments in the PRC (BHERTBREEEEZY
and Hong Kong; *MHERKE) ;

) Securities trading (”Securities Trading Business”); and ) FFEE(IBHFEEXE

%) &
(99  Trading of printing and other products (“Trading (90 HRKREMMERES (B

Business”).
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in e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEN @
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DS R EE (B)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results REEIIRKE RO REDIEE D
by operating and reportable segment. ZWE R EE DU T o
Revenue Segment profit (loss)
Wgs SEERT (§5518)
2022 2021 2022 2021
—_E_C BT -F —EC_CE BT -F
HK$ HK$ HKS HK$
BT BT AT BT
(re-presented) (re-presented)
Gl (1= &7)
Lending Business BEEB 3,784,531 1,920,242 864,299 47,017
Manufacturing and Sales HIERHEER (1)

Business (note) 411,781,643 579,682,944 (6,613,348) (16,485,631)
Music and Entertainment Business EEJEE 2 3,806,067 4,387,349 (3.448,885)  (4,501,611)
Property Development Business YR EER = - (11,870,601) (4,147,536)
Property Investment Business MEREEE 2,194,059 4,477,272 53,618,253 39,772,950
Securities Trading Business EHEEER - - (7,568,380) (2,003,642)
Trading Business =SS 27,837,042 33,108,915 (4,886,272) (3,054,649
Total 4t 449,403,342 623,576,722 20,095,066 9,626,898
Bank interest income RITH U 993,991 754,500
Unallocated corporate expenses ROREERY (26,122,231)  (22,129,908)
Share of results of joint ventures BILEEARZEE (3,750) (3,750)
Certain finance costs AETRERE (14,436) -
Loss before taxation Rl 5! (5,051,360)  (11,752,260)
Note: Included in the segment loss for the year ended 31 Kiet: BE_E_—F+_B=+—H

December 2021 from Manufacturing and Sales Business of IFFERERIEEER 2 DHEE
HK$5,852,689 represented the segment loss resulting from 185,852,689 B T HIE OB 4 EX
the mask production business, which has suspended its BREEZDEEBE ZEFER
operation during the year ended 31 December 2021. BHE_Z_—F+_-_HA=+—H
It FEHEEE
All of the segment revenue reported above is from external XS 2B DR E TR
customers. BIMNEEE o
The accounting policies of the operating and reportable RERARENDEZGEHE
segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies EAMTEEIPR AL ANEE B 2 5T EL SR AE
described in note 3. Segment profit (loss) represents the profit e NiEEF (518) I5& N iakk
earned/loss incurred by each segment without allocation R2aH/ EEEE &5
of bank interest income, unallocated corporate expenses, HEOBLRITH E WA S kDB
share of results of joint ventures and certain finance costs on ¥HE EEHEBEAREXELTE
lease liabilities. This is the measure reported to the Group's EaBzETREMZ - AT
management for the purpose of resources allocation and BROEARB A AR ANERE
performance assessment. BEEHBESZtE2R4%0
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iR BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

. I
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. oHEEBEFR
. —— g = ==
Segment assets and liabilities NHEEENREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities RNREFIGEE RO IREDIEE D
by operating and reportable segment: EENMEESFNT
As at 31 December 2022 NR-E-_—-_F#+=-BA=+—H
Manufacturing Music and Property Property Securities
Lending and Sales i lop Trading Trading Segment
Business Business Business Business Business Business Business total Elimination  Consolidated
HEEE RERBEEE SERRLEE  NEREER  NEURER  BSENER BA%H s B &a
HKS HKS$ HKS HKS HKS HKS$ HKS HKS HK$ HKS
#T b #T #T #R AR #R &R b AR
Segment assets HEEE 49,579,534 363,679,995 3,512,862 111,850,125 331,024,651 18,979,493 17,012,175 895,698,835 - 895,698,835
Other assets Rtz 28,061,775
Consoldated assets GREE 1,143,760,610
Segment liabilities HEER 514290 190,155,196 4,580,783 18,888,186 113,804,745 169,003 13434,144 341,546,347 - 341,546,347
Inter-group liabiltes O 119,439,041 - - - - 98,513,130 - 217,952,111 (217,952,171 =
Total @3t 119,953,331 190,155,196 4,580,783 18,888,186 113,804,745 98,682,133 13434,144 559,498,518 (217,952,171) 341,546,347
Other liabilties HttafE 14,073,466
Consolidated liabiities GRaE 355,619,813
As at 31 December 2021 (re-presented) N TE - —F+-A=+—H
C==pdl)
Manufacturing Music and Property Property Securities
Lending and Sales Entertainment Investment Development Trading Trading Segment
Business Business Business Business Business Business Business total Elimination Consolidated
HEXE HERBEEE ERRREER  MERERR  NREERE  E5EEER EUES ] R bt Ga
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
#n #n A1 #n #n #n AT #n #n b
Segment assets HEER 10,248,051 430,925,617 3832136 274,460,953 201,899,436 26,034,283 11,830,635 959,231,111 - 959,231,111
Other assets EtEE 197,072,511
Consolidated assets GREE 1,156,303,622
Segment liabilities HEEE 1,204,401 207557471 2,561,557 19,834,556 58,616,341 92,651 13,951,017 303,817,994 - 303,817,994
Inter-group liablties £EHEE 65,981,607 - - - - 94,946,212 - 160927819 (160,927.819) -
Total &3t 67,186,008 207557471 2,561,557 19,834,556 58,616,341 95,038,863 13,951,017 464,745,813 (160,927,819) 303,817,994
Other liabilties HtafE 20,421,352

Consolidated liabiities Gagf 324,245,346
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEFR @

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) DHEEERAE B

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and TLETER 5 iﬁ%ﬁfﬁ)ﬁ’zﬁ“ﬁiﬁ?‘ﬂﬁ@ﬂ

allocating resources among segments: ERM= -

. all assets are allocated to operating and reportable o (2= :FfFﬁ]iBz SHENTN
segments other than certain property and equipment, E=N=WNEIR - 5 p
interest in a joint venture, certain equity instruments ﬁﬁﬂi@ﬂ&)\&@?ﬁﬁu
at FVTOCI, club membership, deferred tax assets, BRzEBETKREATE -gFT
certain other receivables, prepayments and deposits, wEERIERIEBEE-EF
tax recoverable, short-term bank deposits and cash and HtmEW=HIEB B ZHIE
cash equivalents. %Tﬁ ~ AJ U [Bl 7R I8 ~ %2 HA

TERURRE KRR
%ﬂé?l\ "FREBEEgDE
ERERFIBENE

o all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable ° METFEHMENDTIE LE
segments other than certain other payables and staRIE - mx/gg\ﬁ&tL
accruals, tax liabilities and deferred tax liabilities. MEaEI PFEaET

TEREELERIBRED
o
Other segment information BHEthoEER
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_-_E-_—_F#+=-H=+—8
ILEFE
Manufacturing Music and Property Property Securities
Lending and Sales i lop Trading Trading Segment
Business Business Business Business Business Business Business total Unallocated Consolidated
HEEE NERBEEE SERRLEE  MEREER  NEURER  BSEEER BR%H Es AR &a
HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS$ HKS HKS HK$ HKS$
#R b o & ER R o #n En o

Amounts induded in the measure st BN EEE MBEER
of segment results or segment S AZEHE
assels.

Interest income (exclusion of HERA (FEERERE

interest income from EvaIEON

Lending Business) (7,446) (92,874) - - - (619) (2,495) (103,434) (993,991) (1,097,425)
Interest expenses HEET 30,889 3,453,508 = 527,808 = 3,586 4,200 4,019,991 14,436 4,034,421
Depreciation of property, plantand 1% BERRENE

equipment 709,667 34,549,720 176 537,784 75,865 71,099 255,305 36,199,616 - 36,199,616
Write-down of inventories WaRE - 240,984 - - - - - 240,984 - 240,984
(Reversal of impaiment losses) ~ BREMFEZ (REBRRE)

impairment osses on trade AAGRRE

receivables, net - (85,959) 703 - - - (497) (85,753) - (85,753)
Reversal of net impairment losses on &41EE 2 HESERLIE

contract assets, net - (269,264) - - - - - (269,264) = (269,264)
Impairment losses on loan receivable, FEAU &3 2 HEBEFE

net 929,850 - - - - - - 929,850 - 929,850
Additions to property, plantand  FEYE. B KR!

equipment - 15,299,097 - - 29917 - 89,278 15,638,292 = 15,638,292
Change in fair value of financial ~ BBERRATEIRZ

assets at FVTPL SRBEZ\TEES - - - - - 7,820,160 - 7,820,160 - 7,820,160
Net gain on disposal of property,  HENE BERZE

plant and equipment h&#eE = (1,625,999) - - - - = (1,625,999) - (1,625,999)
Change n fair value of investment  RENZATELE

properties - - - 14,498,870 - - - 14,498,870 - 14,498,870
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary ~ HE-FHBLARZ K& - - - 76,441,616 - - - 76,441,616 - 76,441,616
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+_A=1+T—HLEE
. R = IR ==
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. NEEFR @
Other segment information (Continued) HtoEEE (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (re-presented) BE_E_—F+_-_H=+—H
[ (S5
Manufacturing Music and Property Property Securities
Lending and Sales Entertainment Investrent Development Trading Trading Segment
Business Business Business Business Business Business Business total Unallocated Consolidated
MEEE RERBERE SRRREER  MEREER  NEEEREE  A5EEER 8525 e b AR &a
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
AR ET AR AR En AT AR AR AR AT
Amounts included in the measure S B BEAAHEEER
of segment results or segment ~ tAZEE !
assets:
Interest income (exclusion of HERA (FEEREREER
interest income from ZHEHN
Lending Business) (11,263) (65,751) - - - (613) (2,589) (80,216) (754,500) (834,716)
Interest expenses HEHx 101,125 3,086,484 - 387,554 - 4,247 - 3579410 - 3579410
Depreciation of property, N¥ BERRENE
plant and equipment 1,007,661 36,499,390 192 258,835 44,643 71,100 240,689 38,122,510 125,093 38,247,603
Write-own of inventories - 1,361,558 - - - - 376,834 1,738,392 - 1738392
(Reversal of impairment losses)
impairment losses on trade
receivables, net - (2,258,550) 31518 (2,553) - - (68,014) (2,291,599 - (2,291,599
Reversal of net impaiment losses ~ &4 EE 2 HEFRELSE
on contract assets, net - (714591) - - - - - (714,591) - (714591)
Reversal of impaiment losses on -~ ENER 2 AEFBEEFE
oan receivable, net (183,063) - - - - - - (183,003) - (183,063)
Additions to property, plantand  FEE. BE R E
equipment 57,566 2,990,422 - 1,545,275 - - 135,117 24728380 - 24728380
Change in fair value of financial ~ BBEZRATET R £
assets at FVTPL EEZNTEER - - - - - 2,722,561 - 2,722,561 - 2,722,561
Net loss on disposal of property, u“j’ﬂ’]% BERSREZES
plant and equipment ] - 2,183,026 - - - - - 2,183,026 - 2,183,026
Impairment losses recognised on %% BERRECRDAE
property, plant and equipment EBE - 1,934,349 - - - - - 1,934,349 - 1,934,349
Change i fair value of investment  BENEATELEH
properties - - - (46,763,317) - - - (46,763,317) - (46,763,317)

Revenue from major products and services

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its

KREEEEmBERE 2 W
UTHREERREETEER N

major products and services: IRFEZWE DI .
2022 2021
—ECHF B
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Sales of printing products & EN R & & 439,618,685 612,791,859
Artistes management fee income EWYNEEL- (LN - 391,498
Income from the licensing of the EE IR TR SON
musical works 2,017,280 2,391,187
Loan interest income from Lending KEMEEKEZER
Business FE WA 3,784,531 1,920,242
Promotion income RPN 98,000 10,000
Rental income RN 2,194,059 4,477,272
Sales of albums HEBR 1,690,787 1,594,664
449,403,342 623,576,722
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

6.

TR THF+A=+—HLEEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Geographical information

The Group’s operation of Manufacturing and Sales Business,
Property Development Business and Property Investment
Business are located in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group’s
operation of Lending Business, Trading Business, Music and
Entertainment Business and Securities Trading Business are
located in Hong Kong.

The Group's revenue from external customers and information
about non-current assets by geographical location of the
customers and assets respectively are set out below:

ﬁ *E é *;I' (n‘E)
HEEE

FEBZHERBEER WE
EREBRMEREEBIESR
BRPEHEE - AEBZMNER
B BRED BRRIREET
UhEFEEXBUETBE

o

rEBREINEER 2RI RE
FIERBEEZERDRRER
REEFEMEEHIIUT

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REMPEE Z i EREEE

2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-C - IZEBZZ ET-F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
AT BT BT BT
Hong Kong A 129,157,218 234,018,508 102,396,638 269,502,371
The PRC t 231,688,354 256,221,762 224,547,862 243,369,670
Europe B 18,678,521 35,472,242 - -
United States EE] 57,628,959 73,495,815 - -
Others Hity 12,250,290 24,368,395 - -
449,403,342 623,576,722 326,944,500 512,872,041

Note: Non-current assets exclude financial assets and deferred tax
assets.
Information about major customers

There was no customer contributing over 10% of total sales of
the Group for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

M FRBHEEFEFEREERE

JERRIBE E o
FEEREHR
REBEE_ZE - KR _ZF"_—F

+TZRB=+—HLFE #BEX
FEREAEBEHERBEBSR
10% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

7. HttlmKREsiE

2022 2021
—ECF —E—
HKS$ HK$
AT BT
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) SNEW R (B518) 548 12,968,171 (4,697,543)
Change in fair value of investment REVE AT EED
properties (note 15) (H15£15) (14,498,870) 46,763,317
Net gain (loss) on disposal of property, HEY¥ . ME&EEZ
plant and equipment W (B548) /$%8 1,625,999 (2,183,026)
Impairment losses recognised on ME RBEREEZE
property, plant and equipment TR BRI (Bat14)
(note 14) - (1,934,349)
Change in fair value in financial EBEREATFEYIRZ
assets at FVTPL TMEEZ AT EEH (7.820,160) (2,722,561)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—XRWNBAT 2
(note 32) (Hi5£32) 76,441,616 -
68,716,756 35,225,838
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MEMNZA
2022 2021
—s-C —ET—F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Interest on: UTEEZHME
Bank borrowings RITER 1,528,644 1,401,519
Amount due to a related company R —REEQTFRIE 19,737 54,671
Lease liabilities HE&E 2,486,046 2,123,220
4,034,427 3,579,410
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__F+_A=t+—HLFE

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (2021:

nine) directors are as follows:

EF THARKRESMN

£

EFRITHAHMNE
UTHREMNREMNT AR (TF

T—F Nk BEFZBE

Alternate
Executive directors Non-executive directors Independent non-executive directors director
HiTER FanES BUFATES EREES
SUEK SUEK CHAN LEE LAl LAU
Ka Lun, Chai  Kwing Choi, WONG NG Wai Kwok CHU Sai Wo, Kam
Ernie Hong Warren Sun Fat Kwan Wan Gun Pui Ricky Cheong Total
Bzl EEE C3e1] EHE REH ZHE FIET Bt %8 a3
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS$ HKS$
AT BT BT BT AT AT AT AT AT AT
(note §) (note fy)
i) i)
2022 ZEICE
Fees we = = 161,492 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 - 761,492
Other emoluments Httie
- Salaries and other benefits e RAMER 2,292,000 1,368,000 - - - - - - 38500 3,698,500
- Contributions to retiement benefits ~ —E{RBH| 3t &I
schemes 18,000 18,000 8,500 - - - - - 1,500 46,000
Total emoluments i e 2,310,000 1,386,000 169,992 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 40,000 4,505,992
Alternate
Executive directors Non-executive directors Independent non-executive directors director
ATEE HTES BUFATER BEEE
SUEK SUEK CHAN LEE LAI LAU
Ka Lun, Chai Kwing Choi, WONG NG Wai Kwok CHU Sai Wo, Kam
Ernie Hong Warren Sun Fat Kwan Wan Gun Pui Ricky Cheong Total
HER BEE it EEiE Er TEE KIEH fjugil] flizE] &
HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
AT AT AT A A AT AT AT AT AT
(note f) (note i)
(i) (i)
2021 B-F
Fees e - - 161,492 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 - 761,492
Other emoluments Hirde
- Salaries and other benefits -HERAMERN 2,292,000 1,368,000 - - - - - - 46126 4,121,226
- Contributions to retirement benefits ~ —E4RHERI3HEIER
schemes 18,000 18,000 8,500 - - - - 18,000 62,500
Total emoluments Hean 2310000 1,386,000 169,992 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 479226 4945218
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9.

TR THF+A=+—HLEEE

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration
(Continued)

Notes:

(i) Mr. SUEK Chai Hong is also the chief executive of the
Company and his remuneration disclosed above included
those for services rendered by him as chief executive.

(i) The emoluments of executive directors were for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group. The emoluments of non-executive
directors and independent non-executive directors were for
their services as the directors of the Company.

(iii) Incentive performance bonuses for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021 were determined by the
remuneration committee and approved by the board of
directors having regard to the performance and duties of
directors.

(iv) Mr. LAU Kam Cheong resigned as the alternate director to Dr.
NG Wai Kwan on 31 January 2022.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the

Company as an inducement to joint or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office in any of the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

9.

TR THF+A=+—HLEEE

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2021: two) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the
remaining three (2021: three) highest paid employees who
were neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are

EFTHABRKRESMN

& (a'.éa)

ES
EEEBRLBREHALT W
% (CEZ—F  WR) ARAR

EF REM2HBEHNR L
NoHBp=%(CT-_—F :=4)
itiEZlK NEEFHITHAHZ &R

as follows: S EEZMEUWT
2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries and other benefits e NEMER 3,227,500 3,524,984
Contributions to retirement benefits BIRERFT B R
schemes 54,000 49,250
3,281,500 3,574,234
The number of the highest paid employees who were not the WIERNBIEEZZEGHEEDN

directors of the Company and whose remuneration fell within
the following bands is as follows:

MEBRUTEHEZ ABUT

2022 2021

—E-CfF —E-—F

Number of Number of

employees employees

BEAH BEA#

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z£%1,000,0007E 7T 2 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,00187TtE

2,000,000/ 7T 1 1

3 3

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office in any of the years.

REREE xEEHERLY
REF AL ERME  (FR
INAZS= B B 0 88 12 2 B2 Bh =i B
Bz fE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
TECCF+A=+—HLEE

10. TAXATION CREDIT MR R
2022 2021
—E-C BT —F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
The taxation comprises: MIBEIE -
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBFER
Charge for the year KELZH (126,892) (773,864)
(Under) over provision in prior years BEFE EETR)
FBERA R (1,724,551) 15,359
(1,851,443) (758,505)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R B2 PTIEHR
Charge for the year KEZH (1,410,813) (4,354,565)
Over (under) provision in prior years BFFEEBIREEE
BEFE) 1,878,362 (4,053,184)
467,549 (8,407,749)
Deferred tax credit for REELERIEI
the year (note 30) (Hta£30) 4,034,040 9,783,917
2,650,146 617,663

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed
at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at
a flat rate of 16.5%.

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million
of the estimated assessable profits of one of the subsidiaries
of the Company and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits above HK$2 million. The profits of corporation not
qualified for the two-tier profit tax regime will continue to be
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE2&£EZERBRAE | Annual Report 2022 F iR

REMEFNERMNEFIE &
ERERERNE2,000,000%8
TORF 8. 25% R » THiBAE
2,000,000 0B 2B 2 BII3%216.5%
B - AR EMARFIFIRIR G
ENEEER HafSEEs
—3216.5%1 7

BE_Z_—_HhNZF"—

+ZB=+—HIEEE &
AMERDEBEATHSB -
BAGGtERERENZE
2,000,000/ 75#28.25% 5t & > M
#83@2,000,0007% 7o A9 1t 5t FE R
A BRI6. 5% B o AT E
MARF)BRMEGHENEEN G
o A ESR) —3216.5% R ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ra M B ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

10.

TE T THE+_B=+—HIEEE

TAXATION CREDIT (Continued)

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law"”) and Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company reached a preliminary
agreement with the Inland Revenue Department to accept a
tax penalty of approximately HK$3,700,000 and additional tax
payables of approximately HK$2,094,000 for previous years
of assessment from 2008/2009 to 2020/2021. Accordingly,
tax penalty of approximately HK$3,700,000 was provided
during the year ended 31 December 2022 and included in
“Administrative and other expenses” and the additional
tax payables of approximately HK$2,094,000 was provided
during the year ended 31 December 2022 and included in
“Taxation charge”. Tax reserve certificates of approximately
HK$5,794,000 purchased by the Group have been utilised to
settle the aforesaid payables.

10.

MR R (&)

BEBE(PREEFAERZE) ((d
RFRRMIED)) R EPIEIREA
BB > T EME QS W
FEZMEHRH25% -

KEE_ZE__F+_-_/B=+—
HIEEE AR —XKREEE2E
MBASEREEEERI T
ik B M F4Y3,700,000
BTUNKRBREEEMR_TZ
NE/ _ETHEE_T_F
FE)/ B —FENFREINE
FFIIEL92,094,0008 T2 HE ©
A KN8EE_E__F+_H
T+ —HEFEZRFBINEL
3,700,000t 5t A M7 AR E
R RPRBE_ZE -
+ B =1+—HILEFEEEEINE
IR I8 492,094,000 7Tl 51 A
MRET ) c ANEEE SR F4
%5 495,794,000% 70 B B LK
iH DA B R IE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

10. TAXATION CREDIT (Continued)

The taxation credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

10. MIFIER (

AERMBEBRE I EBGEGEm MHE
fthE2EUW AR KT RRIRATEE

and other comprehensive income as follows: HERAOH -
2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss before taxation PRI BT I8 (5.051,360) (11,752,260)
Tax at the income tax rate of 16.5% P8 MINZE16.5%
(2021: 16.5%) (ZEZ—F :16.5%) 833,474 1,939,123
Tax effect of expenses not Ao iR s RBEEE
deductible for tax purposes (3,068,099) (413,790)
Tax effect of income not taxable BERRMANZREE
for tax purposes 13,486,141 7,756,898
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  RIERIRNFEE 1B Z R 55
A (9,396,446) (6,606,268)
Tax effect of recognition of tax MR EN A S Bl R SR AR S
losses previously not recognised Rz MBEE - 3,236,926
Over (under) provision in prior years BEFEBREREE
EEHERE) 153,811 (4,037,825)
Effect of different tax rates of REMBEEEERE
subsidiaries operating in other MEABSITERE
jurisdictions B 514,992 (1,403,274)
Tax effect of share of results of DEEEREEEZ
joint ventures MBEE (619) (619)
Tax effect of two-tiered tax rate MARRE 2 R E 126,892 146,492
Taxation credit for the year REMRIAR R 2,650,146 617,663
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 1. FTFEE
2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss for the year has been arrived at ~ stEAFEEEBESINR
after charging (crediting): Gt -
Auditor’s remuneration ZEREMEN =
— Audit services —E:H IR 1,915,000 1,850,000
— Non-audit services —EEF AR 606,000 1,000,000
2,521,000 2,850,000
Cost of inventories recognised as an RS 2 FENA
expense (including write-down of (BLIEHAI 77 E5240,984
inventories of HK$240,984 (2021: BT (CE—%F
HK$1,738,392)) 1,738,392 7T)) 200,817,058 284,536,781
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRESERE 14,378,993 10,141,861
Depreciation of other property, HAwWE | BB &
plant and equipment REINE 21,820,623 28,105,742
Depreciation of property, plant and ME.REBENEZEITE
equipment 36,199,616 38,247,603
Less: included in cost of sales and BTN E MRS A A
services (19,758,629) (26,832,006)
16,440,987 11,415,597
Staff costs (including directors’ ETNA (BEEHME)
emoluments)
— Salaries, wages and other benefits —#e. TEXEMER] 176,764,704 176,449,142
— Contributions to retirement benefits ~ —B{Kf@F] 5t 23k
schemes 12,857,395 11,785,706
Less: included in cost of sales and B EENIHE RARFE R A
services (101,673,107) (106,696,491)
87,948,992 81,538,357
Legal and professional fees ERENEEER 10,922,258 9,701,796
Gross rental income from investment KB EWEZ BN
properties 4axE (2,194,059) (4,477,272)
Less: Direct operating expenses incurred & : AREEER SN
for investment properties that BEMEELZ
generated rental income during BEKERX
the year 392,878 340,479
(1,801,181) (4,136,793)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued) EEE (B)
2022 2021
—E-—fF —=—_
HK$ HK$
BT BT
The following items are included in UTEBESANEHEEN
(reversal of impairment losses) BHNEETAREERIE
impairment losses under ECL model BT (REEBIBRE
on financial assets and contract ) R BRI 5EE .
assets, net:
— Reversal of impairment losses on — BRI HE
trade receivables, net 58RO F 8 (85,753) (2,291,599)
— Reversal of impairment losses on —BNEEZRERBE
contract assets, net $5[0] ;328 (269,264) (714,591)
— Impairment losses (reversal of —FEWER (BB 1B
impairment losses) on loans [B)) HIEE 18 FEE
receivable, net 929,850 (183,063)
574,833 (3,189,253)
The following items are included in U TMEEEF AEMFE
other interest income: WX
— Bank interest income —IR1THI BN (993,992) (754,500)
— Interest income on rental deposits —fEEE2 MBI (103,433) (80,216)
(1,097,425) (834,716)
The following items are included LITNIEE Bt NEMUN
in other income:
— Dividend income —RREWA (1,115,144) (1,214,590)
— Government grants (Note) — BT #E BN (7 3E) (7,196,142) (4,239,371)
— Others —HAth (2,829,214) (2,451,500)
(11,140,500) (7,905,461)
Note: HizE :

For the year ended 31 December 2022, government grants
represented one-off government grants in the PRC of HK$11,590
(2021: HK$100,000) related to grants under Covid-19 pandemic,
the government grants that are receivable as a compensation for
expenses incurred of HK$5,450,892 (2021: HK$2,500,442) during the
year ended 31 December 2022. There were also government grants
received for Employment Support Scheme launched by the Hong Kong
Government of HK$1,733,660 (2021: nil). For the year ended 31
December 2021, there were also assets related government grant of

HK$1,638,929.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

12.

13.

TE T THE+_B=+—HIEEE

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to

12. HQI%\

13.

BE_ZEZ-_FNITZ—
+TZA=+—HLEFERILRIK
NREBREEARE BRS
HA SR DA SR TS 8 8 53 K 22 A ) PR
Boe

FREBE
AAFEE NEIESREREE

owners of the Company is based on the following data: TBERUTEIESTE
Loss figures are calculated as follows: BEESFHEUT
2022 2021
HK$ HK$
#EIT BT
Loss for the year attributable to owners BREtEEREREE
of the Company for the purpose of NABIEB AEEASE
calculating basic loss per share &518 (1,942,228) (10,706,159)

2022 2021
oSS - =25
Weighted average number of ordinary ARt ESKREKREIEY
shares in issue for the purpose of BRTEBER
calculating basic loss per share INEFEHEE 253,581,100 253,639,456

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic loss per share has been adjusted for the share
repurchase on 14 October 2022 and 17 October 2022 as
disclosed in note 31.

No separate diluted loss per share information has been
presented as there were no potential ordinary shares
outstanding issue for both years.

ARt ESREAGRZ AR
LRSS SR, S —
+ATOBER-_BE___F+A
TEERDBLOELAR

FRS M8 F E G EETEIZ
BrEER RHUEBIZ5E
KRB ERmIEZ B -
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17 g =

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__F+_A=t+—HLFE

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ME- -BHBERRE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures Machinery
lands and Leasehold and office and Motor
buildings  improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
RELHR R RER
BF  HAEMERE BAZRE EELE fat: a3
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
En A T o A7 An
CosT e
At 1 January 2021 A\EC-£-F-H 217,413,624 70,545,516 57,161,170 552,493,931 20,759,330 918,373,571
Exchange adjustments ERRE 1,377,997 929,892 355,596 5,836,303 160,505 8,660,293
Additions FE 13,708,058 944,014 1,813,292 2723751 5,539,265 24,728,380
Disposals and written-offs HERIME (1,284,380) (2,800 (564,777) (5,717,569) (676,717) (8.246,43)
Eliminated upon leases expired ISEEE (372,251) - - - - (372,251)
At 31 December 2021 RISZ-F+ZF=+-H 230,843,048 72,416,622 58,765,281 555,336,416 25,782,383 943,143,750
Exchange adjustments ERER (2,586,274) (2,515,680) (1,014,967) (14,813,080) (474,962) (21,404,963)
Additions HE - 6,966,824 2,432,629 6,225,710 13,129 15,638,292
Modifications 5 20,348,640 - - - - 20,348,640
Disposals and written-offs HERMH (327,754) (1,479,057) (2,939,425) (9,249,453) (310,857) (14,306,546)
Disposal through disposal of a subsidiary (note 32) ERLE-ZHBATZLE
(st32) (22,240,803) (6,575,994) (1,076,426) - - (29,893,223)
At 31 December 2022 RZZZZE+ZR=1-H 226,036,857 68,812,715 56,167,092 537,499,593 25,009,693 913,525,950
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT HERAE
At 1 January 2021 RISZ-£-F-8 83,542,047 59,611,727 50,513,115 457,987,311 17,059,470 668,713,670
Exchange adjustments ERFE 815,119 544,106 215,303 2510211 103,003 4,187,742
Provided for the year rEEE 10,686,018 5,425,015 2,839,648 17,383,450 1913472 38,247,603
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss REERANAEER - - 774,076 1,160,273 - 1934349
Eliminated on disposals and written-offs HERM A (802,738) (2,800) (458,746) (2,548,587) (669,214) (4,482,085)
Eliminated upon leases expired RREHHERS (372,251) = = = = (372,251)
At 31 December 2021 RISZ-F+ZA=1+-H 93,868,195 65,578,048 53,883,396 476,492,658 18,406,731 708,229,028
Exchange adjustments ERBE (1,541,281) (2,167,749) (112,411) (4,250,505) (308,289) (8,980,235)
Provided for the year rEEE 14918232 4,744,622 3,632,847 10,375,950 2,527,965 36,199,616
Eliminated on disposals and written-offs HERMH RS (321,754) (1,557,114) (2,660,924) (7,450,747) (279,771) (12,276,310)
Disposal through disposal of a subsidiary (note 32) BRHE-RKWEARZLE
(t32) (11,197,913) (4,886,142) (139,903) - - (16,223.958)
At 31 December 2022 RZZZZE+R=1+-H 95,719,479 61,711,665 54,003,005 475,167,356 20,346,636 706,948,141
CARRYING VALUES REf
At 31 December 2022 RZZ__F+"A=1+-H 130,317,378 7,101,050 2,164,087 62,332,237 4,663,057 206,577,809
At 31 December 2021 RZZ--F+ZA=+-H 136,974,853 6,838,574 4,881,885 78,843,758 7,375,652 234,914,722
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

im e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ME-BERSE @
(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, after taking LR B RREERE 2T
into account the residual values, are depreciated on a straight- ELEZRMGREER  IHEAU
line basis at the following rates per annum: TEMRBEKESE
Leasehold lands and Over the shorter HETHEK BRNBRAI0E
buildings of the lease terms B 50\5 MUBEE
or 30-50 years wE)
Leasehold improvements ~ 12.5% — 20% HEMERE 12.5% - 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 10% - 25% R i \‘gg&;}m 10% - 25%
office equipment =il
Machinery and equipment  10% - 25% a8 Rt 10% - 25%
Motor vehicles Over the shorter e RIEAHR25%
of the lease terms £33% (UK
or 25% — 33'3% RERE)
2022 2021
—E-F s
HKS$ HK$
BT BT

The carrying values of leasehold land ~ EARTAE L KIEF
and buildings shown above comprise:  ZEREI{EBIE :

Leasehold land and buildings R EBZHE LT
in Hong Kong Mig=F 149,499 11,548,784

Leasehold land and buildings in PRC IRz HE
RiEF 130,167,879 125,426,069

130,317,378 136,974,853
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in e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. W% BERSEE (@)
(Continued)
The Group as lessee EEEREAEA
Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant FEHESE (GIAYE - FE
and equipment) V4]
Leasehold land Motor
and building vehicles Total
S RET RE Hest
HK$ HK$ HK$
BIT ABIT BT
At 31 December 2022 RZE_”“H#+”-B=+—H
Carrying amount IREE 62,896,429 2,854,958 65,751,387
At 31 December 2021 RZE-_—5+”"B=+—H
Carrying amount IREE 55,720,503 3,862,590 59,583,093
For the year ended 31 BE_F__F+”°-H=+—H
December 2022 ILEFE
Depreciation charge TEER 13,371,361 1,007,632 14,378,993
Modifications B 20,348,640 - 20,348,640
For the year ended 31 HE_ZE-_—-£+”-“RA=+—H
December 2021 LLEFE
Depreciation charge WEER 9,973,922 167,939 10,141,861
Additions RE 13,708,058 4,030,529 17,738,587
2022 2021
HK$ HK$
AT BT
Expense relating to short-term leases ~ S24GHRFHE BRI X 940,753 585,664
Expense relating to leases of low-value EH{{EEEEHEES
assets, excluding short-term leases FEEREEEE
of low-value assets HFHATEE) R/
sz 19,760 22,632
Total cash outflow for leases HEMIRS R 4EEE 18,379,926 10,340,841
For both years, the Group leases various offices, warehouses mEEE NEBR AL HSER
and factory for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into EXBMAETE-EENL TR
for fixed term of one to fifty years. S SN REEHAR—2 AT F5]
1/ o
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A

i 3

M HwRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

14.

TR THF+A=+—HLEEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant
and equipment) (Continued)

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for smaller
office premises and office equipment. As at 31 December
2022 and 2021, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar
to the portfolio of short-term leases for which the short-term
lease expenses is disclosed above.

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably
certain not to exercise a termination option, upon the
occurrence of either a significant event or a significant change
in circumstances that is within the control of the lessee. During
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there is no
such triggering event.

Property, plant and equipment with an aggregate carrying
value of HK$11,042,890 was pledged to banks to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group as at 31
December 2021. The pledge of property, plant and equipment
was released by the banks on 28 January 2022.

Leasehold improvements with an aggregate cost of
HK$34,045,842 (2021: HK$38,707,592) were fully depreciated
are still in use as at 31 December 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has
disposed of property, plant and equipment of HK$13,669,265
through the disposal of a subsidiary as disclosed in note 32.

14.

YR~ BB Rz s (48)

AEBREAEEA (B)

BHEEEE GIAYE B
KxRfE) (&)

FEEEHSBNENRAEY)
EJNEI YN EIRVE SR EEIEN -1 S
R CFERIEBC—F+ZAH
=+—H EREEESELUL
Lt EE ma%m [ Sz B9 A2 HA
HEHEE

o > S B A T AR A B B4 &6
@WWEk%#ﬁ%%mﬁ%k
BULER AAEBEFHTHES
BT RN THEAILE E%o
REE_ZE__FNh_FT"—%F
+B=1+—HBLEFE WEH
BEHEMEMSH-

BREES$11,042,890E T2
X BEMKEBECEBFIRIT
tEARERK—_E-_—F+_"H
—t+—HEREZ—RRTEEZ
EH - KB _F—B_-+/\
H ¥z -BEMZKENERE
FEIRTTHRBR o

4B A 234,045,842 0 (=
——% 38,707,592 7T) B9FA
EMELEETHEITE Wi
T _FE+"B=1+—H1NARRE
)Eﬁo

BE_ZT_—_F#+"-HA=+—H
IEEE MM 32T E » K
EECEEBHE—ZXRHBATIH
EYE BB MK 13,669,265
BITe
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M HwRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

14.

15.

TR THF+A=+—HLEEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant
and equipment) (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
considered to suspend the mask production due to poor
performance of the operation. Accordingly, impairment losses
on property, plant and equipment of HK$1,934,349 was
recognised.

For the purposes of impairment testing, majority of the
property, plant and equipment has been allocated to cash-
generating unit of Manufacturing and Sales Business. The
recoverable amount has been determined based on a value
in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period, and discount rate of 15.5%
(2021: 15.8%). Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 2.25% (2021: 2.25%) growth
rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry
growth forecasts and does not exceed the average long-
term growth rate for the relevant industry. Other key
assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
sales and gross margin, such estimation is based on the past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. During the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021, management of the Group determines that there is no
impairment on the property, plant and equipment.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group's investment properties are located in Hong Kong
and the PRC. All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are measured using the fair value model and are
classified and accounted for as investment properties. The
Group leases out various offices in the PRC and commercial
and industrial premises in Hong Kong under operating leases
with rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for an
initial period of one to three years (2021: one to three years)
with no rights to extend the lease beyond initial period held by
lessees only.
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FEE AEEBROSEENEK
BAEMEEEFEZER At
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$81,934,349% 75 ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_

15.

iR e MBHRRM

w 3
For the year ended 31 December 2022

T CETCA=t—HILEE

the Group.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. BEME (B
The lease contracts do not contain residual value guarantee BATESEFRGEEERN
and/or lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of jﬁ(%ﬂ)\}j’ﬁﬂﬁﬂmﬁiﬂ%ﬁﬁé\%%
the lease term. JIEERE o
HK$
BT
At 1 January 2021 A _E - —F—H—H 212,020,086
Fair value change recognised in RERERZ AN FEES
profit or loss 46,763,317
Exchange adjustments E AR 511,386
At 31 December 2021 N _E_—F+"B=+—H 259,294,789
Fair value change recognised in RIEBERERZ N T EE
profit or loss (14,498,870)
Additions wE 5,082,968
Disposal through disposal of a BRAEE—RNBEARIZHE
subsidiary (note 32) (H13£32) (137,357,335)
Exchange adjustments bE R B (1,369,996)
At 31 December 2022 RIEZZHF+ZA=+—H 111,151,556
Unrealised (loss) gain on property FANEMIBmAIREIRYEE S
revaluation included in other gains (B5148) W=
and losses
— for the year ended —HEZZE-"F+=A
31 December 2022 =t+—HLEFE (14,498,870)
— for the year ended —BE_E_—H+°A
31 December 2021 =+t—HIEFE 46,736,317
The fair value of all investment properties has been arrived Fﬁﬁ&ﬁ%%@qzﬁi’jﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
at on the basis of valuations carried out by Peak Vision ?ZDMEEBE BB CEN
Appraisals Limited as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. They = _—J*:E-f— B=+—H#&1T
are independent qualified professional valuers not related to HNEESH HARAEEIL &

HENBIGERER(GEM-
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Ra M B ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

15.

TE T THE+_B=+—HIEEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Investment properties with fair value of HK$137,357,335 as
at 31 December 2021 has been based in the management’s
estimation in accordance with the proposed disposal price of
entire issued share capital of Profit Link Investment Limited
("Profit Link”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company which owns the investment properties, with an
independent third party. Such disposal has completed on 28
January 2022 as disclosed in note 32.

Investment properties with fair value of HK$111,151,556
(2021: HK$121,937,454) as at 31 December 2022 are
determined based on the income capitalisation approach,
where the market rentals of all lettable units of the properties
are assessed and discounted at the market yield expected by
investors for this type of properties. The market rentals are
assessed based on estimates of future cash flows, supported
by the terms of existing lease and the market rentals of the
similar properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate
is determined by reference to the yields derived from analysing
the sales transactions of similar properties and adjusted to take
into account the market expectation from property investors to
reflect factors specific to the Group'’s investment properties.

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use and
adjusted to exclude prepaid or accrued operating lease income
to avoid double counting. At the end of the reporting period,
the financial controller works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs into the model. Where there is a material change in the
fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be
reported to management of the Group.

Except for the transfer of fair value measurement as
mentioned above, there were no changes to the valuation
techniques for investment properties. The carrying amount of
the Group’s remaining investment properties is a Level 3 fair
value measurement. There were no transfers into or out of
Level 3 for the investment properties during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= A H
=

BEZ

15.

M HwRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B E+CA=+-ALEE

—_—

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable inputs

15.

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in
the determination of fair values for investment properties and

1;)1 é fl:% % (H‘E)

A E AT AT BEH A B
2 AF(Es B2 AR

TR ERE S A T
R ERM R EREA R PE

unobservable inputs used in the valuation models. Bz Ao EReg A BiE o
Inter relationship between
significant unobservable
Fair value as at Fairvalue  Valuation Significant Range of si?nificant inputs and
Description 31 December hierarchy ~ techniques unobservable inputs unobservable inputs fair value measurement
) ) ) ‘ ‘ EAATRREANSEAT
it K+ZB=+-AHATE APEEG  HERE EXTARREAYE EXTABREAURER B EZEMEERE
2022 2021 2022 201
kSl ZE-f ZBIC “B-f
HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT A AT A
Industrial properties in - 137,357,335 Level 2 Proposed disposal Proposed disposal price N/A N/A The higherflower the disposal
Fanling, Hong Kong price %)rice the higher/lower the
air value.
REERBZIENE Fh BELER BENEE ER 18R ﬁ‘%%ﬂ?/m VRTER
Al o
Properties in the PRC 16,751,556 18,237,454 Level3 Income capitalisation ()  Capitalisation rate 2.75% 275%  The lower/igher the
approach taking into account the capitalisation rate, the
capitalisation of market higher/lower the fair value.
) o rental value
RPEZNE B WAERLE () EXLEGADRAE éZEtZA /05 A
EBENERT) s/ Rl
(i) Market rental value RMB119 to RMB143to  The higher/lower the market
RMB153 per RMB165 per rental value, the higher/
square meter square meter lower the fair value.
(i) RALEE ETERARE  STARARE PHEAE/RE ATE
MITEARR  1BTEARE
15378 16570
Commercial properties 94,400,000 103,700,000 Level 3 Income capitalisation () Capitalisation rate 3.5% 35%  The lower/igher the
in Yuen Long, approach taking into account the capitalisation rate, the
Hong Kong capitalisation of market higher/lower the fair value.
N o rental value
REATHZERENE B WAEREE () ExEEGATHES
BENER()
(i) Market rental value HKS25to  HK$38to HK$63  The higher/lower the market
HK$85 per ~ per square feet rental value, the higher/
square feet L lower the fair value.
(i) TEAEEE STRRSET  STARNET  RESRS/ A6 ATE
E85ET E63%T e/ afe
As at 31 December 2022, investment properties with }j\_v__ﬁ—l— A= —|— EI >

aggregate carrying value of HK$94,400,000 (2021:
HK$241,057,335) were pledged to banks to secure bank
borrowings as stated in note 29 and general banking facilities
granted to the Group. On 28 January 2022, the pledge of
investment properties was released by the banks.

/\ /L,\ ~ Iy

——F 241 057 ,33587T) 2
&é%%a 51 FIRTT > 1EA KN
SE20FHLER 1 TETA&$$@3%$§
Z—RIBTEEZER - KZE
T THF—BZH+/\H BREWE
AL IR B IR TARRR ©
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im e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

16. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI/FINANCIAL 16.

ASSETS AT FVTPL

Equity instruments at FVTOCI

FREMEZEMBAELT
BHYRZIRATH B8
BEE AT EYIRZERM
BaE
FREMRERARATE

FIBRZRATH

2022 2021

—EBCHF —BT—F

HK$ HK$

BT BT
Unlisted equity securities established ~ FA& B~ R K2 /89N %
in Hong Kong, the PRC and I ZIFEHRAEES

overseas (note) (H13%) 22,285,289 22,550,619

Note: As at 31 December 2022, the Group has investments in three
(2021: three) unlisted equity securities established in the
PRC, three (2021: three) unlisted equity securities established
in overseas and one (2021: one) unlisted equity security
incorporated in Hong Kong which were held for an identified

long term strategic purpose.
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iR e MBHRRM

wR 3
For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

16.

B HF+"HB=1+—HLEE

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI/FINANCIAL
ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)

Equity instruments at FVTOCI (Continued)

These investments in equity instruments are not held for
trading. Instead, they are held for medium to long-term
strategic purposes. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
have elected to designate these investments in equity
instruments as at FVTOCI as they believe that recognising
short-term fluctuations in these investments’ fair value in profit
or loss would not be consistent with the Group’s strategy of
holding these investments for long-term purposes and realising
their performance potential in the long run.

Details of the fair value measurement on equity instruments at
FVTOCI are disclosed in note 39.

Financial assets at FVTPL

16.

FEHMEEBARLF
BEIRZRET A Eid
BmE A FEIRZ R
EE (8

BREMEEBARATE
SIiRz iRAT A (&)

ZERATAERETIFFEE
B Bk BREDBFHIERRAR
AR At "ATEFEE
BERNZERATARERERSS
BHEHMEEWAR R FETER
RABRERDR HRAZSFKE
PR R BREY AT EE KRS
HAEBEAREENFEZSR
ENBRAEREBTRRRE
REF o

BEREMEEBARATFETER
ZRATRAZ RTEFEFER
P EE399 B8 ©

BREDEATFEIRZE
MEE

Listed equity investments in Hong Kong M&EBZ EHREAEE

2022 2021
= s —=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
17,375,128 24,716,500

Details of the fair value measurement on financial assets at
FVTPL are disclosed in note 39.

BERBRBEATEINRZEHE
EZ AT EFEFIBIRW MK
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Ra M B ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

17.

e TF+"A=1+—HIEE

CONTRACT ASSETS BHNEE
2022 2021
—E-C BT —F
HKS$ HK$
#HIT BT

Contract assets from Manufacturing RIERIHE EFH

and Sales Business BHEE 30,424,210 46,875,356
Less: allowance for credit loss W EEEEEE (159,275) (428,539)
30,264,935 46,446,817

As at 1 January 2021, contract assets amounted to
HK$35,240,798.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group's right to
consideration from the customers for the manufacturing and
sales of printing products. Contract assets arise when the
Group has right to consideration for the work completed
under relevant contracts and their right is conditioned on
factors other than passage of time. The contract assets
are transferred to trade receivables upon the delivery and
acceptance of products by customers.

Typical payment terms is 60 to 120 days upon delivery.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current assets
because the Group expects to realise them in its normal
operating cycle which is within 12 months after the end of the

reporting period.

Details of the impairment assessment are set out in note 39.
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im e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18. NMEEARIZERE
2022 2021
=Sy BT
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Costs of investments in unlisted RIFLETHEEREZ
joint ventures KRERA 16 16
Share of post-acquisition profit and MW EER RN R EM
other comprehensive income ESENON 392,966 396,716
392,982 396,732
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had interests in RCE g _E-—F+T
the following joint ventures: B=4+—H ' &x"EBRUTEE
NEEE R
Proportion of
Form of Principal nominal value
business Country of place of (Class of of issued capital Proportion of
Name of entity structure incorporation operation share held held by the Group voting power held Principal activities
REERSE
BRLHE S HMHLER - E Fis (AR BEARAEE!L PR ELA TBEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
I8 “3T-% C§CCE C3T-E
% % % %
Reliance Partner Incorporated Anguilla Hong Kong Ordinary 50 50 50 50 Investment holding
AT el B EER RELR
Estate Summit Incorporated British Virgin Hong Kong Ordinary 50 50 50 50 Inactive
Islands ("BVI")
AT EERUEE (2B &% EER BELH
=)
Aggregate information of joint ventures that are BREARERZEEATE
not individually material 78 5 ¥
2022 2021
g B4
HK$ HK$
AT BT
The Group's share of loss REEDLEE 3,750 3,750
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

im e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

19. INVENTORIES 19. &8
2022 2021
=Sy BT
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Raw materials R 24,247,131 11,481,681
Finished goods Sk 12,870,715 9,051,932
37,117,846 20,533,613
During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, certain HE _ - _—_FN_E _—E
finished goods were damaged and as a result, write-down of +_B=4+—HUItFE »EF8
inventories of HK$240,984 (2021: HK$1,738,392) has been miEiEEs Rt B EFEE
recognised and included in cost of sales and services. i5240,984%8 7 (ZE - —4F .
1,738,392787T) > st ASHE X
ARFE A o
20. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR 20. FEZEDPYE
SALE
HK$
BT
At 1 January 2021 A —E " —F—H—H 124,759,125
Additions m% 68,490,278
Exchange adjustments BE 2 FE %L 5,116,077
At 31 December 2021 NI —F+ZA=+—H 198,365,480
Additions NE 146,930,803
Exchange adjustments b 2 FE 2 (19,199,168)
At 31 December 2022 N_E-__HF#+"B=+—H 326,097,115
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iR e MBHRRM

i 3

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

20.

TR THF+A=+—HLEEE

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR
SALE (Continued)

GEEXRTYE (B

Analysis of leasehold lands: HE LD
HK$
BT
As at 31 December 2022 HWZE2EZ—_F+=ZHB=+—H
Carrying amount BREE 96,456,622
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—F+=-H=+—H
Carrying amount BREE 104,307,742

The carrying amount of leasehold lands is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The residual values are determined as the estimated disposal
value of the leasehold land component. No depreciation
charge is made on the leaseholder lands taking into account
the estimated residual values as at 31 December 2022 and
2021.

The properties under development for sale of the Group are
situated on the land located in the PRC.

One of the properties under development for sale are
developed on the land in the PRC owned by ;B&EmHE
EERZAR AT (“Zhongging”), a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company with the carrying amount of
approximately HK$38,198,739 (2021: HK$42,201,076).

B £ i BY BR [ (B DB 2SR 1T
o] REtiT &8 RAEFIAEERKS
%0%%Eﬁﬁi%ﬂ%i%%
DHESHEBE ZEEIR T
Z__HFR_FE-_—F+°AH
=+—BHESFGREE HE
IHARSHRITEER -

FEBZHFERERPYRALT
Bzt #h ko

Hph—BEFEEERYENRA
AR EEHERZEERAE
(THRBEI A RBZIEEENB
RE)RHEEEz T FERE
IREE4 238,198,739 75 (—
T~ —4F 1 42,201,076 7T) ©

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE&EZKARAT | Annual Report 2022 F iR

251



252

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ra M B ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

20.

TE T THE+_B=+—HIEEE

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR
SALE (Continued)

On 18 June 2014, FIIFTHEHEREERERBRAF
("Zhongxing Guosheng”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and the immediate holding company of Zhongging,
initiated civil proceedings against Zhongging in the &I
BEZ& AREPT ("People’s Court of Baoan District”) for the
repayment of the shareholder’s loan owing to Zhongxing
Guosheng of RMB23,479,330. On 19 June 2014, pursuant
to an application made by Zhongxing Guosheng to freeze
and preserve assets of Zhongging in the total value of
RMB23,400,000, an order was granted by the People’s Court
of Baoan District to freeze and preserve the lands owned by
Zhongging during the period from 24 June 2014 to 23 June
2016 (“Freeze Order”), aiming to ensure that Zhongging
would have sufficient assets for the repayment of the
shareholder’s loan to the Group.

On 15 October 2014, the Group received the civil mediation
document (RZEH#EE)issued by the People’s Court of
Baoan District, acknowledging that (i) both Zhongging and
the Group confirmed the shareholder’s loan was in sum of
RMB23,479,330; (ii) Zhongqing agreed to repay to Zhongxing
Guosheng the sum of RMB23,479,330 together with the
interests accrued from 18 June 2014 until the date of
repayment which was supposed to be within 15 days after the
effective date of the civil mediation document (i.e. 15 October
2016); and (iii) if Zhongging failed to repay the amount stated
in (i) in full on time, the Group had the right to request
Zhongging to pay default interests calculated at two times of
the lending rate of the People’s Bank of China over the same
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ra M B ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

20.

TE T THE+_B=+—HIEEE

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR
SALE (Continued)

On 27 May 2016, the Group received the assistance execution
notice (IRBhEITIEANE) issued by the People’s Court of
Baoan District to freeze and preserve the land owned by
Zhongqging during the period from 13 June 2016 to 12 June
2019. The period covered by the Freeze Order was further
extended to 12 May 2022 by the People’s Court of Baoan
District on 15 May 2019 and was further extended to 12 May
2025 on 14 April 2022.

On 11 March 2022, the Company announced the intention
to apply to the People’s Court of Baoan District for the
commencement of the compulsory enforcement proceedings
against Zhongging to put the freezed land (the “Land”) for
sale in the judicial auction (the “Compulsory Enforcement”)
through the Online Auction Platform as decided by the
People’s Court of Baoan District for the sale of the land use
rights of the Land (the “Auction”) in order to settle the
shareholder’s Loan. The Auction will be opened to the public.
In view of the potential development value of the Land, in the
event that there are other bidders in any round of the Auction,
the Group intends to participate in the Auction through the
Group's potential bidder (subject to factors such as the market
condition and the prevailing regulatory regime). The maximum
amount which the Group's Potential Bidder is prepared to
bid at the Auction is RMB30,700,000 (equivalent to HK
$38,068,000) (the “Ceiling”). If the Auction lapses for absence
of bidder, pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations,
Zhongxing Guosheng as the applicant of the Compulsory
Enforcement will have the right to take over the Land to set
off against the shareholder’s Loan with the amount equivalent
to the initial bid price prevailing at the second auction as
stipulated under the relevant PRC laws and regulations. It will
constitute a possible acquisition transaction of the Group.

20.

GEEXRTYE (B

R_E—ERAB-+tHB &K
SEKIBHEZER AR AR E
HOBBRITENEZ  URZE
—NEANA+=HE_E—N=F
NAT_BHBERENRFRETE
EMEES 2 T #h o R4S FT R
EHEHREZE AR EIRR -
—NEFERB+HARHE—FIERE
—E"HFRAR+ZH WK
ET"FPB+HHE—FIER
E_E"RAFRA+"He-

R_E__&#=B+—H &2
AEHREDEBELZE ARZERA
HEPERE AT BITRER U
RS T (T BRELR
EARZEREMEEZ LT HN L
WMERAEMARENLG EHEF
g (pE)) &7 EmE (Ta
HEITL) P UEBREER A
EfRARBER  EBRZ LT
BEZEBE MELMT—8HIA
BEFTHEMBR A xAEEERS
BAEENEBEERRAZHRE
RFEMBRELIBITEEHE
ZRERME) - AEBEBERR
ANEERREE LHENRS®
A AR K30,700,0007c (FHE
}538,068,0007870) (TLEPFRY) o
RER D B AMEBIAE R
RIEFPEERERER P2
BRIEABRBBITRFAZEEEZ
EZTHUEEREER (%8
MERTEERERERREEN
FRIABENYBRIZEN) o H
BB A EE A BERI W RERZ 5 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

20.

TR THF+A=+—HLEEE

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR
SALE (Continued)

In the event that a bidder other than the Group's potential
bidder offers a price higher than the Ceiling or that the market
condition and/or the relevant regulatory regime has changed
such that it will not be commercially beneficial for the Group’s
potential bidder to acquire the Land, the Group’s potential
bidder will not participate in the Auction or bid further in
the Auction. In such circumstances, Zhongging will then be
obliged to sell the Land to the bidder who offers the highest
price in the Auction and the sale will constitute a disposal
transaction of the Group.

On 15 July 2022, the Compulsory Enforcement was approved
by the shareholders’ of the Company and the Group submitted
the application to the People’s Court of Baoan District to
commence the Compulsory Enforcement in July 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, the Auction was not yet
commenced as the People’s Court of Baoan District was
still verifying the information of the Land with the relevant
departments in Qingyuan.

Properties under development for sale with aggregate carrying
value of approximately HK$287,898,376 (31 December
2021: nil) have been pledged to a PRC bank to secure bank
borrowings as disclosed in note 29 granted to the Group.

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE2&£EZERBRAE | Annual Report 2022 F iR

20.

T E‘E’X}EEF”F%¥ (n\E)

fin 2 52 B 7 7 5 3 A DUSMBY R
BRARHBR LRER NE
mIHAR R K S AE RE B I
HEBL ET H&ﬁ%'?ii{ﬂHﬁT
GHEAEENETIHRRABEL
KR REEE iﬁﬁ?&)\zﬂ%?\
S2ERNBEURBHERE—TH
B-RZFBERT PEREE
Bzt MEEFHETHER
SRR A M HE R BN A
EENHERS -

KNZE__&F#tHB+HH &4
HITEERLBREAE S MA
EECEREZE ARZLIRIEEE
BN E - _FEAEKR
%J%ﬂﬁo

KRB "F#+-"A=+—8"
mEHEARE REASEZEA
RZERNAERBETHEREPIZ
Eiﬂﬂ{:lfuo

A F29FTIRE - AKEEE
BREZRTYERBDEEY
287,898,376 (ZE - —%
+ZB=4+—H 8 EHF—X
FEIERTT ) EIRITRETNZIER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, _{_m%-,—-'j(lﬁ fa
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS J—,(EZ
2022 2021
—E-—& —E=-—F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Trade receivables B2 EWIE 93,003,027 121,178,354
Less: allowance for credit losses W EEEEEE (722,114) (828,427)
92,280,913 120,349,927
Receivables with brokers’ houses KA ITIE W ERIE 2,279,423 1,263,981
Deposits and other receivables (note) 515 K& ELfth FEUFRIR
(15t 10,017,055 25,411,878
Other tax recoverable Hbe] W [e]#2 18 3,947,629 5,370,516
Prepayments AT I 13,576,039 11,356,989
122,101,059 163,753,291
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MMEREDITA :
Current assets MENEE 116,131,495 159,596,715
Non-current assets FEreEhsEE 5,969,564 4,156,576
122,101,059 163,753,291
As at 1 January 2021, trade receivables from contracts with A TET—F—H—HkEH
customers amounted to HK$110,247,609. BRI ZENZ BEEIWZIE
#5110,247,609%8 7T ©
Note: Included in deposits and other receivables of approximately Bt . EUMEE0FTINE N & ——
HK$9,275,000 as at 31 December 2021 have been utilised F+_B=4+—Hst A& &H
to setoff the tax penalty and tax payables of approximately fth FE WL ZRIE £99,275,00058 T2
HK$5,794,000 as disclosed in note 10. The remaining amount ARIRHRES T REMNRIELY
of approximately HK$3,481,000 have been refunded by Inland 5,794,000 5t At BR T & 88
Revenue Department accordingly. #93,481,000 8 TEHMBEBER
EO
The Group’s credit terms on Manufacturing and Sales Business KNREFWERIHEXFRIUKRES
and Trading Business generally range from 60 to 90 days. B Z2EEH —MENFE60E90
Credit period of 120 days is granted to a few customers of the He/ b HERERAE BT XFSE
Manufacturing and Sales Business with whom the Group has 1% B Bt 7 Ak iﬁ B4 7 835 & i
a good business relationship and who are in sound financial EXEETROZE E120EI =8
condition. The Group allows an average credit period of 60 to Hi o REE B 45 F = 44 [y YR 4a 2E 2
90 days to its customers of Music and Entertainment Business. = A 21§j§ﬁg$i’j%6oigo Ho
The following is an ageing analysis of the trade receivables net UTRARREHA HE*E}F ZEHEHA
of allowance for credit losses presented based on the invoice 275 Z%%ng& Q=] (E}D b 1=
date at the end of the reporting period. EiEiaiE) Bk ﬁ*ﬁ o
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in e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

21.

BEZ R EMEUWRIE TR
R R 5T &= ()

2022 2021
g F =25
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Manufacturing and Sales Business and ~ 83& M 35 6 ZE 75 LI X
Trading Business: B2
0-30 days 0ZF30H 50,200,857 80,719,503
31-60 days 31Z260H 21,552,763 22,572,999
61-90 days 612E90H 10,240,281 8,666,407
Over 90 days BiE90H 9,919,140 7,232,846
91,913,041 119,191,755
Music and Entertainment Business: BRI IR TS .
0-30 days 0ZFE30H 286,382 517,851
31-60 days 31E60H - 8,116
61-90 days 61E90H 300 151,276
Over 90 days #8190 H 81,190 480,929
367,872 1,158,172
Total trade receivables B 2 EWRIE R %8 92,280,913 120,349,927

Trade receivables of approximately HK$8,027,000 (2021:
HK$11,496,000) and HK$729,000 (2021: HK$1,898,000) were
denominated in United States dollars (“USD") and Renminbi
("RMB"), respectively as at 31 December 2022, the currency
other than the functional currency of the respective group
entities. Trade receivables of approximately HK$3,548,000
were denominated in Euro ("EURO") as at 31 December 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

21.

TE T THE+_B=+—HIEEE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$30,690,679 (2021: HK$32,349,702) which
are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due
balances, HK$2,567,051 (2021: HK$1,764,782) has been
past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default.
With reference to the historical records, past experience and
also available reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information to those customers, the directors of the Company
do not consider these receivables as credit-impaired as these
customers have a good business relationship with the Group
and recurring overdue records of these customers with
satisfactory settlement history.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables and deposits for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 are set out in note 39.

21.

B REMEWTHRIETE
HHRIBEBUKRTE (B)
RZE__F#+-A=+—H>
AEBESEBANELEGEIE
RREHHERRIREEE
30,690,6798BT (T2 —%F:
32,349,70287T) 2B AN o 1£ 4
HA#EERH > 2,567,0518 7T (&
——1F 11,764,782% ) B EHA
Q0HZ MU £ BN IR AEBL
K2EZEEZPNELILR B
ALBUNESNEERE K
BRIEEER RRBEFT A
RAEZERBNABEHIREER
B RRAZSEFFREKRERHE
FRTEHKRG BZETRAN

KEBAA R HIEN GO iR IE
A8 o

Jiny

BHE_ N —
+-_B=+—HILEFEENESG X
HMEWRRIB U ET & B R E T
fhEE B HAMIEE390
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

22.

TR THF+A=+—HLEEE

LOANS RECEIVABLE

2022 2021
—E-C BT —F
HKS$ HK$
BT BIT
Fixed-rate loans receivable EIEEBER 50,283,187 9,138,283
Less: allowance for credit losses B EERREE (930,302) (452)
49,352,885 9,137,831
analysed for reporting purposes as: MMERERDITA -
Current mEN 33,414,687 9,137,831
Non-current e 15,938,198 -
49,352,885 9,137,831

The loans receivable has contractual maturity within one to
six years (2021: within one to two years) as at 31 December
2022. The average interest rate for the fixed-rate loans
receivable was ranging from 13% to 37% (2021: 13% to
37%) per annum. Loan receivable with maturity terms over
one year are classified as non-current assets.

There is no loans receivable which was past due as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.

Gross carrying amount of loans receivable amounting to
HK$31,601,091 (2021: HK$9,115,671) as at 31 December
2022 is secured by properties located in Hong Kong. The
fair values of these properties are higher than the carrying
amounts of the respective loans receivable. The Group is not
permitted to sell or re-pledge the properties in the absence of
default by the borrower. There has not been any significant
changes in the quality of the collateral held for the loans
receivable. The Group has not recognised a loss allowance for
the loans receivable as a result of these collaterals.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

22.

TR THF+A=+—HLEEE

LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Gross carrying amount of loan receivables amounting to
HK$15,600,000 (2021: nil) as at 31 December 2022, which is
secured by the entire issued share capital and guaranteed by
the shareholder of the borrower. The Group has recognised net
impairment allowance of HK$780,000 (2021: nil) during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

Gross carrying amount of loans receivable amounting to
HK$3,082,096 (2021: HK$22,612) is unsecured as at 31
December 2022. The Group has recognised net impairment
allowance of HK$149,850 (2021: net reversal of impairment
allowance of HK$183,063) on the remaining loans receivable
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Net impairment loss allowance of HK$929,850 (2021: net
reversal of impairment loss allowance of HK$183,063) have
been recognised in respect of the loans receivable during
the years ended 31 December 2022. Details of impairment
assessment of loans receivable for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021 are set out in note 39.

22,

RS (&)
RZEZZHE+ZR=+—H"
,\uﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ,w 600,000 7T (—
T —F ) WEKRERUG
TABRKREN2IEBTRE
T’HEE#IT’E%FET% BHE_Z”-—
FE+-A=+—HLEEE K&
B B 780,000 T (T B - —
) PREREFE

RZE__F#+-HA=+—H>
4BERH (B 733,082,096 (&
——F 12261287 WEIKRER
AERP - HE_ZT__F+_
ﬁ‘—f— HEFE &AXEBEERM
BRTIEW B R ERE T EE
149850/%75(_2_ F I EE
e[ 3%8183,0638 7T) ©
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EFFEE  EEREREIRRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

23.

TE T THE+_B=+—HIEEE

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/SHORT-
TERM BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Pledged bank deposits amounting to HK$60,000,000 (2021:
nil) carry variable interest rates with a range from 0.1% to
4.39% (2021: nil) and represent deposits pledged to banks
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group as disclosed
in note 29. Out of these deposits, fixed-rate deposits and
variable-rate deposits amounting to HK$59,414,321 and
HK$575,679 respectively. Such deposits have been pledged to
secure short-term bank borrowings and are therefore classified
as current assets.

Short-term bank deposits include bank deposits with original
maturity more than three months. Cash and cash equivalents
include demand deposits and short term deposits for the
purpose of meeting the Group’s short term cash commitments.

As at 31 December 2022, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and short-term bank deposits of approximately
HK$91,592,000 (2021: HK$7,727,000), HK$2,170,000 (2021:
HK$3,885,000), and HK$2,625,000 (2021: HK$111,000) were
denominated in USD, HK$ and RMB respectively, the currencies
other than the functional currency of the respective group
entities.

Furthermore, included in the short-term bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents are amounts denominated in RMB
of approximately HK$22,615,645 (2021: HK$54,822,000),
which are not freely convertible into other currencies.

The bank balances and short-term bank deposits carry interest
rates with a range from 0.1% to 4.87% (2021: 0.1% to
1.6%) per annum.

Details of impairment assessment of short-term bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021 are set out in note 39.
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Ra M B ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

24.

B HF+"HB=1+—HLEE
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 24.
ACCRUALS

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

8B % R H MR RRIE U R
i e

T ARREHFRESEAN
#5285 RIE R E 5
o

2022 2021
B B —F
HK$ HK$
BT AT
0-30 days 0&30H 41,536,006 62,337,708
31-60 days 31260H 10,502,193 12,212,615
61-90 days 61%290H 2,774,078 5,806,321
Over 90 days B3E90H 1,294,405 2,334,873
56,106,682 82,691,517
Accrued expenses and other payables P&tz K EAth

EIRIA 31,958,861 31,364,139

Construction costs payables for FEEERTYEZ
properties under development for sale  FE{T R ZEEBL A& 50,351,981 39,437,765
138,417,524 153,493,421

The credit period ranges from 90 days to 120 days. The Group
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that
all payables are within the credit timeframe.

Trade and other payables of approximately HK$4,894,000
(2021: HK$7,823,000) were denominated in RMB as at 31
December 2022, the currencies other than the functional
currency of the respective group entities.

FEEBRNFIOHEI120H &
ECfEMBREREERR XU
FE R P8 FE A RRORIZAAS Y o

KR_E__F#+_-_B=+—H>
A B#94,894,0005 T (ZE - —
& 17,823,000 7m) 2BHMEH
HENRBUARKESE B
EEEENEEERBINEE

\
/

B
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in e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

25. LEASE LIABILITIES 25. HHE&E
2022 2021
-8 B —F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Lease liabilities payable: ERNEEaE:
Within one year R—FN 12,996,178 13,922,336
Within a period of more than one year #818—F{B {818
but not more than two years MBI A P 12,991,005 6,219,361
Within a period of more than two 818 M BB
years but not more than five years HEMEARIM 10,842,510 9,098,380
Within a period of more than five 818 A FRVHARI P
years 30,868,418 31,798,171
67,698,111 61,038,248
Less: Amount due for settlement with  J& : I RENEEIE 5!
12 months shown under current A28 8 P E
liabilities HAEE FUA (12,996,178) (13,922,336)

Amount due for settlement after 12 RIEmBIBEIE NIR

months shown under non-current M12E B &2/ HiEE
liabilities FRIE 54,701,933 47,115,912
Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies other VIR EEE S e IhEE & Z 4
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are NEKAENHEEEBEHNT
set out below: X :
2022 2021
-s=Z =T —fF
HKS$ HK$
AT BT
Denominated in HK$ against RMB UAB TR AREEE 67,698,111 35,578,716
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to THE & EHMA NI %Tﬁ
lease liabilities range from 2.2% to 5.38% (2021: from 2.2% AHENF22%FE5.38% (ZF
to 5.38%). ——HF 122%%E5.38%) °
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in e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26. 598 RE
2022 2021
= =Sl s —F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Contract liabilities from Trading Business 2K B & 5 £ & 4
81& 758,859 227,883
Contract liabilities from Music and KE TR IR LTS
Entertainment Business SO I=RE 1,538,219 344,435
Contract liabilities from Manufacturing 2K B 815 K7 35 & £ 7%
and Sales Business NENaE 6,501,189 8,004,651
8,798,267 8,576,969

As at 1 January 2021, the carrying amount of contract
liabilities was HK$10,464,703.

Contract liabilities are classified as current liabilities because
the Group expects to settle them within 12 months after the
end of the reporting period.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

When the Group receives a deposit before the printing
products delivery, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the
start of a contract, until the revenue recognised on the specific
contract exceeds the amount of the deposit. The Group
receives a 10% to 30% deposit on acceptance of orders for
trading of printing products from certain customers.

When the Group receives a deposit before the completion of
concert and show, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the
start of a contract, until the revenue recognised on the specific
contract exceeds the amount of the deposit. The Group
receives a 10% to 30% deposit on from certain customers
when the contract for concert and show signed.

‘l\_—v—_ﬁi E E’I:ln\l],%\
BEHERE{E 510,464,703 71

= ,\’Jié\ﬁﬁj\*ﬁﬁméﬂiéf ' JREA
PAEEBEEARBSHRE T
BRREMENER-

HEMRGNARTHEELERE
BY— AR ST RFRE0 T

EAREEFENR E S 32T A U E]
e AR ENRBRESE
EHNEE BEEMEETANRR
Nk BRTeEE - AERN
BETEALAWIEIREREZ:]
BEIWEI0%E30%MET& o

EARERFUEIEB MR BT
WEIFTx Bt R S ARG 6
ELfeat BEEMETEESY
RN GBE IS iE AE
B EREEMRENSNREE
BFEETERWEN0%E30%M
o
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im e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 26. aX&1%E @)
When the Group receives a deposit before the manufacturing EAREFKRGEHRE RBEBRI
of printing product commences, this will give rise to contract WHzTE Bl b S4B
liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue recognised EXeNaE BEEMIEEEHR
on the relevant contract exceeds the amount of the deposit. BN EBA: TS o KRE
The Group receives a 10% to 50% deposit on acceptance of BErrEaEFEapWa8iEsTER
manufacturing orders from certain customers. WEN10% E50% 5] & ©
The following table shows how much of the revenue TRITHEAEERIANK RS
recognised in the current year relates to carried-forward B o NEESNEE

contract liabilities.

HK$
BT
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_E-__#+”-A=+—HULE=EE
Revenue recognised that was included in SENFEY S BB RRY
the contract liabilities balance at the BRI
beginning of the year 8,576,969
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE_E_—F+-A=+—HILEE
Revenue recognised that was included in SEANFYENBEGR
the contract liabilities balance at the BB
beginning of the year 10,464,703
27. AMOUNT DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING 27. EBH—RMBAT—%IE
SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY ERG RS R A IE
The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on ZEZIEAEIRWM A NER
demand. EREIZ o
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iR e MBHRRM

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

28.

TR THF+A=+—HLEEE

AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY 28.

BN —XAEATKIEA

2022 2021
s F s —%F
HK$ HK$
AT BT
Carrying amount that is repayable: fEEREREE
— within one year ——FRN - 61,800
— over one year but less than —BE—FEE LR mE
two years - 53,118
— over two years but less than —BEmEEL R AEF
five years - 125,827
- 240,745
Less: Amount due for settlement within 38 : —E PN ZI HA{EE RN IE
one year (shown under current BrEhafE T
liabilities) HI7R) - (61,800)
Amount due for settlement after —FRIBEERER
one year - 178,945

The amount is unsecured and fixed-interest bearing at a
range from 18% to 20% per annum (2021: 18% to 20% per
annum). The related company is controlled by a family member
of Mr. Suek Ka Lun, Ernie, a director of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the amount due to
a related company has been fully settled by the Group.

ZEFEABIRFE REEEF
KBNT18%FE20% (B —4
fﬁ%lJ?MS%izo%);r% Z R E

NEHARNBEFEEBILEZ
2 — KGR EES -

HE_T-_F+-A=+—8
L A — R A SRR
EmALEEUEE
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iR e MBHRRM

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

29.

TR THF+A=+—HLEEE

BANK BORROWINGS

29. IRITEE

2022 2021
—FE=F —E_—%F
HK$ HK$
AT BT
Secured bank borrowings BIRIFIRITEE 111,214,278 62,609,035
The carrying amount of bank FEEEIRTTEEZE
borrowings are repayable*: E{E*:
— Within one year ——FKN 54,816,125 62,609,035
— Within a period of more than —BE—FETBEW
one year but not exceeding FREAREMN
two years 6,282,700 -
— Within a period of more than —BEmMEEREER
two years but not exceeding FR A
five years 38,821,637 -
— Over five years —EBBAF 11,293,816 -
111,214,278 62,609,035
Less: Amounts due within one year R —ERNHEERE
or contains a repayment on EREZRBER
demand clause shown under (BRBAaEET
current liabilities PIR) 2 %58 (72,730,973) (62,609,035)
Amounts shown under non-current RIEABEEE TR
liabilities &K 38,483,305 -
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set * B ERR B B i & T E T BE
out in the loan agreements. EHHET-

As at 31 December 2022, the bank borrowings of
HK$68,203,525 (2021: HK$62,609,035) are secured and
carry interest at HIBOR plus 1.25% to 2.25% (2021: 1.25%
to 2.5%) per annum. Such bank borrowings contain a
repayment on demand clause. As at 31 December 2022, the
secured bank borrowings are secured by the pledged assets as
disclosed in note 14 and 15 as well as pledged bank deposits
of HK$60,000,000 (2021: nil) as disclosed in note 23.
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iR BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

29.

30.

TE T THE+_B=+—HIEEE

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, bank borrowing of HK$43,010,753
(2021: nil) carry interest at 5.98% per annum (2021: nil)
are secured by the properties under development for sale
of HK$326,097,115 (2021: nil) as disclosed in note 20 and
guaranteed by Mr. Suek Ka Lun, Ernie, who is a director of the
Company. Out of these bank borrowings, the bank borrowings
of HK$38,483,305 are repayable one year after the end of the
reporting period and classified as non-current liabilities.

DEFERRED TAX

For the purpose of presentation of the consolidated financial
statements, certain deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis for
reporting propose:

29.

30.

IR1TEE (@)

KNS __F#+-"B=+—H>
43,010,7538B 7 (ZE - —%F :
) IREFE598% (ZEZ
£ E)stEZIRITEERNEE
2048 326,097,115 (=
T—F B FELEROYES
HWIFETHEAANGESESE BT
FETER ZFRTEES
38,483,305 TR T E AN
SHEREN—FREE 1IH
BAERHERB

MBREEHMBRERMS & T
RIEIR IR E B SR IEIR TH & (4K
BiHHE - UTH/HREAEND
#r

2022 2021
—EF B
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Deferred tax assets RILRIBEE 13,971,096 10,764,811
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEE (7,245,075) (9,866,407)
6,726,021 898,404
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im e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

30. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 30. EIEFRIE (5B)
The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets MUWFRARKREENBEEERESS
recognised and movements thereon during the current year ZETEIFERIE (BE) BEEUN
and prior years: HigrE .
ECL on
financial
Accelerated assets and
tax Tax contract
depreciation losses assets Others Total
STHEER
BNEEZ
MERBITE REEE RUEEHE Hith st
HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
BT AT AT AT AT
(Note)
(fz)
At 1 January 2021 RZE-_—F—F—H (5,702,157) 161,096 918,434 (4,088,516) (8,711,143)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss for the year A (0B) AFHiE 506,839 10,498,904 (675,128) (546,698) 9,783,917
Exchange adjustments ERAE (169,868) - - (4,502) (174,370)
At 31 December 2021 RZE_—-F+"_A=+-H (5,365,186) 10,660,000 243,306 (4,639,716) 898,404
Credit to profit or loss for the year BAKEER 63,319 3,093,473 91,946 785,302 4,034,040
Disposal through disposal of a subsidiary BBLE-BHELAFZ
(note 32) HE Wat32) 1,500,741 - - - 1,500,741
Exchange adjustments EREE 108,256 - - 184,580 292,836
At 31 December 2022 RIZ2ZZF+ZB=+—H (3,692,870) 13,753,473 335,252 (3,669,834) 6,726,021
Note: As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the deferred tax liabilities Mz MZBE__FEhN_FE_—F+_
“others” are arising from the revaluation of investment BE=+—H EIERBEEETEHA)
properties upon change of use of certain premises from B ETYENBEEHEREA
owner-occupation to leasing out for rental income and the HAMUBRNEERAREREY
temporary difference arising from the revenue recognised over HETEHEELS MEEEZE
time from manufacturing and sales of printing products for BIRIEE BT BRREE E|J**15-§-)@
PRC subsidiaries under HKFRS 15. MEEE I REPHN B LD
EN I 2 fb Y55 K i & B W &= Eﬁfx‘i
Ho
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

30.

TR THF+A=+—HLEEE

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has estimated unused
tax losses of approximately HK$509,601,000 (2021:
HK$433,905,000) available to offset against future profits.
As at 31 December 2022, a deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the tax losses of approximately
HK$83,354,000 (2021: HK$64,606,000). No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses
of HK$426,247,000 (2021: HK$431,151,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unused
tax losses of HK$9,620,000 (2021: HK$8,598,000) that can be
carried forward for five years from the year in which the losses
arose. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred tax has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of temporary differences attributable to retained
profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately
HK$55,174,000 (2021: HK$65,364,000) as the Group is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

30.

Lﬁrﬁ (n‘E)

S E__F#+"_HB=+—
H > 2<% B of 4 1§ 88 & 2K i@ F
ZHEARBERBBERENS
509,601,000 T (Z&E - —F:
433,905,000 7T) - KT -
FE+-_B=+—H ' xEBEEHM
7 #83,354,0008 75 (& —
F 64,606,000/ 7T) 2 RFEEE
MRIELERIBEE E M UTE
B R AR F RS 0 B R H iR
M5 E518426,247,0008 T (Z&
——4F : 431,151,000 7T) Eﬁau
BILARIBEE st AXRARIE
538229,620,0008 T (& - —
£ 18,598,000 7T) A58
EEEF‘L\DLEE HME 18
o] R AR 4L &

R P E SR ZE DEM
BABH_ZZ/)\FE—H—HiE
BEEV 2R A Bk 2 IR B BB MmTE
3 o FHS A 52 B AT 2 ) o [ B
BRABRE BRI EEZ BREE
B EOER BEBEZELAK

BIBERN O] BAS AR 5 (0] » # 0  5X
%%éﬂﬁ“%&%%mff #955,174,000
BT (CEZ— 1 65,364,0008
70) 2 G B 7= BA 1F W AR HE AR 1A
o
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in e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. 7
Number of shares HKS$
Shares of HK$0.01 each F520.018 THIRRR v =] BT
Authorised: ERE -
At 1 January 2021, R _E - —F—8
31 December 2021 and 2022 -\ IET—FK
—E"F+"A
=+—H 50,000,000,000 500,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETREE
At 1 January 2021 and N2 —F—HF—H
31 December 2021 kRZZEZ—F+"RH
=+—H 253,639,456 2,536,395
Shares repurchased (note) Bl m (Wat) (280,000) (2,800)
At 31 December 2022 TS = =
=+—H 253,359,456 2,533,595
Note: On 14 October 2022 and 17 October 2022, the Company W, RZEZ__F+A+HARZE

—ZE+BAt+ER - ARTHH
LR BER0.357548 75 40.3638
7oHE21100,0000% A% 17 £2180,000
FE R RIB4REEA 100,550
T BRRMZZEBEELNS
2,800 T o UBARZEL IR E B
MRZERY 2 EREXI97,7505B B 5 A
B& 19 E5 18 o

32. HE—RMWEAT
W _E - —F+B_-_+—HF

has repurchased 100,000 shares and 180,000 shares
at consideration of HK$0.3575 and HK$0.36 per share
respectively with aggregate consideration of HK$100,550.
The aggregate par value of the respective shares was
approximately HK$2,800. The difference of approximately
HK$97,750 between the aggregate consideration and the
aggregate par value of the shares have been debited to share
premium.

32. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 21 October 2021, Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited
(“Chung Tai Printing”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the AENREBBRLQE (T KED
Company, entered into a provisional sale and purchase Bl KRB Z2ERB AR &
agreement with an independent third party pursuant to which BUYB =] UREEEHZ
Chung Tai Printing conditionally agreed to sell the entire issued Bt ARERBBEREBERE
share capital of Profit Link, which owned the properties located PR (EEEUNRGDENYE B

in Fanling, at an initial purchase price of HK$231,000,000 (the
“Disposal”). On 7 January 2022, the Disposal was approved by
the shareholders in the special general meeting. On 28 January
2022, the Disposal was completed upon both parties have
satisfied all conditions under the provisional sale and purchase
agreement and Chung Tai Printing ceased to have control
over Profit Link since then. The net consideration received was
HK$226,710,393 after deducting those legal and professional
fee directly attributable to the Disposal with an amount of
HK$4,289,607.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

32. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued) 32. HE—RHMEBAE (1)
HKS
BT
Net assets disposed of: BEHEEESFE:

Property, plant and equipment NN L 13,669,265
Investment properties KREYE 137,357,335
Other receivables Hthpgusia 500,013
Cash and cash equivalents RENIREEE 396,787
Accruals fEStRIE (153,882)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEEE (1,500,741)
150,268,777

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—XKWBAB 2 U :
Consideration E 226,710,393
Net assets disposed of BHEEESFE (150,268,777)
76,441,616

Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELEZRERNFEE .
Consideration RE 226,710,393
Less: bank balances disposed of B BEHEIRTTAAR (396,787)
226,313,606

During the period from 1 January 2022 to 28 January 2022,
Profit Link did not contribute any profit or loss or incur any

operating cash flows to the Group.

i -

S

EERAEERERE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

33.

34,

TE T THE+_B=+—HIEEE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 13 February 2014, a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) was approved by shareholders of the
Company and adopted by the Company. The Share Option
Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing on the date on which the Share Option Scheme is
adopted.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to eligible participants as incentives
or rewards for their contribution to the Group and/or to enable
the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and
attract human resources that are valuable to the Group and
any invested entity.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company
may grant options to eligible employees, including directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares of the
Company. Additionally, the Company may, from time to time,
grant share options to outside third parties for settlement in
respect of goods or services provided to the Company. Details
of the share option scheme are disclosed in the directors’
report of this annual report.

No share options have been granted since the adoption of the
Share Option Scheme.

OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENTS
The Group as lessor

All of the Group's properties held for rental purposes have
committed tenants for the next one to three years. At the end
of the reporting period, the Group has contracted with tenants
for the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as
follows:
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

34.

35.

TR T4+ RA=1t—HIEFE
OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENTS 34, REHEZHE ()
(Continued)
The Group as lessor (Continued) EBEEAERBAN (B)
Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as AIET 2 REGIREWHE BRI
follows: wmr
2022 2021
k=~ - = s
HK$ HK$
AT AT
Within one year —FR 1,836,800 3,148,800
In the second year FHE - 1,836,800
1,836,800 4,985,600
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. BAKIE
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Capital expenditure contracted for but  FtIA TR IEBEEILIER
not provided in the consolidated EEEMBRERA
financial statements in respect of: FHREB 2 EAMY
— acquisition of property, plant and —EBEME . BENX
equipment Bai] 960,583 5,907,652
— construction cost for properties —FERERYES
under development for sale B A 176,276,366 263,157,753
177,236,949 269,065,405
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

36.

TE T THE+_B=+—HIEEE

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme
which is registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (the ORSO Scheme) and the MPF Scheme
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustees. Employees who were members of the
ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF Scheme
were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or
switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees
joining the Group on or after 1 December 2000 are required to
join the MPF Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes
5% of relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which
contribution is matched by the employee.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions
from both employees and the Group at a rate of 5% of the
employee’s basic salary, depending on the length of service
with the Group.

The employees of the Group'’s subsidiaries in PRC are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by
the local municipal government of Shenzhen. The subsidiary
is required to contribute 5% of payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, there were no significant
forfeited contributions which arose upon employees leaving
the schemes before they are fully vested in the contributions
and which are available to reduce the contributions payable by
the Group in the future.

The total expenses recognised in profit or loss of
HK$12,857,395 (2021: HK$11,785,706) represent
contributions payable to these plans by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the plans.
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

Save as disclosed elsewhere of the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has entered into
significant transactions between related parties and

37.

FAEALRS

(a) BREEUBRREMMS

FTiREEIN  AEEBH
ERBEENLERNE R

subsidiaries of the Company as follows: BET NI EBEKRZS .
2022 2021
—EF B
HKS$ HK$
AT BT
Finance costs (Note) BB A (H5E) 19,737 54,671
Note: The transactions were carried out with a related Mzt . ZERXSZTHEREERL

company which is controlled by a family member of
Mr. Suek Ka Lun, Ernie as disclosed in note 28.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of

7 —BREMREEH
—REEQNEET (RE
FLHMEE28) ©

(b) FEBEEASZIRIM
UTHEEREMEEE

key management during the year was as follows: EBABRFERZHB
2022 2021
—E-= —mo—
HK$ HK$
AT BT
Short-term benefits FEHAREA 6,887,500 7,184,984
Post-employment benefits BB EA 90,000 85,250
6,977,500 7,270,234
The remuneration of directors and key executives is EERTETHRABZH
determined by the remuneration committee having i 75 BB 3 BN &= B & % 3 R
regard to the performance of individuals and market ALTZRBNHIGEBAE
trends. F o
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. EfXRAMERE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the KREBESEEEARAUBEENER
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while ETEEREHELSE  BRE
maximising the return to owners through the optimisation of BHEFREFNEE R T
the debt and equity balance. =EREEEARRK-
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which NREEFB ZEARAEEREIE (8
includes amount due to a related company and bank FEMsE28 290 R EE 2 /s —
borrowings as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 disclosed in BT TEN_ET—F+"H
notes 28 and 29, respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents —+t—HZEN—RBEATXR
and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising BELIETEE HERReENIES
share capital and reserves. ZEH MAEARBHEB AELER
(B FER A Kt ) #EAK
The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on KrEB EEBEBEEMTE AN
a continuous basis taking into account the cost of capital and B EREEEEARANANLEE
the risk associated with the capital. The Group will balance its N MG e REEKE B
overall capital structure through new share issues, repurchase TFE-EBLOROMETHED
of shares and the issue of new debt or the redemption of the EBoIReaEIE L EHEERE S AL
existing debt. 1o
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior RNEEEEFRRE FFEHIS
year. Riho
39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 39. T H
Categories of financial instruments ERITAZZEER
2022 2021
—EBCCHE TEC 5
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets EREE
Equity instruments at FVTOCI EEEMPEBNIZEAT
BYERZKBRATER 22,285,289 22,550,619
Financial assets at FVTPL FBEmIE AT EIIER
ZEREE 17,375,128 24,716,500
Financial assets at amortised cost TR E AL AT 2
ZERMEE 354,824,287 295,873,183
Financial liabilities ERaE
Amortised cost HH R A 262,220,452 230,229,290
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39.

TE T THE+_B=+—HIEEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include equity
instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, trade and
other receivables and deposits, loans receivable, pledged bank
deposits, short-term bank deposits, pledged bank deposit, cash
and cash equivalents, trade and other payables and accruals,
amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary,
amount due to a related company, bank borrowings and lease
liabilities. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (interest rate risk, currency risk
and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The directors
of the Company manage and monitor these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk
() Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk. In addition, certain trade
receivables, bank balances, short-term bank deposits,
trade payables and lease liabilities of the Group are
denominated in RMB, USD, HK$ and EURO, the
currencies other than the functional currency of the
respective group entities as disclosed in notes 21, 23,
24 and 25 respectively. Approximately 24% (2021:
22%) of the Group’s total revenue are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of
the group entity making the sale, whilst almost 11%
(2021: 12%) of costs are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the group entity’s
functional currency.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, directors of the Company
monitor foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

39.

ERMIA @)
F 5 I R B AR R B

FEEZTESMTIAGESS
Hin2EBAZ R FEIRZER
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WMETER R NFEEZE
8 5 N H M A RIB LU FE 5 R
BEN—HKNBRE—RIFE
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N HMERER ~EE RN
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BN
DISNEEETEER 5
< 25 B 78 A % I 1
Botbsh KEBEETE
SEWFIEIRIT4E R 18
HIRTTER B S EAR
BREAEEEUARKE
E B MkEIT (BBEE
FEEEEIEE) of
B 9 RIFM5E21-23-24
K251 8 o KEBEA24%
T2 22%) 24
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ST E o
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. £ T H ()
Financial risk management objectives and policies HEEEEIEEIERBE (8)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) 5 R bE (8)
() Currency risk (Continued) ()  EEE &
The Group’s intra-group balances do not form part of NEBEBRBEERTEN
the net investment in foreign operations. The carrying BIEHR B EN—I
amounts of the foreign currency denominated intra- DeBNRETHERSHEX
group balances which have been eliminated in the AT ANREAINEEN
consolidated financial statements of certain subsidiaries EMHETHRB AT L
of which the functional currency is HK$ and RMB at the &R R G A LS
end of the reporting period are as follows: A ENEBRBSHFNIR
HEWT
2022 2021
—E_— TR
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Net amounts due from FERABIRARERET
companies denominated in EHERFERIE
RMB against HK$ 16,124,959 4,222,178
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency REBLUAINESTE ZEIE
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities BEEMEMBENRRSH
at the end of the reporting period are approximately as KZBANBREmESINUWT
follows:
Lease liabilities Monetary assets Monetary liabilities
HEaRE AREE akaR
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
k- et B F | 2% “B-F | 282 —T--F
HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT AT BT BT BT

USD against HK$ ~ ER AT = - 99,619,000 19,223,000 - =
HK$ against RMB BT R AR 67,698,000 35,579,000 2,170,000 3,885,000 - =
RMB against HK$  ARHERET = = 3,354,000 2,009,000 4,894,000 7,823,000
EURO against HK$  BUT R AT = = 75,000 3,623,000 = =
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HE_TTF+"HA=+—HIFE
39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. £FTH (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies MEREEEBEREE (B
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) 5 R g ()
(i) Currency risk (Continued) )  EBEEE &
Sensitivity analysis ﬁﬂlﬁﬁfgﬁj\j‘ﬁ
Since the exchange rate of HK$ is pegged with USD, 5B oo BB X 8 5 oo #
the Group does not expect any significant movements o REBEEHET B
in the USD/HK$ exchange rates. T EEAGHRAEME
K& o
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a TRF T —THMATE
10% (2021: 10%) increase and decrease in functional ELEHIE ‘}R—F > 7N £E
currency of respective group entity against relevant B AR EBRESEE 2 INEE
foreign currencies (other than USD) and all other SO GREINE CREEE
variables were held constant. 10% (2021: 10%) is 7o) AENEEI0% (ZF
the sensitivity rate used and represents management’s ——F110%) ZHREE-°
assessment of the reasonably possible change in Fﬁ J= ;&Z RELEEXA10%
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes “ET—F:110%) * ]}
only outstanding foreign currency denominated ”"ﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@%ﬂ BE
monetary items, and adjusts their translation at the HoEEB8H SR ED
end of the reporting period for a 10% (2021: 10%) MR EFEUINESEZ R
change in foreign currency rates. A positive number Bz EHIg E s gﬁ,?tlﬁz
below indicates an increase in post-tax loss for the FIR10% (=B - — :
year where functional currency of respective group 10%) BFFAERENR
entity strengthen 10% (2021: 10%) against foreign LHRZIBESEE - T X
currencies. For a 10% (2021: 10%) weakening of FHEMEENEERESE
functional currency of respective group entity against ZIHWEEE RN (5
foreign currencies, there would be an equal and 10% (ZE-_—F :110%)
opposite impact on the result for the year. ZERT  AERRES
BHE PTG M O'f\ﬂ/TEI/DJJ%
%ﬁ%zlﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ% DY N3
ZEI0% (ZE_—%F
10%) > AV AR F X EHBE
FEI#BEEER T E-
Impact of Impact of Impact of
HK$ EURO RMB
BRLTZEE BaziE AREBZRZE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
2022 g
(Decrease) increase in loss  EEEE GEL) 1
for the year (5,472,000) 6,300 (129,000)
2021 —ET—F
(Decrease) increase in loss FERE (R 18m
for the year (2,646,000) 303,000 (485,000)
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39.

=

TR CHARA=THILEEFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Neway Group Holdings Limited RE2&@EZERRAR/AS | Annual Report 2022 F iR

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
primarily relates to variable-rate pledged bank deposits,
variable-rate short-term bank deposits, bank balances
and bank borrowings as at 31 December 2022 and
2021. The Group is also exposed to fair value interest
rate risk relates primarily to the fixed-rate loans
receivable, fixed-rate pledged bank deposits, amount
due to a related company, interest-free amount due
to a non-controlling shareholder of the subsidiary and
lease liabilities as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. The
Group has not used any derivative instruments in order
to mitigate its exposure associated with fluctuations
relating to interest cash flows. However, the directors
of the Company monitor interest rate exposure and
will consider other necessary actions when significant
interest rate exposure is anticipated.

A fundamental reform of major interest rate
benchmarks is being undertaken globally, including the
replacement of some interbank offered rates (“IBORs")
with alternative nearly risk-free rates. Details of the
impacts on the Group’s risk management strategy
arising from the interest rate benchmark reform and
the progress towards implementation of alternative
benchmark interest rates are set out under “interest
rate benchmark reform” in this note.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

39.

TR (88)
MIERAREEBRIZERER (8)

H'J'fvziﬂ

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued) (1)
Total interest revenue/income from financial assets that NEE_E - _FNT
are measured at amortised cost during the years ended —_—F#+-H=+—H JJ:
31 December 2022 and 2021 is as follows: FERBIZE AT
EZEMEEZHNEBE WG
SIMAMBEZEE -
2022 2021
—E_C —E—F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interest revenue A E W=
Financial assets at REER AT EZ
amortised cost THEE 3,784,531 1,920,242
Other income HAm A
Financial assets at REIER AT EY
amortised cost THEE 1,097,425 834,716
Total interest income M B U NARER 4,881,956 2,754,958

Interest expense on financial liabilities not measured at
FVTPL during the years ended 31 December 2022 and

REBEE_E-_ N _ZT-—4%F
+—BA= + HIEFEE »WwIESE

2021 is as follows: BEDEANFTEFE2EMEE
AMERY :
2022 2021
s T
HK$ HK$
AT BT
Financial liabilities at amortised 128 Azt 222
cost THEE 1,548,381 1,456,190
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39.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The management of the Group considers that the
Group's exposure to future cash flow risk on variable-
rate bank balances and pledged bank deposits as
a result of the change of market interest rate is
insignificant and thus variable-rate bank balances
and pledged bank deposits are not included in the
sensitivity analysis.

The impact on the Group's cash flow is due in part
to its sensitivity to interest rate which has been
determined based on the exposure to the variable-
rate short-term bank deposits and bank borrowings.
The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
asset outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis
points increase or decrease is used which represents
management’s assessment of the reasonable possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2021: 50
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year
would increase/decrease by approximately HK$399,000
(2021: HK$248,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group's exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate
short-term bank deposits and bank borrowings.
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39.
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TR THF+A=+—HLEEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(iir)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk in respect of listed
equity investments in Hong Kong and unlisted equity
investments in Hong Kong and PRC as at 31 December
2022 and 2021.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses on listed equity investments in
Hong Kong and unlisted equity investments in Hong
Kong and PRC during the year have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the end
of the reporting period. For sensitivity analysis purpose,
the sensitivity rate considers at 10% in the current
year. If the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 10% higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for
the year would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$3,312,000 (2021: HK$3,947,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of held-for-trading investments.

EWMIA (&

MIERAREEBRIZERER (8)

5z ()

(i)

H &% a5z

KBS CERTE—
F+-A=+—B &%
BARE BN EHRER
BUREBRFENFEL
HR AR E RS ES
B o

BRUE DT

FREBEN LEHREAKE
UREANFENIELS
AR E ZBRE DTS
BIERRESHR ZRAE
MEMET BKE D

Mms 8RELEERRA
FEMEEABI10%  HZIB
BATEZEBREFA T
B10% > MPr B Hthel &
RERE > AIREBEKE
ZEHREBEESRFEER
ERELNTFEEH M
Y/ HEAN#93,312,00058 7T
—Z T —1% 3,947,000
HBIT) ©
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables and deposits, contract assets, loans
receivable, pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits
and bank balances as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is the carrying amounts of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets, except that the credit risks
associated with loans receivable is mitigated because they are
secured over properties located in Hong Kong.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the
Company have delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits and credit approvals. Before accepting any
new customer, the Group uses an internal credit rating system
to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Except for (i) debtors who are credit-
impaired; and (ii) customers with outstanding significant
balances exceeding HK$2,500,000 and relevant contract
assets; which are assessed for impairment individually, the
remaining trade receivables and contract assets are grouped
into four internal credit rating buckets (namely: low risk,
medium risk, high risk and doubtful) based on shared credit
risk characteristics by reference to repayment histories for
recurring customers and current past due exposure for the
new customers. The contract assets have substantially the
same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same
type of contracts. Limits and scoring attributed to customers
are reviewed twice a year. Other monitoring procedures are
in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts.

Net reversal of impairment loss allowance of HK$85,753
(2021: HK$2,291,599) and HK$269,264 (2021: HK$714,591)
have been recognised in respect of trade receivables and
contract assets, respectively, during the year ended 31
December 2022.

39.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Loans receivable

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the
Company have delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, interest rate offered to customers and
collaterals received. Monitoring procedures are in place to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
The Group has concentration of credit risk as 61% (2021:
80%) of the total loans receivable was due from four (2021:
three) independent third parties of total of approximately
HK$30,843,000 (2021: HK$7,320,000). Loans receivable are
assessed individually.

The directors of the Company estimate the estimated loss rates
of loans receivable based on historical credit loss experience of
the debtors as well as the fair value of the collateral pledged
by the customers to the loans receivable. For those loans
receivable secured by properties located in Hong Kong with
aggregate amount of HK$31,601,091 (2021: HK$9,115,671),
the directors of the Company considered the loss given default
is low in view of the fair value of the collaterals are higher
than the carrying amounts of the respective loans receivable.
The Group has not recognised a loss allowance for the loans
receivable as a result of these collaterals.

Gross carrying amount of loans receivable amounting to
HK$15,600,000 (2021: nil) as at 31 December 2022, which is
secured by the entire issued share capital and guaranteed by
the shareholder of the borrower. The Group has recognised net
impairment allowance of HK$780,000 (2021: nil) during the
year ended 31 December 2022.
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M HwRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

39.

TR THF+A=+—HLEEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Loans receivable (Continued)

Gross carrying amount of loans receivable amounting to
HK$3,082,096 (2021: HK$22,612) is unsecured as at 31
December 2022. The Group has recognised net impairment
allowance of HK$149,850 (2021: net reversal of impairment
allowance of HK$183,063) on the remaining unsecured loans
receivable during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Net impairment loss allowance of HK$929,850 (2021: net
reversal of impairment loss allowance of HK$183,063) has
been recognised in respect of these loans receivable during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of the
Company make individual assessment on other receivables
and deposits based on historical settlement records, past
experience, and also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
The directors of the Company believe that there is no material
credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding balance of other
receivables and deposits. The Group assessed the ECL for
other receivables and deposits were immaterial. Thus no loss
allowance was recognised.

Pledged bank deposits/short-term bank deposits/cash
and cash equivalents

The Group only transacts with reputable banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies and
therefore the directors of the Company consider the risk of
default is low. The Group uses 12-month ECL to perform the
assessment under ECL on pledged bank deposits, short-term
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents individually based
on the average loss rate by reference to credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies. The Group assessed
the ECL for pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents were immaterial. Thus no loss
allowance was recognised.

39.
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im e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Pledged bank deposits/short-term bank deposits/cash
and cash equivalents (Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises
the following categories:

39. T A (8

MHHEEREEBFERER (&)

FEmRE
EE#FRITZ

KRR IEFFIE (4)
K ITHIRIT 7K

S RBEREeZE (F)

REBAEE

TR

Trade receivables/

BERTEaEEsU

Other financial

Internal credit rating Description contract assets assets
%%FEWTAIE/
AEREE T4 ian ANEE HthEmEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does  Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
not have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
e HFEFNENRBRE B REEATIE LHERESSE- TZEAEH
REREERE
Medium risk Debtor has past-due balance overdue less than 90 days Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
as at year end not credit-impaired
EEBEETER BHARERER B DI0H B EER cHRAEERE- +ERES
REREERE
High risk Debtor has past-due balance overdue more than 90 Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
days as at year end not credit-impaired
EERERER BHARERER BHRBE0RNBRER FHRAEERE- +EREH
AEREEHE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
since initial recognition through information not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
developed mternally or external resources
EEREER EERRBNREDLURBEEEN B8R LHRBEERE- 2HREPEERE-
%ﬂé[%?zhu) RHREERE RHREERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired  Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired credit-impaired
BE mREETNEHSECLRESRE LHRBEERE- 2BRPREERE-
BHREERE BHREERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe  Amount is written off  Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
6] EMF%TFWAhAﬁEWWFI%E$$I$ MEERTE MEERTE

shas AP IR B TR
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17177 = |
HEZ

39.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's
financial assets (trade receivables, other receivables and
deposits, loans receivable, pledged bank deposits, short-term
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents) and contract assets,
which are subject to ECL assessment:

M HwRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B E+CA=+-ALEE

—_—

EEER

KET &

ERMIA (@
BRI S IE B IR REUR (8

EX-B8
ﬁﬁ*hﬁﬂﬁﬁ TE
%%{E)&é%ﬁéﬁiﬂ’]ﬁgﬂﬁA

R EFE (48)

TRAMI B A ERCHEE
(%%ﬁ%u&yxlﬁ HthfE W sk 18
5 IR1T
BENIR

WO ZEeMEERETER
EERET -
External Internal
credit credit 12-month or
rating rating lifetime ECL Gross carrying amounts
%‘Mnﬁﬁ‘s& W‘Bf‘ﬁ&“& +ZERRZHRHEESR BIRE(E
2022 2021
b S 3 B-F
Notes HK$ HKS
izt BT BT
Financial assets at REHERAHENSREE
amortised cost
Trade receivables ERENTIE 21 NA (note 1) Lifetime ECL (collective assessment) 56,702,483 73,659,068
TER (i) PHEBEESE ERAM)
(notg 1) Lifetime ECL (individual assessment) 36,300,544 47,519,286
(i) PERBEESSE (BRFMG)
Other receivables and deposits  HEMFIART& 21 NA (note 2) 12-month ECL 12,296,478 17,400,859
TER Hi2) +ZBARBEESFS
Loans receivable EWER: 2 NA lowrisk ~ 12-month ECL 31,601,091 9,115,671
TER Rk +-BARHEESFS
High risk 12-month ECL o 18,682,096 22,612
Bk +ZBAEHREEES
Pledged bank deposits BERROTEN 23 Aorabove  N/A 12-month ECL 60,000,000 -
AFIME TBA +ZBAEHREEFS
Short-term bank deposits RHBTER 23 BBB N/A 12-month ECL 15,597,000 3,304,774
TBA +ZBAEHREEFS
Cash and cash equivalents BERRE%E 23 BBB N/A 12-month ECL o 14,497,692 40,126,398
TBA +ZEAEHREEES
Aorabove  N/A 12-month ECL ‘ 110,799,319 105,553,394
AFIM b TER +-BAEHEESE
Other items HitEE
Contract assets RUBE 17 NA (note 1) Lifetime ECL (collective assessment) 26,139,432 32,794,544
TER (1) 2HBHEERE i)
Low risk Lifetime ECL (individual assessment) 4,284,778 14,080,812
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im e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. %EEIE (48)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

290

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) =5 R MR EFEE (48)
Notes: W -
1. For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has EREBEEWRHTEBELRSNEE

applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Apart of debtors with credit-
impaired and customers with outstanding significant balances
exceeding HK$2,500,000 and relevant contract assets, the
Group determines the ECL on these items collectively with
reference to past default experience for recurring customers
and current past due exposure for new customers.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
applies internal credit rating for its customers in relation to
its Group's operation. Customers with outstanding significant
balances exceeding HK$2,500,000 and relevant contract
assets with gross carrying amounts of HK$36,300,544 (2021:
HK$47,519,286) and HK$4,284,778 (2021: HK$14,080,812)
respectively as at 31 December 2022 were assessed
individually. The following table provides information about
the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables and contract
assets which are assessed collectively as at 31 December 2022
and 2021 within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

im e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. %EEIE (,%E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies A SIEEEREE (B)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) =5 R MR EFEE (48)
Notes: (Continued) Kiz# : (&)
1. (Continued) 1. (#8)
2022 g
Gross carrying amount IREAE%E
Average Trade Contract
loss rate receivables assets
Internal credit rating REEE TR FHEsEE & 5 WA BNEE
% HK$ HK$
BT BT
Low risk 1B LB 0.1 21,457,807 14,193,581
Medium risk A &L B 1.0 32,862,102 10,472,349
High risk = A 2.0 2,382,574 1,473,502
56,702,483 26,139,432
2021 B4
Gross carrying amount IREARZE
Average Trade Contract
loss rate receivables assets
Internal credit rating REEETR S SEES B 5 EWHIE GHEE
% HK$ HK$
BT BT
Low risk {5 & bz 0.1 31,483,386 8,752,802
Medium risk & B 1.0 36,017,902 14,512,006
High risk BER 2.0 6,157,780 9,529,736
73,659,068 32,794,544
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im e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

292

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. €M T A (&
Financial risk management objectives and policies BHEEAMEEEERBE (B
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 155 BRI EFFE (4E)
Notes: (Continued) Kiz# : (&)
1. (Continued) (#8)

The estimated loss rates on trade receivables are estimated
based on historical credit loss experience of the debtors and
study of other corporates’ default and recovery data from
international credit-rating agencies including Moody's and
Standard and Poor’s, and are adjusted for forward-looking
information (for example, the forecasted default rate expected
by the international credit-rating agencies) that is available
without undue cost or effort. The contract assets have the
same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the
same type of contracts would apply the same internal credit
rating and loss rate. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about specific
debtors and contract assets is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
provided net reversal of impairment allowance of HK$151,651
(2021: HK$2,202,159) and net reversal of impairment
allowance of HK$223,387 (2021: HK$797,248) for trade
receivables and contract assets respectively, based on the
collective assessment during the year ended 31 December
2022. Net impairment allowance of HK$65,898 (2021: net
reversal of impairment allowance of HK$89,440) and net
reversal of impairment allowance of HK$45,877 (2021:
net impairment allowance of HK$82,657) was provided
respectively for trade receivables and contract assets which
are assessed individually with outstanding significant balances
exceeding HK$2,500,000.
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im e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. €M T A (&

Financial risk management objectives and policies HEEAMMEIEEERBE (48)

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 155 BRI EFFE (4E)

Notes: (Continued) Kiz# : (&)

2. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the 2. AN EERMEEMS » K&
Group uses past due information to assess whether credit risk EEAAREN T EEERR A
has increased significantly since initial recognition. BRI T ESEM.
2022 i o)

Not past due/

no fixed
repayment
Past due terms Total
KRB
BH EEEEEERR #ast
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Financial assets at amortised R#FHMAEEZ
cost EREE
Other receivables and deposits ~ EAEWTIBE K] & - 12,296,478 12,296,478
2021 B —F

Not past due/

no fixed

repayment
Past due terms Total

F@fp
Bl EETEERSR st
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT

Financial assets at amortised REHMAEZ
cost EMEE

Other receivables and deposits ~ EAMEWIE R ] & - 17,400,859 17,400,859
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""'A =
e ERRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BEZ__HF+_A=+—HIEFE
39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. $RITH (8
Financial risk management objectives and policies A SIEEEREE (B)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERER R EFFE (B)
The following table shows the movement in allowance for TR SIEWREEANS RIS
ECL that has been recognised for amounts due from related BoEKFZBEB -SNEE-BFH
companies, trade receivables, contract assets, loan to a joint FT—HEE5E AT NEKE SRS
venture and loans receivable. HIBHR = B EREEH -
Loan to
Trade ajoint Loans Loans
receivables Contract venture receivable receivable
under assets under under under under
Amounts due lifetime lifetime lifetime 12-month lifetime
from related ECL ECL ECL ECL ECL
companies (not credit- (not credit- (credit- (not credit- (credit-
(credit-impaired) impaired) impaired) impaired) impaired) impaired) Total
REBRBEE
FWME R2MBEHEE R2PEHEE SHEIRNER BRI-EREE BRRUAGESH
ARFE BEIRNES BREIRNEAN F-RGELE CEEBRIRN  SRNEKER
(BHFR  BRHE GRE  EE (RERE (BEREE EHER RE  (BEE-£§
EEHE) REEHE) e {8 REEHE) ) @it
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
B B B B B B B
As at 1 January 2021 ﬁ/\ é_ F-A- 1,236,756 3,093,921 1,143,130 3222914 183,515 31,719,306 40,599,542
Changes due to financial R—A— EE@ E’Jﬁmﬂ
instruments recognised as at Iﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬁ
1 January:
- Written off —HisH (1,236,756) - - (3,222,914) - (31,719,306) (36,178,976)
~ Impairment loss reversed -CHERESR - (3,093,921) (1,143,130) - (183,515) - (4,420,566)
New financial assets originated ~ ¥riEBESHEE - 802,322 428,539 - 452 - 1,231,313
Exchange adjustments EREE - 26,105 - - - - 26,105
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ-#+2R8
=+-A - 828,427 428,539 - 45 - 1,257,418
Changes due to financial RR—B— AR &R
instruments recognised as TAHRNES
at 1 January:
- Impairment loss reversed -BELHESSE - (828,427) (428,539) - (452) - (1,257,418)
New financial assets originated ~ ¥7iE R4 SRIEE - 742,674 159,275 - 930,302 - 1,832,251
Exchange adjustments ERHE - (20,560) - - - - (20,560)
As at 31 December 2022 RIE--&+-R
=+-A - 722,114 159,275 - 930,302 - 1,811,691
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im e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. $RITH (8
Financial risk management objectives and policies MERAMEEBIEREE (@)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 1= 5 R i EEEE (48)
Changes in the loss allowance for trade receivables during the HE_ - _—_F#N_E-—F
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are mainly due to: +_B=+—HIEENESZE

WREBEREESH T EHRRN

(Decrease) increase in lifetime ECL

SRR EESE (A 11

2022 2021
—E__ BT —F
Not credit- Not credit-
impaired impaired
RHREERE FHIREERE
HK$ HK'
BT BT
Trade receivable with a gross carrying B 5 EWFIEREE
Settlement in trade receivables BEEEEERIREER
with gross carrying amounts 121,178,354%87T (Z&
HK$121,178,354 (2021: ——% 1 113,341,530%8
HK$113,341,530) since beginning of  7©) Z B Z EUREIE
the year (828,427) (3,093,921)
Impairment allowance recognised FRIEREEZE
for new originated trade WFRIE (FREREER
receivables with gross carrying 93,003,027:8 7T (=
amounts HK$93,003,027 (2021: ——4 1121,178,354%8
HK$121,178,354) during the year 7)) SR 2 R E 742,674 802,322
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iR BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Changes in the loss allowance for contract assets during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are mainly due to:

39.

EEEIE(?&E)

EE mE BRI EFE (&)
RBEE"Z k" "—F
+ZB=+—HLFE > 58&
ENGEEEEHTZHAN

(Decrease) increase in lifetime ECL

SHTAEAE EEIE (A 11

Not credit-impaired

RHREERE
2022 2021
—E-F BT
HK$ HK$
#ETT BT
Settlement in contract assets with gross B E4JE4AE B4R EE A
carrying amounts HK$46,875,356 46,875,356 5 (&
(2021: HK$36,383,928) since the ——% 36,383,928/
beginning of the year O ZERNEE (428,539) (1,143,130)
Impairment allowance recognised FERNMERESHNEE
for new originated contract (HRBEEI{E 430,424,210
assets with gross carrying BTt (CEBE-—F:
amounts HK$30,424,210 (2021: 46,875,356 7T) )
HK$46,875,356) during the year S 2 R E R E 159,275 428,539
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""'A =
e B HRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BEZ__HF+_A=+—HIEFE
39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. %EEIE (,%)
Financial risk management objectives and policies A ESIEEEREE (&)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 1= 5 R i EEEE (48)
Changes in the loss allowance for loans receivable during the NEE _E-_ __FN_ET—F
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are mainly due to: +—_B=+—B8LUtEFEE -EFEKE
MHEEEEESETERK .
Increase in 12-month ECL
+ZE A FEERE EE5181E5 M
Not credit-impaired
FHREERE
2022 2021
—E-—F T4
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Settlement in loans receivable with a ~ BE#EAEEEREES
gross carrying amount HK$22,612 22,6128 (ZTEZ—
(2021: HK$2,022,145) since beginning £ : 2,022,145 7T)
of the year ZEWER (452) (183,515)
Impairment allowance recognised for — FtLL N & IERE SR 2 I (B B
— new financial assets originated H—EAIMGIRE LR
with gross carrying amounts H{E7%418,682,09678 T
HK$18,682,096 (2021: HK$25,000) NEMmEE (C2-—
during the year £ 1 25,0008 7T) 930,302 452
The estimated loss rates on loans receivable are estimated FEWER Z st EELERE
based on historical credit loss experience of the debtors and BARNBEEEREL R X E R

study of other corporates’ default and recovery data from
international credit-rating agencies including Moody’s and
Standard and Poor’s, and are adjusted for forward-looking
information (for example, the forecasted default rate expected
by the international credit-rating agencies) that is available
without undue cost or effort.

EEFREE (BEEaRIEE
W) HEMBEELN RO B
BRI EEH A5 UM B RN
38 % B A 8055 /7 B AT ERAS B A
EMER (PIMNERRE ST R
BIEMNTRERAEALER) /£ Hj B

o
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BE

39.

TE T THE+_B=+—HIEEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity risk by monitoring and
maintaining a level of cash and cash equivalents secured
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash

flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensure compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities and lease liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the financial institutions choosing to exercise
their rights. The maturity dates for other financial liabilities and
lease liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from prevailing market rate at
the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

im e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

. =, ==
39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39, £/ T H (B8)
Financial risk management objectives and policies A SIEEEREE (B)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) BB T (48)
Liquidity tables HEETH
Weighted Carrying
average 3 months 1 year 2 years Total amount at
effective Within to to to Over undiscounted 31 December
interest rate  On demand 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years Syears  cash flows 2022
kS
B +ZA
RS ReRE =t-AZ
ERfE BEX Z@AR ZRERE-% —EERME WERRE BRLE a5 REE
% HKS$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS$
AT A BT AT AT o BT AT
2022 “ECE
Trade payables BRREM7E N/A S 56,106,682 = = = = 56,106,682 56,106,682
TER
Other payables and accruals AftEfFERE: A N/A - 7191563 - - - - TI91563 77921563
FER
Amount due to a non-controlling E-FHBAT-%
shareholder of a subsidiary FERRRIE NA 16,977,929 - - - - - 169771929 16977929
FER
Secured bank borrowings BHARTEE Note 2 68,203,525 2,884,550 4,067,538 6,683,602 34,130,711 - 115969926 111,214,278
Mzt
Leases liabilities HEEE Note 3 = 3,878,801 11,367,911 14,808,690 15,086,148 43,052,000 88,193,550 67,698,111
K33
85,181,454 140,791,596 15,435,449 21,492,292 49,216,859 43,052,000 355,169,650 329,918,563
Weighted Carrying
average 3 months 1 year 2 years Total amount at
effective Within to to to Over  undiscounted 31 December
interestrate ~ On demand 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows 2021
R -F
RER +ZA
mETs BefE  =t-Hz
ERAE BEX ZfEAR ZERE-% —EEWE WEELE BELE it REG
% HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS
AT AR o A AT B A A
2021 -
Trade payables ZREIHE NA - 82691517 - - - - 82691517 82691517
TER
Other payables and accruals HftEfFERE A N/A - 66328140 - - - - 66308140 66,328,140
TER
Amount due to a non-controlling ER-FHBAT—2
shareholder of a subsidiary FRRRRIE NA 18359853 - - - - - 18359853 18359853
TER
Amount due to a related company Ef-FEEATNE Note 1 24,130 13514 60,813 81,084 148,654 - 328,195 240,745
Mz
Secured bank borrowings BRFRAEE Note2 62,609,035 - - - - - 62609035 62,609,035
i57)
Leases liabilities HEEE Note 3 = 3,997,781 12,418,266 8,189,463 13,583,942 45,328,000 83,517,452 61,038,248
&3
80,993,018 153,030,952 12,479,079 8,270,547 13,732,5% 45328000 313834192 291,267,538
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

39.

TR THF+A=+—HLEEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liguidity tables (Continued)

Notes:

(1) The amount due to a related company carried at interest rate
ranging from 18% to 20% (2021: 18% to 20%) per annum.

(2) The secured bank borrowings carry at HIBOR plus 1.25% to
1.85% (2021: HIBOR plus 1.25% to 2.5%) per annum.

(3) The incremental borrowing rates for lease liabilities ranging
from 2.2% to 5.38% (2021: 2.2% to 5.38%) per annum.

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause as at 31
December 2022 and 2021 are included in the “on demand”
time band in the above maturity analysis. The carrying amount
of the bank borrowings amounted to HK$68,203,525 (2021:
HK$62,609,035) as at 31 December 2022. Taking into account
the Group’s financial position and assets pledged for the bank
borrowings, the directors of the Company do not believe that
it is probable that the financial institutions would exercise the
discretionary rights to demand immediate payment. As at 31
December 2022, the directors of the Company believed that
such bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
The aggregate principal and interest cash outflows amounted
to HK$74,230,843 (2021: HK$62,875,196) as at 31 December
2022. The repayment schedule based on the scheduled
repayment dates is set out below:
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BB (B)
MBEEE (B
Htat -

) B —REAEQABDREBERENTF
18%FE20% (CE_—F 1 18%=E
20%) 2 EF)E B o

() ERFIRTEEREBRTHEE
FENM1.25%%E1.85% (ZF_—
F I BEBRTAEREM25%E
2.5%) ZEREFFE o

(3) HEEBENMEEENENTF
2.2%%E5.38% (T _—%:
22%%E5.38%) ZEF KB o

t_v__EE&_v_—EJr_
B=+—HWEZEREEER
ZIRTTEEE ERBBEES 7fﬁEP
SFATIRENR | 2R EE RN o iX
B "HF+_"_B=+—H" IR
TEERNIREE4468,203,525
B (B - —4F 162,609,035
Bio) c ZEREAER MBI
/EX'ZH’H%T%ETETEFZQE’ZI&
NEIEEHEE MBEEBELRTEE
TERIBERE RN LT
T _E+"A=+—H &R
BEEHAE ZFRTEELR
?%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁé EIHHEE

CHMIEBEZZH+ZA=+—
E| AR NRA BB RMBBEA
74,230,8438B T (ZE - —&F:
62,875,196870) IRIEFATIER
HER BREREEROT
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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39.

TE T THE+_B=+—HIEEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

ERMIA @)
B H5 L IR 1R B AR R BUSR ()

BB (B)

2022 2021
—E_CE %
HK$ HK$
T AT
Within one year —F R 51,845,622 62,875,196
Over one year but less than two years B —FEB/ LR ME 2,809,351 -
Over two years but less than five years B#@MEB/ DR AE 7,445,435 -
Over five years BiEaF 12,130,435 -
74,230,843 62,875,196

Interest rate benchmark reform FIFEBRENE

As listed in note 29, several of the Group’s HIBOR bank
borrowings will or may be subject to the interest rate
benchmark reform. The Group is closely monitoring the market
and managing the transition to new benchmark interest
rates, including announcements made by the relevant IBOR
regulators.

HIBOR

While the Hong Kong Dollar Overnight Index Average
("HONIA") has been identified as an alternative to HIBOR,
there is no plan to discontinue HIBOR. The multi-rate approach
has been adopted in Hong Kong, whereby HIBOR and HONIA
will co-exist. The Group's bank borrowings linked to HIBOR will
continue till maturity and hence not subject to transition.

MUK SE29PFT M EE AEBAE T
BARRTRERBZIRITEER
ENAEERINREENEY
BE-AEEHTHBETEIER
WA EEF R ZBEIT(E
BERARERTEEFEXEERH
BEMZAS-

BB IRITIEIFE B

HATRETIEH (BTRE
FHEH) CEREREBIRT
FEEFEZBN ELELLS
BRTRARFEZ5E - FBEK
MEBRRGH FIL > FBIRT
B 8RB TRE TR
FHEFE - AEBEFTERTRZE
FEHBZRTEEREFEED
HALE MR ERBEZTE-
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39.

TE T THE+_B=+—HIEEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets.

Fair value measurement and valuation process

The financial controller of the Company is responsible to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and key inputs
for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engaged
independent qualified professional valuers to perform
the valuation. The financial controller works closely with
independent qualified professional valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and key inputs to the model.
Financial controller reports to executive directors semi-annually
to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the
assets.

Information about the valuation techniques and key inputs
used in determining the fair value of various assets are
disclosed below.
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39.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these financial assets
are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and

key inputs used).

39.

T A (8)
ERTREZA

:F {E n+ = (mﬁ)

KEEF B E I BERZ L
FEASZETMEEZLF

/]

AEEFDEMEERKRSHR
BAFEFE- "F%E?'Ju%ﬁ%ﬁf
EREEMEEANTEREZE
B (LHEFBGHERMREE

WA o

Fair value as at Fair value  Valuation technique(s) and
Financial assets 31 December hierarchy  key input(s) Sensitivity
EHEE R+ZB=+—HZATE ATEER FHERNRIESARE HRE
2022 2021
—E--fF B”-F
HK$ HK$
AT BT
Investments in listed equity in Hong Kong 17,375,128 24,716,500 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active N/A
as financial assets at FVTPL market
NEABBBRARATEIRzeHE 1R BRETE EZEARE AER
EZREBLMNRARE
Investments in equity securities 22,285,289 17,854,928 Level 3 Asset-based approach with key
established in Hong Kong, the PRC inputs of
and overseas measured at FVTOCI
BRZABARATEIRSEZNH EE EEL TERAYER
BRI 2 RAESEE
Fair value of the underlying A significant increase/
assets of the investees; and decrease in the
comparable market
transactions price
used would result in
a significant increase/
decrease in fair value.
BREHNEREE AELEBTSERAERAR
PEE; R S/ TH BRATE
KEER/ T8 RZF
o
Investments in equity securities - 4,695,691 Level 2 Recent transaction prices N/A
established in the PRC and overseas
measured at FVTOC|
BREARARATEIRSEZNH F21R R A B EN G

BRI RAE SR E
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39.

TR THF+A=+—HLEEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the fair value
measurement hierarchy for certain investments in equity
securities established in the PRC and overseas measured at
FVTOCI amounting to HK$4,430,361 (2021: HK$4,695,691) as
at 31 December 2022 transferred from Level 2 (which is based
on recent transaction prices) to Level 3 (which is based asset-
based approach with key inputs of fair value of the underlying
assets of the investees). Other than that, there were no
transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during the years.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

The directors of the Company estimate the fair value of its
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost using the discounted cash flows analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their fair values.

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE2&£EZERBRAE | Annual Report 2022 F iR

39. T A (8

EMIAZAFESE @

KEEF B E I BERZ L
FEAEZETMEEZ LF
g ()
HE_S__#+”-B=+—H
FEEE BFHR_BE__F+=
B=+—HE&1E%4,430,36187T
— T —14 :4,695691E7T)
HEBEEmB AR A FESRET
B2 RPENBINEIL 2 R AR
HRENNTFEESHAF2R (B
KRITHIR Z B BEESE3MK
(BEEL TEHARIES
WREHFNEFAEEQFE) o
tEZ 90 s FRER > B4R 28k &
FEIAR B EEEIE T o

FEE N IFZITAEE R E

BLFPEFEZEHMBEER
EHERZLFE

ZIK T%Ehﬁ Effﬁfﬁﬁx)w%ﬁ\
MLt RBIHR A EZ EME
ENEMEREZATE

RRBEERN7 REHEAET

ANGBUBRRETZEMEENR
THERZREERAATEM
Eo



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEITRERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BHE_ -+ _"_B=1+—HIEE

40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 40. REEHFTELEEGENSE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES AR

TR AEENRELEFAE
TEENEHFE BFERENM
FREEH - METHFTELEN
BEABEEREWRKRETRE
ERFTEBEGEREAERT

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be
classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows

as cash flows from financing activities.

WoEAMELTHRETARENEG

Amount
due to
a related Lease Bank
company liabilities borrowings Total
FEf—%
MEARRE HEaE RITEE 8L
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2021 W_E_—%F—HF—H 271,763 53,349,678 79,786,671 133,408,112
Financing cash flows (note) BERESRE W) (85,689) (9,732,545 (18579,155)  (28,397,389)
Finance costs =YD % 54,671 2,123,220 1,401,519 3,579,410
Additions NE - 17,738,587 - 17,738,587
Disposals HE - (497,469) - (497,469)
Exchange adjustments BE 10 2R 28 - (1,943,223) - (1,943,223)
At 31 December 2021 WZEZ—%+"H1
=+—H 240,745 61,038,248 62,609,035 123,888,028
Financing cash flows (note) MERERE (W) (260,482)  (17,419,413) 48,108,499 30,428,604
Finance costs ES= %N 19,737 2,486,046 1,528,644 4,034,427
Modifications &eq - 20,083,744 - 20,083,744
Exchange adjustments BE 2 FH %L - 1,500,486 (1,031,900) 477,586
At 31 December 2022 RS- _%+_H4
=+—H - 67,698,111 111,214,278 178,912,389

Note:

The cash flows in relation to repayments to a related company,

repayments for lease liabilities and bank borrowings and

finance costs.

Hat: BE—REEQRSER -HESR
BRBTERETERNESR
BN E R -
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 41.

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December
2022 and 2021.

FEMBATZF1E

KNBWBRABN _E__FK
T —H+_HA=+—Hxz#

306

1B

Effective percentage

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
FARFMFERTRE/
WEAERE EMEL RS BRERT/HBRA AMESERESIL IBRH
2022 2021
“5IZF “E°-F
% %
Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited BVI HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
PADRIERERAE EEEYHE 10,0008 & @K REER
Chung Tai Printing Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
RRERIBRAT BA HK$500,000 deferred REER
non-voting
1,000/ 70 & ##%500,000
BTREEEEELR
R ERARTREBRAE The PRC RMB1,000,000 100 100 Testing of printing
(note 1) (W&t 1) R registered capital products
AE1,000,0007 Rl iRl
HfHEX
BWHER (RN BRAR The PRC HK$30,000,000 100 100 Label and paper
(note 1) (Bz#1) I registered capital products printing
30,000,000 T HE A BRERARRER
Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 100 Trading of label,
Limited B ordinary HK$10,000 packaging and
FAEIR (FE) BRAR deferred non-voting paper products and
1,0008 T BBR printing products
10,000 7T BERE OERE
REEBELR R KR E R
Chung Tai Smart Labelling Company Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Trading of label and
Limited &E 1ETEBK printing products
RRREREERAT EERERIOM @
Chung Tai Printing (International) Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Trading of printing
Company Limited &E 1ETEEK products

AL (EF) BRAT
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BE_

41.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 41. TEMBABZH1E (&)
(Continued)
Effective percentage
Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
FATFMBERTRE/
WEARHE AMML M BRERT/EREE AMEFBERESL IBEH
2022 2021
ZEIZE “E°-fF
% %
FERKER (RN BERAT The PRC HK$98,000,000 100 100 Label, packaging and
(note 1) (Hiz#1) I registered capital paper products
98,000,000/ T3 & A printing
RE ERARM
ENR
Delight Source Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000 ordinary 100 100 Trading of printing
SMBRAT &5E 200,0008 T E B products
BERER
General Star Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100 100 Trading and
BEEXERAT B 1ETEER production of
surgical mask
BERGTENE
Green Links Global Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100 100 Trading
5 -RIEERAT 5% TETLER BR
Neway Group Assets Management Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Property management
Company Limited Ei TETEER and project
FEEHEEERERAT investment
MEEBREERE
Neway Smart Technology Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 RFID printing products
(International) Company Limited 5 10,0008 5 & &Mk and RFID label
RERERE ER) 5RAF BRAEER Em K
Neway Star Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary 100 100 Provision of music
HEREIRERAT 5 10,0008 5 & &Mk licensing services,

sales of music
albums and
investment holding
REZ2ETRE
HESHIER KK

P
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ECRTCHFFHA=FT—HILFE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 4. FERBLATZFHE (B)
(Continued)
Effective percentage
Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
FATFMBERTRE/
WEARHE AMML M BRERT/EREE AMEFBERESLE  FTEEH
2022 2021
ZEIZE “E°-fF
% %
Neway Star Artiste Management Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary 100 100 Provision of artistes
Limited & 10,0008 T E B management
WREAZEERERAT services
REZEABERE
Showtimes (Asia) Limited Hong Kon HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Organisation of
BEER @) BRAE %Eg TETLER concerts and shows
EMEETRRR
Kingbay Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Securities trading
4R REARAT =5 BT EER EEH
Grand Prospects Finance International Hong Kong HK$100,000 ordinary 100 100 Money lending
Limited Ei 100,000 7T @R e
EXMBEARERAR
Sansible Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$100,Q0070rdi\nary 100 100 Trading
RERERAT 25 100,000 EE K 25
Supreme Cycle Inc. BV US$1 ordinary 100 100 Property investment
Supreme Cycle Inc. EBEYHE 1ETEER £33
LETEREREHEERAT The PRC U5$20,000,000 100 100 Financial leasing
(note 1) (lifz£1) M registered capital RMEHE
20,000,000% 7
AMER
Zhongxing Guosheng (note 2) The PRC RMB2,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
hEER (Hi22) ] registered capital REZK
AR ™2,000,0007T
AMER
Zhongaing (note 2) TheqF;RC RMB2,000,000 60 60 %oﬁpeégy development
= registered capital e
st AR 2,000,007
HLEEN
Zhongda Qingyuan (note 1) The PRC HK$230,000,000 100 100 Property development
HRRBE (H21) i registered capital MEER
230,000,000 7 B
ZHEX
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41.

TR THF+A=+—HLEEE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Notes:

(1) These subsidiaries are wholly foreign owned enterprises in the
PRC.

2) These subsidiaries are domestic-invested enterprises

established in the PRC.

The operations of all subsidiaries are carried out principally in
Hong Kong and the PRC.

Save for Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited, which is directly
owned by the Company, all other subsidiaries are indirectly
owned by the Company.

The above table only includes those subsidiaries which, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results of the Group for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of all subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, result in particulars of excessive length. The
deferred non-voting shares, which are not held by the Group,
practically carry no rights to dividends nor to receive notice of
nor to attend or vote at any general meeting of the relevant
companies or to participate in any distribution on winding up.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of the year or at any time during the years.

41.

EEMTE/-\_J Z-‘é‘é (H\E)

MaE -

(1 ZEMWBRBFEAZINEEHE
e

) ZEMBRB TR ILZ A
BiRe

FANBARNESEENES
KRBT o

SR ARERIEBERATHER
BAIEREEN FTEHEMBA
B RN EREES -

ERECEEARTDESTIAREE
TEREBRAFERENBENE
EEFEETER \E’]Bﬁ)ﬁ'
Bl ERRRALFAERBA
H%ﬁ@léfﬂf_ﬁfnﬁom&?é%
TIER CFRTEEFA) BE L
IR A R R B R WA
AR ZKRRARGRSHHEE
ARREAEHNE LRE RN
BREZ2EEMDIKe

Pt 188 B) 1 £ 48 B AR ] BT
BEEAEREEZEHRS-
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 41. TEMBATIZHE (B
(Continued)
The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned TRARKNEBRIEEGIFITZRHE TS
subsidiaries of the Group that have non-controlling interests: ZIE BB ATEE
Place of Proportion of
establishment ownership interests
and principal and voting rights held by Loss allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiaries place of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
I AvRiLEYd FEREGRSRERES
WBARAE TRELHE REZEZ LA NEEFERES 2R REt IR
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
ZFCf ®RT-F ZEIZH CE-F IBIZE TET-F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Zhongging The PRC 40% 40% (458,986) (428,438)  (3,382,732)  (3,205,059)
A alEi
Individually immaterial subsidiaries - - (450,718) (450,718)

with non-controlling interests
BEEFEREZZERHTEX
LhlUNG

(458,986) (428,438)  (3,833,450)  (3,655,777)
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Ra M B ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

42,

TE T THE+_B=+—HIEEE

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 9 December 2022, Zhongda Qingyuan entered into two
cooperation agreements (the “Cooperation Agreements”)
with the Dongcheng Branch of Guangdong Qingyuan Rural
Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. (“Qingyuan Bank”) and the
Guangzhou Dongshan Branch of Bank of China Ltd. ("Bank
of China”, together with the Qingyuan Bank, the “Lending
Banks”), pursuant to which Zhongda Qingyuan agreed to
provide transitional guarantees in respect of the repayment
obligations of the purchasers who/which will apply for
mortgage loans from one of the Lending Banks to fund
the acquisition of the industrial buildings in the Zhongxing
Industrial Park.

The provision of the transitional guarantees under each of the
Cooperation Agreements constitutes a major transaction for
the Company. At a special general meeting of the Company
held on 17 March 2023, the Cooperation Agreements
were approved by the Shareholders. Please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 9 December 2022
and 17 March 2023 and the circular of the Company dated
28 February 2023 for further details of the Cooperation
Agreements.

42.

HEHRERE

A B _F+_"_FAAH HK
ARAERERENBERTR
MERABEWMZIT (MNERIR
171) RPERITRMDERABRE
MNEE W7 (TR EIRTT) > #ERB
ZIRTTATRERTT)) sJILWE
a1tz (&5FEHE)) Bk
PABRBEMMEEFR—BKRE
IRITHRARBERUEEEST
ETXETXABYENEAN
EANETIRMMEER MR

RIBZBSEHZRIRHEEEREER
BRAANB—HBIERS EA
NERN_BE_=F=HF+tHZA
FHHRERESNAE L REBEH
EEEHE - -BESEREE
— S5 BE2REAREHES
_E__F+”-PFABEZE
“=ZF=ZBt+tHZAERAER
BHEAZE_=F"HF_"_+)N\
HBY%E K o
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in e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 43, AT IAFIK AR
COMPANY
2022 2021
—E-CHF —ET—5F
HKS$ HK$
AT BT
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERHEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHRBAEZRE 42,671,966 42,671,966
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS MY B A B 7R IE 796,385,078 788,226,877
839,057,044 830,898,843
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, deposits and HiEWFHIA 5]
prepayments N FRIB 1,651,042 402,463
Cash and cash equivalents HWENMIREEE 2,758,617 33,399,101
4,409,659 33,801,564
Liabilities afE
Current liabilities mEaRE
Other payables and accrued HMEARIE R EST
charges == 728,101 988,690
Amounts due to subsidiaries T B QB R IE 88,346,797 104,267,227
89,074,898 105,255,917
Net current liabilities mBBEPEE (84,665,239) (71,454,353)
Total assets less total liabilities BEERMEEE 754,391,805 759,444,490
Capital and reserves B EE
Share capital [N 2,533,595 2,536,395
Reserves (Note) =& Bz 751,858,210 756,908,095
Total equity e R 754,391,805 759,444,490
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im e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=1+—HLFE

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 43, AT HF AR (&)
COMPANY (Continued)

Note: Byat -
Reserves 4]
Capital
Share  redemption  Contributed Reorganisation Retained
premium reserve surplus reserve profits Total
RiVEE EXBRGEE EHRER EAfRE REER st
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT AT AT
At 1 January 2021 RZZZ-5—-F-H 368,949,127 62,400 103,571,033 19,782,427 268,556,856 760,921,843
Loss and total comprehensive expense  REEEN2ERZEHE
for the year - - - - (4,013,748) (4,013,748)
At 31 December 2021 A ZE-F+ZA=1+-H 368,949,127 62,400 103,571,033 19,782,427 264,543,108 756,908,095
Loss and total comprehensive expense  AERBR 2ERE T A
for the year - - - - (4,952,135) (4,952,135)
Shares repurchased (note 37) BRI (Hizt31) (97,750) - - - - (97,750)
At 31 December 2022 RIBZZE+ZA=1+-H 368,851,377 62,400 103,571,033 19,782,427 259,590,973 751,858,210
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Principal Properties

FEWE

At 31 December 2022
A _E_"HF+"HB=+—H

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES A. KREME
Group’s effective Approximate
interest in gross Category of
Location the properties floor area Usage lease
EERRYESD B4 4EiEm
2k ZERER mE HR#® AR
(sg. m)
(FFHK)
Yuen Long Town Lot No. 292, 100% 1,063.82 Commercial Medium-term
Units 21, 22, 23, 41 and 77 of [EES lease
1/F and the whole of 3/F, FREAFRAY
Hop Yick Commercial Centre (Phase 1),
No. 33 Hop Choi Street, Yuen Long,
New Territories, Hong Kong
SRMA TS E335%R
BmEERL (—H) —1822122
B NKTTFREMN R =IERE
JURATI I E2925%
No. 1801, 15/F, 100% 175.66  Commercial Medium-term
Block 4, Yard 89, [GES lease
89 Jianguo Road, Chaoyang District, R ARFRAY

Beijing, the PRC
e 1 REARG & 2R R 895k
895 45RIZ15/Z 1801 %
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Principal Properties

FEWE

At 31 December 2022
A _E_"HF+"HB=+—H

B. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR B. HEZRPYE
SALE
Group’s effective

interest in  Approximate Category of

Location the properties site area  Usage lease
TERRYES
ik ZERED BOMBER AR AR
(sg. m)
(F753K)

Two parcels of land designated 60% 5,853.40  Mixed Medium-term
located at Lot No. B19001-1*1 and Residential lease
No. B19001-2*1 of Villagers HREeEE FRHAFAXY
Committee of Lian Tang Village,
Dong Cheng Sub-district Office,
Qingcheng District, Qingyuan City,
the PRC
Mg (LS AR B E = 5 5 & BRI AT
MERERENRZEGZIEE LM
(Ot X 4R 52 55B19001-1* 158 Kz
55B19001-2*19%)
A parcels of land with certain buildings 100% 207,999.95  Industrial Use Medium-term
under construction designated located TR lease
at Lot No. N32000004 of northern side FRARFR AT

of Lianhu Industrial Park, Qingcheng
District, Qingyuan City, the PRC

— BN FEBR D AR ENE X
EICRI 215 Tt — LR R EY)
(3 E& 47 5% 55N3200000455)
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Five Years Financial Summary

hEMBHE

RESULTS E4 |
For the year ended 31 December
HE+_A=+—HIL=EE
2018* 2019* 2020 2021 2022
T \Fr T E “ECEE B —E-CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET FHET
Revenue Wi 592,626 560,585 532,674 623,577 449,403
Loss before taxation FRinmI g8 (35,220) (24,994) (88,438) (11,752) (5,051)
Taxation QI8 (3,004) (5,979) 1,121 618 2,650
Loss for the year KEBHE (38,224) (30,973) (87,317) (11,134) (2,401)
Attributable to: IR AT FEL
Owners of the Company AT HEHB A (37,922) (30,782) (87,187) (10,706) (1,942)
Non-controlling interests ~ JEIRBR# % (302) (191) (130) (428) (459)
(38,224) (30,973) (87,317) (11,134) (2,401)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENEaE
As at 31 December
®+ZBA=+—H
2018* 2019* 2020 2021 2022
T \F “Z—NE TETTE TR —fF —EZZC
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHERT FHET FHET FET
Total assets BEME 1,157,108 1,172,501 1,126,722 1,156,303 1,143,761
Total liabilities BEeE (229,826) (286,283) (296,794) (324,245) (355,620)
Total equity Hxam 927,282 886,218 829,928 832,058 788,141
Equity attributable to owners ZATEHE A
of the Company PG TE 930,032 889,442 833,202 835,714 791,974
Non-controlling interests EERERD (2,750) (3,224) (3,274) (3,656) (3,833)
927,282 886,218 829,928 832,058 788,141

The amounts for the year ended 31 December 2018 were presented

upon the application of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, which the
comparative financial information was not restated. The amounts
for the year ended 31 December 2019 were presented upon the
application of HKFRS 16, which the comparative financial information

was not restated.
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